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the Bank’ s ability to seek relationships with larger businesses in its market area. Loan amounts in excess of the lending limits can be
accommodated through the sale of participations in such loans to other banks. However, there can be no assurance that the Bank will be
successful in attracting or maintaining customers seeking larger loans or that it will be able to engage in participation of such loans or on terms
favorable to the Bank. There is strong competition in the Bank’ s primary market areas and its geographic diversification is limited. The Bank
encounters strong competition from other financial institutions in its primary market area, which consists of Franklin, Cumberland, Dauphin, Fulton
and Huntingdon Counties, Pennsylvania; and Washington County, MD. In addition, established financial institutions not already operating in the
Bank’ s primary market area may open branches there at future dates or can compete in the market via the Internet. In the conduct of certain aspects
of banking business, the Bank also competes with credit unions, mortgage banking companies, consumer finance companies, insurance companies
and other institutions, some of which are not subject to the same degree of regulation or restrictions as are imposed upon the Bank. Many of these
competitors have substantially greater resources and lending limits and can offer services that the Bank does not provide. In addition, many of these
competitors have numerous branch offices located throughout their extended market areas that provide them with a competitive advantage. No
assurance can be given that such competition will not have an adverse effect on the Bank’ s financial condition and results of operations. Changes in
interest rates could have an adverse impact upon our results of operations. The Bank” s profitability is in part a function of the spread between interest
rates earned on investments, loans and other interest- earning assets and the interest rates paid on deposits and other interest- bearing liabilities.
Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors that are beyond the Bank’ s control, including general economic conditions and policies of various
governmental and regulatory agencies and, in particular, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. Changes in monetary policy,
including changes in interest rates, will influence not only the interest received on loans and investment securities and the amount of interest we pay
on deposits and borrowings, but will also affect the Bank’ s ability to originate loans and obtain deposits and the value of our investment portfolio. If
the rate of interest paid on deposits and other borrowings increases more than the rate of interest earned on loans and other investments, the Bank’ s
net interest income, and therefore earnings, could be adversely affected. Likewise, recent changes in market interest rates have caused the Bank to
quickly raise its rates on deposits. Earnings could also be adversely affected if the rates on loans and other investments fall more quickly than those
on deposits and other borrowings. While Management takes measures to guard against interest rate risk, there can be no assurance that such measures
will be effective in minimizing the exposure to interest rate risk. Our operational or security systems may experience interruption or breach in
security, including cyber- attacks. We rely heavily on communications and information systems to conduct our business. These systems include our
internal network and data systems, as well as those of third- party vendors. Any failure, interruption or breach in security or these systems, including
a cyber- attack, could result in the disclosure or misuse of confidential or proprietary information. Cyber security risks for financial institutions have
significantly increased in recent years in part because of the proliferation of new technologies, the use of the Internet and telecommunications
technologies to conduct financial transactions, and the increased sophistication and activities of organized crime, hackers, terrorists and other external
parties, including foreign state actors. Financial services institutions have been subject to, and are likely to continue to be the target of, cyber- attacks,
including computer viruses, malicious or destructive code, phishing attacks, denial of service or information or other security breaches that could
result in the unauthorized release, gathering, monitoring, misuse, loss or destruction of confidential, proprietary and other information of the
institution, its employees or customers or of third parties, or otherwise materially disrupt network access or business operations. Cyber threats could
result in unauthorized access, loss or destruction of customer data, unavailability, degradation or denial of service, introduction of computer viruses
and other adverse events, causing the Corporation to incur additional costs (such as repairing systems or adding new personnel or protection
technologies). Cyber threats may also subject the Corporation to regulatory investigations, litigation or enforcement, require the payment of
regulatory fines or penalties or undertaking costly remediation efforts. While we have systems, policies and procedures designed to prevent or limit
the effect of the failure, interruption or security breach of our information systems, there can be no assurance that any such failures, interruptions or
security breaches will not occur or, if they do occur, that they will be adequately addressed. The occurrence of any failures, interruptions or security
breaches of our information systems could damage our reputation, result in a loss of client business, or expose us to civil litigation and possible
financial liability, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. A large component
of fee income is dependent on stock market values. Fee income from the Bank’ s Wealth Management Department comprises a large percentage of
total noninterest income. Fee income from Wealth Management Department is comprised primarily of asset management fees as measured by the
market value of assets under management. As such, the market values are directly related to stock market values. Therefore, any significant negative
change in the value of assets under management due to stock market fluctuations could greatly reduce fee income and have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition and results of operations. 10A large component of fee income is dependent on two deposit services. Fee income from the
Bank’ s debit card is a significant contributor of fee income. As technology changes and consumer payment preferences change it is possible that
debit card income does not continue to grow or may decline. The Bank’ s overdraft protection program has also been a significant contributor of fee
income. If usage of this product slows or regulatory changes negatively affect the fees that can be charged for such services, it may greatly reduce fee
income and have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. A large percentage of deposits may be highly sensitive
to changes in interest rates. Thirty- seven-eight percent ($ $72-694 . +-9 million) of all deposits are in the Bank’ s money management product. The
interest rate on these deposits generally follows market rates. A large or continuous increase in market rates could result in a rapid increase in the
interest expense of these deposits. While the interest rate on this product generally follows market rates, the product is not indexed to a market rate,
thereby giving the Bank more control over any rate increases. Nonetheless, interest expense could materially increase and have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Liquidity contingency funding is highly concentrated. The Bank is a member of the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (FHLB). Access to funding through the FHLB is the largest component of the Bank”’ s liquidity stress testing
and contingency funding plans. The ability to access funding from FHLB may be critical if a funding need arises. However, there can be no assurance
that the FHLB will be able to provide funding when needed, nor can there be assurance that the FHLB will provide funds to the Bank if its financial
condition deteriorates. The inability to access FHLB funding, through a restriction on credit or the failure of the FHLB, could have a materially
adverse effect on the Bank’ s liquidity management. The Bank also has funding available with the Federal Reserve Bank and believes it may be a
more stable source of liquidity than the FHLB. Unrealized losses in the Bank’ s investment portfolio could affect liquidity. The Bank” s access to
liquidity sources could be affected by unrealized losses if investments must be sold at a loss, tangible capital ratios decline from an increase in
unrealized losses or realized credit losses, the FHLB or other sources reduce capacity, or bank regulators impose restrictions on the Bank such as a
limit on interest rates it may pay on deposits or its ability to access brokered deposits. Unrealized losses do not affect regulatory capital ratios. The
Corporation is subject to claims and litigation pertaining to fiduciary responsibility which may result in financial liability or reputation damage. From
time to time, customers make claims and take legal action pertaining to the Corporation’ s performance of its fiduciary responsibilities. Whether
customer claims and legal action related to the Corporation’ s performance of its fiduciary responsibilities are founded or unfounded, if such claims
and legal actions are not resolved in a manner favorable to the Corporation, they may result in significant financial liability and / or adversely affect
the market perception of the Corporation and its products and services, as well as impact customer demand for those products and services. Any



financial liability or reputation damage could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’ s business, which, in turn, could have a material
adverse effect on the Corporation’ s financial condition and results of operations. Our business and financial results could be impacted materially by
adverse results in legal proceedings. The nature of the Corporation’ s business generates a certain amount of litigation involving matters arising in the
ordinary course of business (and, in some cases, from the activities of companies we have acquired). These legal proceedings, whether founded or
unfounded, could result in reputation damage and have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operation if they are not resolved in
a manner favorable to the Corporation. Although we establish legal accruals for legal proceedings when information related to the loss contingencies
represented by these matters indicates that both a loss is probable and that the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated, we do not have
accruals for all legal proceedings where we face a risk of loss. In addition, due to the inherent subjectivity of the assessments and unpredictability of
outcomes of legal proceedings, any amounts that may be accrued or included in estimates of possible losses or ranges of possible losses may not
represent the actual loss to the Corporation. We discuss these matters further in Part I Item 3 Legal Proceedings and in Note 21 Commitments and
Contingencies in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II Item 8 of this Report. Publie-11Public health crises such as epidemics or
pandemics could materially and adversely impact our business. An epidemic or pandemic (such as COVID- 19) may cause prolonged global,
national, or regional recessionary economic conditions or longer lasting effects on economic conditions than currently exist, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. HASs-As a result, the demand for our products and services may
be significantly impacted, which could adversely affect our revenue and results of operations. Furthermore, the effects of an epidemic or pandemic
could result in the recognition of credit losses in our loan portfolios and an increase in our allowance for credit losses, particularly if businesses are
restricted or are required to close. Similarly, because of changing economic and market conditions affecting issuers, we may be required to recognize
impairments on the securities we hold as well as reductions in other comprehensive income. Our business operations may also be disrupted if
significant portions of our workforce are unable to work effectively, including because of illness, quarantines, government actions, or other
restrictions in connection with the pandemic. The extent to which an epidemic or pandemic impacts our business, results of operations, and financial
conditions, as well as our regulatory capital and liquidity ratios, will depend on factors which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including
the scope and duration of an epidemic or pandemic and actions taken by governmental authorities and other third parties in response to the epidemic
or pandemic. The Corporation’ s operations could be affected by climate change. The Corporation’ s business, as well as the operations and activities
of our clients, could be negatively impacted by climate change. Climate change presents both immediate and long- term risks to the Corporation and
its clients, and these risks are expected to increase over time. Climate change presents multi- faceted risks, including: operational risk from the
physical effects of climate events on the Corporation and its clients’ facilities and other assets; credit risk from borrowers with significant exposure to
climate risk; transition risks associated with the transition to a less carbon- dependent economy; and reputational risk from stakeholder concerns
about our practices related to climate change, the Corporation’ s carbon footprint, and the Corporation’ s business relationships with clients who
operate in carbon- intensive industries. Federal and state banking regulators and supervisory authorities, investors, and other stakeholders have
increasingly viewed financial institutions as important in helping to address the risks related to climate change both directly and with respect to their
clients, which may result in financial institutions coming under increased pressure regarding the disclosure and management of their climate risks and
related lending and investment activities. Given that climate change could impose systemic risks upon the financial sector, either via disruptions in
economic activity resulting from the physical impacts of climate change or changes in policies as the economy transitions to a less carbon- intensive
environment, the Corporation may face regulatory risk of increasing focus on the Corporation” s resilience to climate- related risks, including in the
context of stress testing for various climate stress scenarios. Ongoing legislative or regulatory uncertainties and changes regarding climate risk
management and practices may result in higher regulatory, compliance, credit, reputational risks and costs, and potentially affect customer
relationships. Severe weather, natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism, and other external events could negatively impact the Corporation” s
business. The unpredictable nature of events such as severe weather, natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism, and other adverse external events
could have a significant impact on the Corporation’ s ability to conduct business. If any of its financial, accounting, network or other information
processing systems fail or have other significant shortcomings due to external events, the Corporation could be materially adversely affected. Third
parties with which the Corporation does business could also be sources of operational risk to the Corporation, including the risk that the third parties'
own network and information processing systems could fail. Any of these occurrences could materially diminish the Corporation' s ability to operate
one or more of its businesses, or result in potential liability to customers, reputational damage, and regulatory intervention, any of which could
materially adversely affect the Corporation. Such events could affect the stability of the Corporation' s deposit base, impair the ability of borrowers to
repay outstanding loans, impair the value of collateral securing loans, impair the Corporation' s liquidity, cause significant property damage, result in
loss of revenue, and / or cause the Corporation to incur additional expenses. The Corporation may be subject to disruptions or failures of the financial,
accounting, network and / or other information processing systems arising from events that are wholly or partially beyond the Corporation' s control,
which may include, for example, computer viruses, electrical or telecommunications outages, natural disasters, disease epidemics or pandemics,
damage to property or physical assets, or terrorist acts. While the Corporation believes its business continuity plan and efforts to evaluate the business
continuity plans of critical third- party service providers help mitigate risks, disruptions or failures affecting any of these systems may cause
interruptions in service to customers, damage to the Corporation' s reputation, and loss or liability to the Corporation. Negative-12Negative
developments affecting the banking industry, including bank failures or concerns regarding liquidity shave-eroded-eustomer-eonfidenee-ithe
ba-nkmg—system—aﬂd—may have a matenal adverse effect on the Corporatlon In the recent past, the financial services industry has been impacted by
bank failures (Silie 8 anfo-and by financial instability at various addittenal-banks. These-bank
Bank failures and bank 1nstab111tles and future bank fallures and 1nstab111t1es have created and may continue to create market and other risks, for all
financial institutions and banks, mcludmg the Corporation. These risks mclude, but are not limited to, market risk and loss of confidence in the
financial services sector, and / or specific banks; deterioration of securities and loan portfolios; deposit volatility and reductions with higher volumes
and +2eeeunrring—- occurring over shorter periods of time; increased liquidity demand and utilization of sources of liquidity; and interest rate
volatility and abrupt, sudden and greater than usual rate changes. These factors 1nd1V1dually, or in any combmatlon could materlally and adversely
affect financial condition, operations and results thereof; and stock price. In addition, he v 4
future bank failures and instabilities may result in an increase of FDIC deposit insurance premiums and / or result in spe01a1 FDIC dep0s1t insurance
assessments, which also may adversely affect the Corporation’ s financial condition, operations, results thereof or stock price. The Corporation
cannot predict the impact, timing or duration of such events. Risk Factors Relating to the Common Stock The stock market can be volatile, and
fluctuations in our operating results and other factors could cause our stock price to decline. The stock market has experienced, and may continue to
experience, fluctuations that significantly impact the market prices of securities issued by many companies and financial institutions specifically.
Market fluctuations could adversely affect our stock price. These fluctuations have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating
performance of particular companies. These broad market fluctuations, as well as general economic, systemic, political and market conditions, such as
recessions, loss of investor confidence, interest rate changes, government shutdowns, trade wars, pandemics or epidemics, or international currency
fluctuations, may negatively affect the market price of our common stock. Moreover, our operating results may fluctuate and vary from period to
period due to the risk factors set forth herein. As a result, period- to- period comparisons should not be relied upon as an indication of future
performance. Our stock price could fluctuate significantly in response to our quarterly or annual results, annual projections and the impact of these
risk factors on our operating results or financial position. Although the €empany-Corporation ’ s common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Capital
Market, the volume of trades on any given day has been limited historically, as a result of which shareholders might not have been able to sell or




purchase the Cempany-Corporation ° s common stock at the volume, price or time desired. From time to time, our Common Stock may be included
in certain and various stock market indices. Inclusion in these indices may positively impacted the price, trading volume, and liquidity of our
Common Stock, in part, because index funds or other institutional investors often purchase securities that are in these indices. Conversely, if our
market capitalization falls below the minimum necessary to be included in any of the indices at any annual reconstitution date, the opposite could
occur. Further, our inclusion in indices may be weighted based on the size of our market capitalization, so even if our market capitalization remains
above the amount required to be included on these indices, if our market capitalization is below the amount it was on the most recent reconstitution
date, our Common Stock could be weighted at a lower level. If our Common Stock is weighted at a lower level, holders attempting to track the
composition of these indices will be required to sell our Common Stock to match the reweighting of the indices. The Bank' s ability to pay dividends
to the Corporation is subject to regulatory limitations that may affect the Corporation’ s ability to pay dividends to its shareholders. As a financial
holding company, the Corporation is a separate legal entity from the Bank and does not have significant operations of its own. It currently depends
upon the Bank' s cash and liquidity to pay dividends to its shareholders. The Corporation cannot assure you that in the future the Bank will have the
capacity to pay dividends to the Corporation. Various statutes and regulations limit the availability of dividends from the Bank. It is possible;
depending upon the Bank' s financial condition and other factors, that the Bank’ s regulators could assert that payment of dividends by the Bank to
the Corporation would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice. In the event that the Bank is unable to pay dividends to the Corporation, the
Corporation may not be able to pay dividends to its shareholders. Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law and various anti- takeover provisions
under the Corporation’ s articles of incorporation and bylaws could impede the takeover of the Corporation. Various Pennsylvania laws
affecting business corporations may have the effect of discouraging offers to acquire the Corporation, even if the acquisition would be
advantageous to stockholders. In addition, the Corporation has various anti- takeover measures in place under its articles of incorporation
and bylaws, including a supermajority vote requirement for mergers, a staggered Board of Directors, and the absence of cumulative voting.
Any one or more of these measures may impede the takeover of the Corporation without the approval of the Board of Directors and may
prevent stockholders from taking part in a transaction in which they could realize a premium over the current market price of the
Corporation common stock. fternr13Item | B. Unresolved Staff Comments None Item 1C. Cybersecurity The Corporation is exposed to a variety
of cybersecurity risks that could adversely affect our operations, reputation, and financial results. Cybersecurity incidents, including data
breaches, denial of service attacks, malware, ransomware, phishing, and other intrusions, could compromise the confidentiality, integrity, or
availability of sensitive information and disrupt our systems. Such incidents could result in unauthorized access to customer or employee
information, financial losses, regulatory penalties, and litigation. Our dependence on technology to deliver banking services and manage our
operations increases the potential impact of cybersecurity risks. The Corporation has developed an information security program to protect the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of our data, information systems, and digital assets from disruption, breach, or theft. As a financial
institution we store and protect nonpublic data related to customers, employees, and business operations. Securing this data at all times is
critical to our business. The Corporation’ s information security program was developed to assess, identify, and monitor cybersecurity risks.
The cybersecurity framework utilized by the Corporation is based on recommendations from the National Institute of Standards and
Technology (NIST), ISO /IEC 27001 & 27002, Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council (FFIEC), industry standards and best
practices, and other applicable regulatory guidance. We maintain robust cybersecurity policies and procedures identify risks and mitigate
where feasible. Policies and procedures address; vendor management and third- party risk, incident response, disaster recovery and
business continuity, electronic banking, data classification and retention. The Corporation’ s information security program is led by the
Chief Technology Officer (CTO) in conjunction with the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) having over 50 years of combined experience in financial
services risk management, and information security. Their experience includes incident response, vendor management, disaster recovery
and business continuity, breach mitigation as well as relevant professional certification. Along with the CTO and CRO, the Executive
Enterprise Risk Management Committee (EERM) and the Board Enterprise Risk Management Committee (BERM) are responsible for
oversight of the Corporation’ s cybersecurity and information security program and regularly assessesreviews and evaluates information
security and cybersecurity risks arising-provided by management. Key risk indicators (KRIs) are regularly reported to the EERM Committee
and BERM for review on a quarterly basis or as needed. The CRO provides updates to the Board of Directors multiple times a year and as
needed. This includes facilitating training for the Board on cybersecurity risks and threats. The Board of Directors is also responsible for
reviewing and approval policies critical to the information security program annually. All employees participate in annual cybersecurity

training courses conducted by the Training department with oversight from the epef&ﬂﬁg—em%eﬁmeﬂt—aﬂd—a&empts—teﬂdeﬂﬁfy—CTO

Additional training exercises are admlnlstered throughout the l-l-kel-l-heed—year to increase cybersecurlty awareness and address relevant
severity-of theriskrisks and p . The Corporation conducts periodic
testing of software, hardware, defensive (dpdbllltlk,S and other information xeeuntv systems ut1]17mU both internal processes and third- party
consultants. Testing procedures are supplemented by regular cyber threat exercises and employee training. Threat simulation exercises are used to
develop and refine the C o1polal10n s mudml ILSPOIlSL plan\ A defense- in- depth strategy is utilized to provide various layers of defense to
identify and empte b ; g-protect against risks to the Corporations network and computer systems. We
utilize industry standards such as but not llmlted to; advanced firewall, content filtering, email gateway protections, endpoint detection and
response software, and data loss prevention software. Access to systems is granted on aregutar-an as needed basis as it relates to the job
functions of an individual . All access changes must be requested based on job function and approved by the appropriate departments.
Changes are reviewed monthly, and all access rights to all significant systems are reviewed and verified annually. +3Fhe-—- The Corporation
also addresses cyber risks posed by its relationships with third- party vendors. The Corporation assesses vendor risk as a part of its vendor
management process, which requires a pre- acquisition diligence review, including the review of the vendor’ s information security policy for all
vendors determined to be a “ critical vendor ”. The vendor management process also requires a review of all critical vendors annually and all critical
vendors are reported to the Board of Directors. An mcndent response plan i is in place to ensure swnft and effective action in the event of a
cybersecurity incident. The plan deﬁnes y

includes representatives from ’
Managementmanagement Committee-, crltlcal busmess llnes, and communlcatlons. The plan outllnes responsnblhtles of the IRT to meet in the
event of an incident and ensure proper containment, investigation and forensic analysis, recovery procedures, and notifications are made
within the parameters of all appllcable laws and regulatlons. The IRT part1c1pate 1n testlng of the plan at least annually through simulated
cyberattack exerclses The Boar d v g penstblefor-o of Directors the-Corporation™s

y-reviews and approves the plan annually evaluates-informationseetrity-and
eybefseetn‘rt—ﬁls%s—prﬁéed—b-y—maﬁﬁgemeﬁ-t— :Fe-14T0 date, risks from cybersecurity threats or incidents have not materially affected the

Corporation. However, the sophistication of and risks from cybersecurity threats and incidents continues to increase, and the preventative actions the
Corporation has taken and continues to take to reduce the risk of cybersecurity threats and incidents and protect its systems and information may not
successfully protect against all cybersecurity threats and incidents. For more information on how cybersecurity risk could materially affect the
Company’ s business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition, please refer to Item 1A Risk Factors. Item 2. Properties The Corporation’
s headquarters is located at 1500 Nitterhouse Drive, Chambersburg, Pennsylvania. This location also houses F & M Trust’ s sales and operations
center. The Corporation owns or leases thirty- five properties in Franklin, Cumberland, Dauphin, Fulton and Huntingdon Counties, Pennsylvania; and




Washington County, Maryland, for banking operations, as described below: Property Owned LeasedFacilities used in Banking Operations +6-17
HRemote-10Remote ATM Sites 3 5 The Bank’ s properties are adequate for the purposes intended. Item 3. Legal Proceedings The nature of the
Corporation’ s business generates a certain amount of litigation. We establish accruals for legal proceedings when information related to the loss
contingencies represented by those matters indicates both that a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. When we are
able to do so, we also determine estimates of possible losses, whether in excess of any accrued liability or where there is no accrued liability. These
assessments are based on our analysis of currently available information and are subject to significant judgment and a variety of assumptions and
uncertainties. As new information is obtained, we may change our assessments and, as a result, take or adjust the amounts of our accruals and change
our estimates of possible losses or ranges of possible losses. Due to the inherent subjectivity of the assessments and the unpredictability of outcomes
of legal proceedings, any amounts that may be accrued or included in estimates of possible losses or ranges of possible losses may not represent the
actual loss to the Corporation from any legal proceeding. Our exposure and ultimate losses may be higher, possibly significantly higher, than amounts
we may accrue or amounts we may estimate. In management’ s opinion, we do not anticipate, at the present time, that the ultimate aggregate liability,
if any, arising out of all litigation to which the Corporation is a party will have a material adverse effect on our financial position. We cannot now
determine, however, whether or not any claim asserted against us will have a material adverse effect on our results of operations in any future
reporting period, which will depend on, amount other things, the amount of loss resulting from the claim and the amount of income otherwise
reported for the reporting period. Thus, at December 31, 2623-2024 , we are unable to provide an evaluation of the likelihood of an unfavorable
outcome or an estimate of the amount or range of potential loss with respect to such other matters and, accordingly, have not yet established any
specific accrual for such other matters. No material proceedings are pending or are known to be threatened or contemplated against us by
governmental authorities. In management’ s opinion, there are no other proceedings pending to which the Corporation is a party or to which its
property is subject which, if determined adversely to the Corporation, would be material. Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures Not Applicable +4Part
15Part II Item 5. Market for Registrant’ s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities Market and
DBividend-Shareholder Information The Corporation’ s common stock trades on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the system FRAF. The
Corporation had 1, 536-493 shareholders of record as of December 31, 2623-2024 . Restrictions on the Payment of Dividends For limitations on the
Corporation’ s ability to pay dividends, see ““ Supervision and Regulation — Regulatory Restrictions on Dividends ” in Item 1 above. Securities
Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans The information related to equity compensation plans is incorporated by reference to the
materials set forth under the heading ““ Executive Compensation — Compensation Tables ” in the Corporation’ s Proxy Statement for the 2624-2025
Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Common Stock Repurchases The Board of Directors, from time to time, authorizes the repurchase of the
Corporation’ s $ 1. 00 par value common stock. The repurchased shares will be held as Treasury shares available for issuance in connection with
future stock dividends and stock splits, employee benefit plans, executive compensation plans, the Dividend Reinvestment Plan and other appropriate
corporate purposes. There--- The following table shows stock repurchase activity under approved plans: Period Number of Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly Announced Program Weighted Average Price Paid per Share Dollar Amount of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly
Announced Program Maximum Number of Shares Yet To Be Purchased Under ProgramOctober 2024 4, 441 $ 30. 05 $ 133, 446 125,
480November 2024 — $ — $ — 125, 480December 2024 — $ — $ — 125, 480 4, 441 $ 133, 446 The shares reported above were ae-shares-part
of a purehased— repurchase during-thefourth-quarterofplan that expired on December 31, 2023-2024 . In Beeember-January 2623-2025 . an
open market repurchase plan was approved to repurchase 150, 000 shares through December 31, 2025 evera-ene—yearperiod-. Performance Graph
The following graph compares the cumulative total return to shareholders of Franklin Financial with selected market indices and a bank peer group,
consisting of Mid- Atlantic Banks with assets between $ 1. 5 billion- $ 2 . 5 billion as of September 30, 2623-2024 ; for the five- year period ended
December 31, 2023-2024 , in each case assuming an initial investment of $ 100 on December 31, 26482019 and the reinvestment of all dividends.
Information is provided by S & P Global Market Intelligence. +5Peried-16Period Endinglndex12 A34+-~4842-/31/1912/31/2012/31/2112/31
/2212 /31 /2312 /31 / 23Fsranidin-24Franklin Financial Services Corporation $ 100. 00 $ +26-72 . 86-91 $ 92. 97 $ 105. 52 $ 96. 24 $ 94.
90NASDAQ Composite Index $ 100. 00 $ 144. 92 $ 177. 06 $ 119. 45 $ 17172 . 89-77 $ +33-223 . 87S $6-$122-03NASBAQ-Compeosite-5166-
00-5136-69-519810-5242-03-$1+63-28-$23617S-& P U. S. BMI Banks- Mid- Atlantic Region Index $ 100. 00 $ 90.39 $114. 16 $ 96. +42-- 42 -
19-5 $28-116 . 53-90 $ 162. 46Peer 33-$4373H0-$166-23Peer-Group * $ 100. 00 § H2-79 . 46-67 $ 96-102 . 86-$-1H646-5121-78-$126- 20 $ 109
7672 $110. 45 $ 129. 69 * Peer Group consists of Mid Atlantic Banks with Assets between § 4B-1. 5B - $ 2B-2. 5B as of 42-9 / 34-30 / 2623-2024
+6Sharehotders-17Shareholders * Information Dividend Reinvestment Plan: Franklin Financial Services Corporation offers a dividend reinvestment
program whereby shareholders of the Corporation’ s common stock may reinvest their dividend, or make optional cash payment, to purchase
additional shares of the Corporation. Beneficial owners of shares of the Corporation’ s common stock may participate in the program by making
appropriate arrangements through their bank, broker or other nominee. Information concerning this optional program is available by contacting the
Corporate Secretary at 717- 264- 6116, or: Corporate Secretary 1500 Nitterhouse Drive, P. O. Box 6010 Chambersburg, PA 17201- 6010 Dividend
Direct Deposit Program: Franklin Financial Services Corporation offers a dividend direct deposit program whereby shareholders of the Corporation’ s
common stock may choose to have their dividends deposited directly into the bank account of their choice on the dividend payment date. Information
concerning this optional program is available by contacting the Corporate Secretary at 717- 264- 646116, or: Corporate Secretary 1500 Nitterhouse
Drive, P. O. Box 6010 Chambersburg, PA 17201- 6010 Annual Meeting: The Annual Meeting of the shareholders of Franklin Financial Services
Corporation will be held Tuesday, April 23-29 , 2024-2025 at 9: 00 a. m. in a virtual meeting format only. Only shareholders will be granted access to
the meeting as described in the Franklin Financial Services Corporation 2024-2025 Proxy Statement. Websites: Franklin Financial Services
Corporation: www. franklinfin. comFarmers & Merchants Trust Company: www. fmtrust. bank Stock Information: The Corporation’ s common
stock is traded on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ FRAF . The registrar and transfer agent for Franklin Financial Services
Corporation is: Computershare P. O. Box 30170 College Station, TX 77842- 3170 1- 800- 368- 5948 Item 6. [ Reserved | +Htem-18Item 7.
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Summary of Selected Financial Data as of and for the Year
Ended December 31 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2649<Dollars in thousands, except per share) Balance Sheet Highlights Total assets $ 2,197, 841 $
1,836,039 $ 1,699,579 $ 1, 773, 806 $ 1, 535, 038 $3;269457Debt securities available for sale, at fair value 508, 604 472, 503 487, 247 530,
292397, 331 48%-873-Loans, net 1, 380, 424 1, 240, 933 1, 036, 866 983, 746 992, 915 9225-669-Deposits 1, 815,647 1, 537, 978 1, 551,448 1, 584,
359 1,354, 573 +Other borrowings 200 ., +25-000 130 , 392-000 — — — Sharcholders' equity 144, 716 132, 136 114, 197 157, 065 145, 176 2%
528-Summary of Operations Interest income $ 101, 451 $ 76, 762 $ 56, 449 $ 47, 573 $ 45, 939 $-49;235-Interest expense 43, 937 23, 125 4, 863 2,
902 3, 978 FH3-Net interest income 57, 514 53, 637 51, 586 44, 671 41, 961 42,422-Provision for credit losses- loans 1, 975 2, 589 650 (2, 100) 4,
625 23F-Provision for credit losses- unfunded commitments 8 135 — — — —Total provision for credit losses 1, 983 2, 724 650 (2, 100) 4, 625
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 55, 531 50, 913 50, 936 46, 771 37, 336 4+-885-Noninterest income 13, 679 14, 851 15, 250 19,
488 15, 084 +5;-424-Noninterest expense 55, 895 50, 011 48, 691 43, 245 39, 362 38;3+4-Income before income taxes 13,315 15, 753 17, 495 23,
014 13, 058 +8;-995Federatineome-Income tax expense 2,216 2, 1552, 557 3, 398 258 2;-880-Net income $ 11,099 $ 13, 598 $ 14,938 $ 19,616 $
12, 800 $4+6;H5-Performance Measurements Return on average assets 0. 54 % 0. 78 % 0. 83 % 1. 17 % 0. 91 %4-29-% Return on average equity
8.05% 11.39% 11.64 % 13.20 % 9. 56 %33—3+% Return on average tangible equity (1) 8. 62 % 12. 32 % 12. 52 % 14. 05 % 10. 24 % +4—22%
Efficiency ratio (1) 73.36 % 70. 75 % 71. 21 % 66. 12 % 67. 32 %-65-36-% Net interest margin, fully tax equivalent 2. 95 % 3. 31 % 3. 11 % 2. 88
% 3. 21 9%3—68-% Shareholders' Value (per common share) Diluted earnings per share $ 2. 51 $3. 10 $ 3. 36 $ 4. 42 $ 2. 93Basic 93-$3—67Bsasie
earnings per share 2.52 3. 11 3. 38 4. 44 2. 94-3—68Regutar-94Regular cash dividends paid 1. 28 1. 28 1. 28 1. 25 1. 2Book 26-+—+Beek-value 32.



69 30.23 26. 01 35. 36 33. 872930Fangible— 07Tangible book value (1) 30. 65 28. 17 23. 96 33. 34 31. 822723Market- 02Market valuc * 29.
90 31.5536.1033. 10 27. 8338-69Market-03Market value / book value ratio 91. 47 % 104. 37 % 138. 79 % 93. 61 % 81. 74 %4432-05-"% Market
value / tangible book value ratio 97. 54 % 112. 01 % 150. 67 % 99. 29 % 87. 13 %3+42—++% Price / earnings multiple year- to- date 11. 91 10. 18
10. 74 7. 49 9. 23-16-54Dtvidend-23Dividend yicld * * 4. 28 % 4. 06 % 3. 55 % 3. 87 % 4. 44 %-3-3+6-% Dividend payout ratio 50. 72 % 41. 15 %
37. 88 % 28. 16 % 40. 83 9%634+-74-% Safety and Soundness Average equity / average assets 6. 65 % 6. 82 % 7. 17 % 8. 89 % 9. 48 % 9-—F8-%Risk-
based capital ratio (Total) 13. 85 % 14. 45 % 17. 21 % 18. 41 % 17. 69 % +6-68-%-Leverage ratio (Tier 1) 7.92 % 9. 01 % 8. 95 % 8. 52 % 8. 69 %
9-92-% Common equity ratio (Tier 1) 11. 31 % 11. 82 % 14. 22 % 15. 20 % 14. 32 %+4-—82-% Nonperforming loans / gross loans 0. 02 % 0. 01 %
0.01 % 0. 74 % 0. 87 %-0-42-% Nonperforming assets / total assets 0. 01 % 0. 01 % 0. 01 % 0. 42 % 0. 57 %-6-3+% Allowance for credit loss /
loans 1.26 % 1.28 % 1. 35 % 1. 51 % 1. 66 %3-28-% Net loan (charge- offs) recoveries / average loans- 0. 03 %-0. 02 %- 0. 15 % 0. 04 % 0. 02
9%—0-067"% Assets under Management Wealth Management Services (fair value) $ 1, 169, 282 $ 1, 094, 747 $ 904, 317 $ 946, 964 $ 836, 381 $7990;
949-Held at third- party brokers (fair value) 139, 872 135, 423 116, 398 118, 046 112, 624 +27;-976-(1) See the section titled" GAAP versus Non-
GAAP Presentation" that follows. * Based on the closing price of FRAF as quoted on the Nasdaq Capital Market for all years shown. * * Based on
annualized 4th quarter dividend and year- end market value . 18Forward- Looking Statements Certain statements...... Allowance for Credit Losses
(ACL) . 19GAAP versus non- GAAP Presentations — The Corporation supplements its traditional GAAP measurements with certain non- GAAP
measurements to evaluate its performance and to eliminate the effect of intangible assets. By eliminating intangible assets, the Corporation believes it
presents a measurement that is comparable to companies that have no intangible assets or to companies that have eliminated intangible assets in
similar calculations. However, not all companies may use the same calculation method for each measurement. The Efficiency Ratio measures the cost
to generate one dollar of revenue. The non- GAAP measurements are not intended to be used as a substitute for the related GAAP measurements and
should not be read in isolation or relied upon as a substitute for GAAP measures. The following table shows the calculation of the non- GAAP
measurements. (Dollars in thousands, except per share) For the Year Ended December 31 2024 2023 2022 2021 2620-2649Return-2020Return on
Average Tangible Equity (non- GAAP) Net income $ 11,099 $ 13, 598 $ 14, 938 § 19, 616 $ 12, 800 $+6;445-Average shareholders' equity 137,
840 119, 408 128, 283 148, 637 133, 958 +22;37FLess average intangible assets (9, 016) (9, 016) (9, 016) (9, 016) (9, 016) Average shareholders'
equity (non- GAAP) 128, 824 110, 392 119, 267 139, 621 124, 942 H3;36+Return on average tangible equity (non- GAAP) 8. 62 % 12. 32 % 12.
52 % 14. 05 % 10. 24 %3+4-22-9% Tangible Book Value (per share) (non- GAAP) Shareholders' equity $ 144,716 $ 132, 136 $ 114, 197 $ 157, 065 $
145, 176 $427-528Less intangible assets (9, 016) (9, 016) (9, 016) (9, 016) (9, 016) Shareholders' equity (non- GAAP) 135, 700 123, 120 105, 181
148, 049 136, 160 H8;-542-Shares outstanding (in thousands) 4, 427 4, 371 4, 390 4, 441 4, 389 4;-353-Tangible book value (non- GAAP) 30. 65 28.
17 23. 96 33. 34 31. 02 2423-Efficiency Ratio (non- GAAP) Noninterest expense $ 55,895 $ 50, 011 $ 48, 691 $ 43, 245 $ 39, 362 $38;344-Net
interest income 57, 514 53, 637 51, 586 44, 671 41, 961 42,422-Plus tax equivalent adjustment to net interest income 938 1, 094 1, 381 1, 466 1, 407
+:393-Plus noninterest income, net of securities transactions 17, 737 15, 954 15,410 19, 271 15, 104 +5;:362-Total revenue 76, 189 70, 685 68, 377
65,408 58, 472 58;-6+7F-Efficiency ratio (non- GAAP) 73.36 % 70. 75 % 71.21 % 66. 12 % 67. 32 % 65-Forward- Looking Statements Certain
statements appearing herein which are not historical in nature are forward- looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 . 36-%%-6f4995-Such forward- looking statements refer to a future period or periods,reflecting Management” s current
v estimate,” “ anticipate,” or similar terms.Because
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views as to likely future developments,and use words “ may,” “ will,” *“ expect,” * believe,
forward- looking statements involve certain risks,uncertainties and other factors over which the Corporation has no direct control,actual results could
differ materially from those contemplated in such statements.These factors include (but are not limited to) the following:general economic
conditions,changes in interest rates,changes in the rate of inflation and product and service prices,change in the Corporation’ s cost of funds,changes
in government monetary policy,changes in government regulation and taxation of financial institutions,effects of government shutdowns and budget
negotiations,impacts of the interruption,degradation or breach in security of our information and technology systems or other technological risks and
attacks,acts of war,terrorism or geopolitical instabilities,changes in accounting policies or practices,changes in technology,the intensification of
competition within the Corporation’ s market area,and other similar factors.We caution readers not to place undue reliance on these forward- looking
statements.They only reflect Management’ s analysis as of this date.The Corporation does not revise or update these forward- looking statements to
reflect events or changed circumstances.Please carefully review the risk factors described in other documents the Corporation files from time to time
with the Securities and Exchange Commission,including the Quarterly Reports on Form 10- Q and any Current Reports on Form 8- K.Application of
Critical Accounting Policies:Disclosure of the Corporation’ s significant accounting policies is included in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.These policies are particularly sensitive requiring significant judgments,estimates and assumptions to be made by Management. Senter
20Senior management has discussed the development of such estimates,and related Management Discussion and Analysis disclosure,with the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors.The following accounting policy is identified by management to be critical to the results of
operations: Allowance for Credit Losses ( ACL). Results of Operations: Management’ s Overview The following discussion and analysis is intended
to assist the reader in reviewing the financial information presented and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
other financial data presented elsewhere herein. Summary Franklin Financial Services Corporation reported consolidated earnings of $ 11. 1 million
($ 2. 51 per diluted share) for 2024 compared with $ 13. 6 million ($ 3. 10 per diluted share) for 2023-eompared-with-$+4—9-mithon($-3—36-per
the same period in 2022-2023 . (2] Year- to- date, net interest income was $ $3-57 . 6-5 million, an increase of 47 . 82 % compared
to $ 5453 . 6 million for the same period in 2622-2023 . On a year- over- year comparison, the net interest margin was 2. 95 % for 2024 compared
to 3. 31 % ferin 2023 eemparedto3—H-%n2022- The increase in the 2623-2024 net interest margin was due primarily to a 40 . 36-46 % increase
m the yle]d on eammg> assets from -3—49%—1-11—292—2—te-4 70 % in 2023 to 5. 16 % in 2024 as a]l asset classes had higher yields in 2623-2024 —Fhis
arily » Aettor he—Feders ery ereas $ . The cost of interest- bearing liabilities
mcreased trom 9—36%461%92—2—56—1 75 % tor 2023 to 2. 68 % for 2024 . L1kew1se the cost of all depo%lts increased from 8-1 . 23 % in 2622-2023
to 1.23-89 % in 2023-2024 . (2] Average earning assets for 2623-2024 were $ 1. 983 billion compared to $ 1. 656 billion eempared-to-$—1-762
bitlion-in 26222023 , a-an deerease-increase of 2-19 . 8 %. In 2623-2024 . the average balance of interest- earning cash balances deereased-increased
$+09-125 . 2-6 mllllon (68248 . 49 %) due to support$ 200. 0 million term loan borrowing not yet fully invested
raverage-deposits-during-the-year. The average balance of the investment portfolio deereased-increased $ 48-22 . 9-2 million (94 . 6-8 %), while
the average balance of the loan portfolio increased $ H4-179 . 3-2 million (+6-15 . 87 %), over the prior year 20averages—- averages . Within the
loan portfolio, average commercial loan balances increased $ 7118 . 7 million during the year and residential mortgages increased $ 33-52 . 2-5
million. Total deposits averaged $ 1. 536-638 billion for 2023-2024 , a-an deerease-increase of $ +64-108 . 4-7 million (6-7 . 2-1 %) from the average
balance for 2022-2023 . All deposit categories reported a year- over- year decrease in average balances, except for money management and time
deposits. On a year- over- year comparison, the yield on earning assets increased +36-46 basis points from 3—46-%-12622te~4. 70 % in 2023 to 5. 16
% for %(-)2—3—2024 Whlle the cost ofmterest bedrmg lldbllltles 1mredsed -1-39-93 bds1s pomts from 0—36%—&)—1 75 % to 2 68 % over the same

Ioans was $ 2.0 mllllon compared t082.6 11110n in eempafed—te—$—6§9+heusaﬂd—fer—2-92—2—2023 —Phe—mefeas&m—t-he—pfmﬂsteﬂ—ferefeétt—bss—was



due-primarity-to-growth-in-thedoanpertfetio- The ACL ratio for loans was 1. 26 % on December 31, 2024, compared to 1. 28 % on December 31,
2023 seempared-to+—35-%onDeeember34,2022- For 2023-2024 , the provision for credit losses on unfunded commitments was $ 8 thousand
compared to $ 135 thousand eemparedto-$-0-for 20222023 . The ACL for unfunded commitments was $ 2. 0 million on December 31, 2623-2024 ,

unchanged from eempared-to-$—+—-5-mithornenDeccember 31, 2622-2023 . (2] Noninterest income was $ 13. 7 million compared to $ 14 9 million
eempared-to-$153-mitlten-in 2022-2023 . The decrease was driven primarily by a loss of $ 4+3 . 44 million fremr, net of tax loss, on the sale of
securities as part of a portfolio restructuring in the fourth quarter of 2023-2024 , which was partially offset by increases in wealth management fees
and debit card income. (2] Noninterest expense was $ 55. 9 million in 2024 compared to $ 50. 0 million in 2023
2022~ The following categories contributed to the year- over- year increase: salaries and benefits increased $ 726-thousand-3. 9 mllllon (primarily
safartes-due to a highly competitive labor market s-rerit-and peffemaﬂee—mefe&ses—health insurance ) ﬁet—eee&paﬂey—data processmg expenses
1nc1ea>ed $329-1.0 mllllOIl, and an $ 859 thousqnd mcrease (pria h W sptt-in FDIC premiums
; e H -. The effective federal income tax rate was 16 6 % for 2024 compared
to 13 7% feHn 207% which mcluded certaln feﬂeets—t-he—beﬁeﬁt—e-f—ﬂi—&é%’—t:heusaﬂd—m—tdx credits reeorded-during-the-year-not recognized in 2024 .
S a een al-21Total asscts at December 31, 2623-2024 were $ 42 . 836
198 bll]th compared to $ l. 7-99—836 bllllon at December "51 2-92—2—2023 an increase of 8-19 . 6-7 %. Significant balance sheet changes since
December 31, 2022-2023 , include: (2] Short- term interest- bedrmg_ deposlts in other banks deereased-increased $ 43-180 . 4-1 million 92-3-%)-and
the investment portfolio deereased-increased $ +4-36 . 3-1 million 2-9-%)-due to purchases made in the fourth quarter of 2024 . (7] The net loan
portfolio increased $ 204-139 . 5 million (11. 2 %) over the year- end 2023 balance, primarily from increases in commercial real estate loans of
$ 99. 6 mllllOll and ﬁrst llen l- 4 famlly res1dentlal real estate loans of $ 35. 3 million H9-7%)roverthe-year—end-2622-balanee; with
p ere (7] Deposits deereased-increased $ 277. 7 million (18. 1 %) over year-
end 2023 w1th increases in nonmterest- bearlng depos1ts of $ 17.3 mllllon, money management deposits of $ 122. 8 million and time deposits
of $ +3-183 . 5 million {6, partially offset by a $ 36 . 6 million 9-%)-everyear—end2022-with-deereases— decrease in smal-business-interest-
bearing checking deposits aceounts-and-interest—bearing-aeeounts- (7] TOIdl b01 romngs were $ -1-}9-200 0 ﬂﬁ-l-l-xeﬂ—at—yeafeﬂd—eempﬂsed-o%é
million from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (FHLB y-ane- e anlcthrough-the-Ban mFunding
Program(BFFP-). (7] Sharcholders’ equity increased $ 412 . 9-6 million from Decembu 31, 2-922—2023 Relamed Larmngs mcreased 58S -1—5
million #rnet of dividends of $ 5. 6 million paid to shareholders during 2623-2024 and-. The accumulated other comprehensive ineente-loss
(AOCI) tnereased-decreased from $ +6-40 . 3-9 million as-at year- end 2023 to $ 35. 5 million from a decrease in the fair-vatue-unrealized loss of
the investment portfolio impreved-during-due in part to the year-realization of losses on the previously mentioned security sales . At December
31, 2623-2024 , the book value of the Corporation” s common stock was $ 36-32 . 23-69 per share and tangible book value was $ 28-30 . +7-65 per
share. In Deeember-January 2623-2025 . an open market repurchase plan was approved to repurchase 150, 000 shares through December 31, 2025
everaone—yearpertod- The Bank is considered to be well- capitalized under the-regulatory guidance as of December 31, 2023-2024 . Other key
performance measurements are presented elsewhere in Item 7 of this report. A more detailed discussion of the areas that had the greatest effect on the
reported results follows. 2HNet—- Net Interest Income The most important source of the Corporation’ s earnings is net interest income, which is
defined as the difference between income on interest- earning assets and the expense of interest- bearing liabilities supporting those assets. Principal
categories of interest- earning assets are loans and securities, while deposits, short- term borrowings and long- term debt are the principal categories
of interest- bearing liabilities. For the purpose of this discussion, balance sheet items refer to the average balance for the year and net interest income
is adjusted to a fully taxable- equivalent basis. This tax- equivalent adjustment facilitates performance comparisons between taxable and tax- free
assets by increasing the tax- free income by an amount equivalent to the Federal income taxes that would have been paid if this income were taxable
at the Corporation’ s 21 % Federal statutory rate. The components of net interest income are detailed in Tables 1, 2 and 3. Table 1 shows the change
in tax- equivalent net interest income year over year. Changes in interest income and expense are driven by changes in balance (volume) and changes
in the average rate on interest- earning assets and interest- bearing liabilities. The changes attributable to rate or volume are shown in Table 2. The
yield on earning assets (Table 3) increased to 5. 16 % for 2024 from 4. 70 % for 2023 frem3—40-%Ffer2022-. The benefit provided by tax- exempt
income was $ 938 thousand +—-mithen-in 2023-2024 . Table 1. Net Interest Income Change (Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 20622-$ % Interest
income $ 101, 451 $ 76, 762 $ 56-24 , 449-$-689 32. 2Interest expense 43, 937 23, 125 20, 313-36-812 90 . Olnterestexpense 23125486318, 262
375-5Net-0Net interest income 57, 514 53, 637 543 , 877 7 58620514 6Fax2Tax equivalent adjustment 938 1, 094 5384 287156 ) (26-14 . &
3 ) Tax equivalent net interest income $ 58, 452 § 54, 731 § 52,-967-$4764-3 , 721 6 . 3-8 Fable-22Table 2 identifies increases and decreases in tax
equivalent net interest income due to either changes in average volume or to changes in average rates for interest- earning assets and interest- bearing
liabilities. Numerous and simultaneous balance and rate changes occur during the year. The amount of change that is not due solely to volume or rate
is allocated proportionally to both. 22Fabte-- Table 2. Rate- Volume Analysis of Tax Equivalent Net Interest Income 2024 Compared to 2023 2023
Compared to 2022-2022-Compared-te202Hnerease-2022Increase (Decrease) due to: Increase (Decrease) due to: Increase (Decrease) due to: (Dollars
in thousands) Volume Rate Net Volume Rate NetInterest earned on: Interest- earning deposits in other banks $ 6,567 $ 263 $ 6,830 $ (2, 571) $ 2,
495 $ (76) $H64-$2-670-52 234 nvestment—-- Investment securities: Taxable 973 1, 308 2, 281 (434) 5, 305 4, 862321362759 Nentaxable
871Nontaxable (96) (105) (201) (885) (185) (1, 070 H2423+F468-) Investment securities 877 1, 203 2,080 (1, 319) 5, 120 3, 86438+23102;
694Heans-801Loans : Residential real estate 1- 4 family: First liens 2, 406 1, 124 3,530 1, 505 778 2, 283 6—1—94—165—lumor llms and lines of credit
224361585 (19) 1, 691 1, 6721065760-865Residential- 672Residential rcal estate- construction 470 181 651 (30) 320 296-84-244-328Commereial—
290Commerecial rcal cstate 6,746 3,025 9, 771 3, 568 5, 834 9, 462-402Commercial (75) |, 047 972 849—2—1-6—7’—4—99-7€emmefera-1-65 2,483 2,
548Consumer 91 23 54811 14 354915468 -Consumer-26 80 106 (63)4242H-Loans 9, 862 5,761 15,623 5, 115 11, 186 16, 301Total 364943
2-9533-866Fetalnct change in interest income 17, 306 7, 227 24, 533 1, 225 18, 801 20, 026 5458333879 Interest expense on: Interest
checking (208) 762 554 ( 155) 1, 354 1, 199Money +99-872H-358Meney-management 1, 525 3, 456 4, 981 (90) 11, 349 11, 259-87-259Savings
(26) 16 (10) (9) 91 82Time deposnts 3,571 1, 625629 5,200 119 2, 002 2, 121Brokered deposits | -7-1—2—Savmgs—340 (982162737 Fime
2 7332-48746-) (9831441, 338 366 — 366 Deposits (86)-6, 202 5, 861 12, 063 231 14, 796 15, +671+5;-0271438+-825+
963Suberdinate-027Subordinate notes 2 (3) (1) 2 42 (-2 Federal-4Federal Reserve Bank borrowings (530) 118 (412) 2, 374 — 2, 34—
Federal-374Federal Home Loan Bank advances 9,390 (228) 9, 162 857 — 857————Fotal-857Total net change in interest expense 15, 064 5,

748 20, 812 3, 453-15-464 14 , 169-798 18, 2624401821196+ Change-262Change in tax cquivalent net interest income $ €2, 242 $ 1, 479 928§
3,692-721 $ (2,239) $4,003 $ 1, 764 $5348-$5-542-$6:830-23The following table presents average balances, tax- equivalent (T / E) interest

income, interest expense, and yields earned or rates paid on the assets or liabilities. Nonaccrual loans are included in the average loan balances. Table
3. Analysis of Net Interest Income 2024 2023 2022-Average Income or Average Average Income or Average (Dollars in thousands) balance expense
yield / rate balance expense yield / rate Interest- earning assets: Interest- earning deposits in other banks $ 176, 041 $ 9, 237 5. 25 % $ 50, 451 § 2,
407 4. 77 % $+59-610-$2-4831+--56-% Investment securities: Taxable 432, 684 17, 127 3. 96 % 406, 937 14, 846 3. 65 %424:703-9:-975-235%
Tax exempt 50, 868 1, 322 2. 60 % 54, 416 1, 523 2. 80 %-85;:566-2-5933-03-% Investment securities 483, 552 18, 449 3. 82 % 461, 353 16, 369
3. 55 %4 510;269142,-5682-46-" Loans: Residential real estate 1- 4 family: First liens 222, 572 11, 442 5. 14 % 173, 986 7, 912 4. 55 %439:-5775;
629-4-63-% Junior liens and lines of credit 76, 515 4, 635 6. 06 % 72, 623 4, 050 5. 58 %73;206-2;378-3—25-" Residential real estate- construction
28,096 1, 954 6.95 % 21, 124 1,303 6. 17 %25-3F4H-0434-66-"% Commercial real estate 747, 037 42, 975 5. 75 % 626, 817 33,204 5. 30 % 550
Commercial 241 , 7—7—2—23—554 13, 862-4-052 5 . 32-40 % Commeretal-243, 045 12, 080 4. 97 % 24+Consumer 7 , 322 645 8 395-9-532-3- 95-81 %



Censumer-0, 285 531 8. 45 % Loans 1, 323, 096 74, 703 5. 65 % 1 , 9384257143, 880 59, 080 S . 16 % Loeans-Total interest- earning assets |,
+43-982 | 886-59-689 $ 102 , 686-389 5. 16 % 1, 832-649-42-779-4—F4-%Fotal-interest—earning-assets+5-055, 684 § 77, 856 4. 70%—1—792—499—1}
57:-836-3—46-% Other assets 91, 137 95, 489 8%-300-Total assets $ 2,073,826 $ 1, 751, 173 $4-789-79%Interest- bearing liabilities: Deposits:
Interest checking $ 416, 770 $ 2, 632 0. 63 % $ 459, 447 $ 2, 078 0. 45 9%-$-543-553-$-899-0—36- Money Management 627, 163 18, 782 2. 99 %
568,521 13, 801 2 —43-%-588;-7282:-542-0-. 43 % Savings 101,335 173 0. 17 % 117, 026 183 0. 16 % +28-Time 177 , 263-+61+-6-281 7, 6154 . 68
30 % 84 Fime 9+, 512428 2, 7843415 2 . 64-86 % 64-Brokered 33 , 273-294-0-183 1, 704 5 . 46-14 % 7, 084 366 5. 17 % Total interest- bearing
deposits 1, 355, 732 30, 906 2. 28 % 1, 236, 506 18, 843 1. 52 %44324-7573;-81+6-6-29-" Subordinate notes 19, 680 1, 050 5. 34 % 19, 642 1, 051
5.35 -%—1-9—695—1—9476—34-% Federal Reserve Bank borrowings 41, 667 1,962 4. 71 % 53, 041 2, 374 4. 48 Y%————0-06-" Federal Home L()dl’l
Bank advances 219, 883 10, 019 4. 56 % 14, 704 857 5. 83 % ——8-00-%-Total interest- bearing liabilities 1, 636, 962 43, 937 2. 68 % 1, 323, 893
23,125 1. 75 % 5344362486303 6-% Noninterest- bearing deposits 282, 460 293, 001 386;+62-Other liabilities 16, 564 14, 871 5652
Shareholders' equity 137, 840 119, 408 428;283-Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 2,073,826 $ 1, 751, 173 $4-89;-799-T / E net interest
income / Net interest margin 58, 452 2. 95 % 54, 731 3. 31 %-52;9673—41-"% Tax cquivalent adjustment ( 938) ( 1, 094 H4538+) Net interest
income $ 57,514 $ 53, 637 $55-586-Net Interest Spread 2. 48 % 2. 95 % 3-Cost of Funds 2 . 84-29 % 1. 43 % Cost of Fands+-43-9%-6-29-%Cest
efDeposits 1. 23-89 % 6-1 . 23 % Provision for Credit Losses In 2623-2024 , the Bank recorded gross loan charge- offs of $ 422-560 thousand, which
were partially offset by $§ 246-186 thousand of recoveries, resulting in net loan charge- offs of $ +76-374 thousand. For 2623-2024 , the Corporation
recorded $ 2. 70 million as a pro\ ision for (.l”(.dlt loss on e*peﬂse—aﬂee&ted—beﬁeeeﬁ—the—pfeﬁ&}eﬂ—feﬁloans of$2- 6-millien-These changes resulted
in and-—- an increase the s : wih-in 2023-the allowance for credit losses
iereased-(ACL) on loans to $ 17 7 mllllon at year— end 2024 (1 26 % of total loans), compared to $ 16. 1 million at year- end 2023 (1. 28 % of
total loans) -eemparedte-$34- The provision for credit losses for unfunded commitments was $ 8 thousand for 2024 with reserve balance of $
2.0 million at year- end 2622-2024 , unchanged from year- end 2023 {4-—35%-eftetalHeans) Management closely monitors the credit quality of
the portfolio in order to ensure that an appropriate ACL is maintained. As part of this process, Management performs a comprehensive analysis of the
loan portfolio considering delinquencies trends and events, current economic forecasts and conditions, and other relevant factors to determine the
adequacy of the allowance for credit losses and the provision for credit losses. For more information, refer to the Loan Quality discussion and Table
10. 24Noninterest Income The following table presents a comparison of noninterest income for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2022-: Table 4. Noninterest Income Change (Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2822-Amount % Noninterest Income Wealth management fees $ 8, 538
$7,512 871,026 13 +52-$-366-5-. Oean-TLoan scrvice charges 987 811 176 21 7248742 8Gain-7Gain on sale of loans 565 199 366 183 776

. 2 Pepesit9Deposit scrvice charges and fees 2, 448 2, 492 2,527 35-44 ) (1. 4-8 ) Other service charges and fees 2,040 1, 852 188 10 +
F24128F- 4Debit-2Debit card income 2, 279 2, 157 122 5 186828915~ SInerease-7Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance 457 448 9
436122 8Net-0Net (losses) gains on sales of debt securities (4, 267) (1. 119) (3 9D+ 628-148 ) 281 1429~ F7Change-3Change in fair value of
equity securities 209 16 193 1, 206 {693-85-(123-. 2)-Other-30ther 423 483 269-274-131-(60) (12 . 4) +Fetal- Total $ 13,679 S 14, 851 $ +5;256-$(
399-1,172 ) (27 . 69 ) The most significant changes in noninterest income are discussed below: Wealth management fees: These fees are comprised
of asset management fees, estate administration and settlement fees, employee benefit plans, and commissions from the sale of insurance and
investment products. Asset management fees are recurring in nature and are affected by the fair value of assets under management at the time the
fees are recognized. Asset management fees totaled $ 7. 8 million for 2024 and $ 6. 9 million for 2023 md%%ﬂﬁmrfeﬁ@%%—wﬁh—ﬂuefu&ﬂeﬂs
in-value-during-the-year-affeetingfeetneome-. The fair value of trust assets under management was $ 1. 169 billion at year- end, compared to $ 1.
095 billion at the year—end s;eempared-to-$-904—3-mitherratthe-end-of 2022-2023 . Estate fees were $ 508 thousand in 2024 compared to $ 295
thousand in 2023 eompared-to-$-498-theusand-in2022-. By the nature of an estate settlement, these fees are considered nonrecurring. Commissions
from the sale of insurance and investment products inereased-decreased by $ +6758 thousand compared to 20222023 . Loan service charges: This
category includes primarily commercial letter of credit fees, commercial loan prepayment penalties, mortgage servicing fees and consumer debt
protection fees. Gain on sale of loans: This category is comprised of fees from the sale of residential mortgages with servicing released in the
secondary market. Due to fewer-higher origination volume, the Bank sold more substantialy-fewerloans in 2024 compared to 2023 eempared-to
2022~ Deposit fees: This category is comprised primarily of fees from overdrafts, an overdraft protection program, service charges, and account
analysis fees. The decrease of $ 35-44 thousand in this category was due to a lower volume of overdraft fees. Other service charges and fees: The
most significant items in this category include fees from the Bank’ s merchant card program and ATM fees. Merehant-eard-fees-inereased-$28
theusand-while-ATM fees increased $ 83-184 thousand. Debit card income: Debit card fees are comprised of both a retail and business card program.
Retail fees increased by $ 28993 thousand, while business card fees increased $ 29 thousand were-flat-year-overyear—. The business debit card
offers a cash back rewards program based on usage, while the retail debit card offers reward points based on usage. Debit card income is reported net
of reward program expense. Net (losses) gains on sales of debt securities: The Bank took losses of § -1—4 +3 mllllon on the 5dle ofm\ estment
securities as part of a portfolio restructuring during —Due-te-marketeenditions;-the was-able v dingb a1 rvestat-hig
yields-fourth quarter of 2024. The event is more thoroughly described on a Form 8- K prevnously ﬁled by the Corporatlon on October 18
2024 . 25Noninterest Expense The following table presents a comparison of noninterest expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
and2022- Table 5. Noninterest Expense (Dollars in thousands) ChangeNoninterest Expense 2024 2023 2822-Amount % Salaries and benefits $ 32,
752 $ 28, 813 $ 283,939 13 69457192~ 6Net-TNet occupancy 4, 583 4, 398 185 4 . 2Marketing and advertising 1 , 969-329-891 2, 071 (180) (
8.7) +Marke&ng—and—&d¥erﬂsmg—2—97—l—l—94§—l§6—8—l—]:eg&l—— Legal and professional 2, 133 2, 301 2-(168) (7. 3) Data processing 5 , 804 262994 -

L 792 41 , 012 21 751410~ SPennsylvanta-1Pennsylvania bank shares tax 483 745 +5448-( 463-262 ) (35.+2) FDI( insurance

1,710 851 859 100-’;’-36—1—16—16— SATFM-9ATM / debit card processing 1, 300 1, 235 65 5428193135 ). Feleeommunieations
3Telecommunications 435 405 30 7 396-9-2-. 3-Nensemee—4Nonserv1ce pension (51) (117) 66 (567 56 t684-126-. 64 ) Lcase termination —
495 —(495) — Other 4, 855 4, 022 833 20 3;:385-63718-. 8Fetal-TTotal $ 55,895 $ 50, 011 $ 48-5, 884 11 6945132062~ 78 The most
significant changes in noninterest expense are discussed below: Salaries and benefits: This category is the largest noninterest expense category and
includes expenses for salaries, health benefits, insurance, pension service, employment taxes and other employee benefit programs. This category
increased by $ H9-theusand-3. 9 million compared to the prior year from: salary and commission increases of $ 2. 1 =6-million due to merit and
annual increases, and new posmons offsetby-deereasest-health insurance expense-increases of $ 374703 thousand, incentive compensation plan
increase of $ 225-532 thousand #1, stock compensation expense 7-of $ $53-151 thousand ferineentive-eempensation-plans;-and 401K match
increase of $ 426-125 thousand npenstenserviee-eests- Sce Note 17 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional
information on benefit plans. Net Occupancy: This category includes all of the expense associated with the properties and facilities used for bank
operations such as depreciation, leases, maintenance, utilities and real estate taxes. Pepreetation-The inereased-- increase during-in 2023-2024 from
was partially due to a full-year-of-depreetation-ofitsnew headquarters-building-community office in Linglestown, Dauphin County, which

opened in the fa]l of 2024 . Legal and plofesslonal fees: Thls eatcgory eonslsts of fees pald to oumde legal eounsel eonsultants and audlt fees.

ees-inereased-by-$-3-thousand —Data processing: The Idr;:,est cost in thls cateaow is the expense dssocmted Wlth the Bank’
s core processing system and reldted services and accounted for $ 2. 6-2 million of the total data processing costs in 2024 and $ 2. 0 million in 2023
and-$2-. S—mfl-l-leﬂ-The increase in %(-)2—2—2024 was due prlmarlly to increases in software expenses Nonservice pcnsmn The deerease—change in




during2022-andtower-asset returns and amortization. Lease Termination: The lease termination in 2023 was for a long- term land lease held for a
new community office that will not be constructed. Other: The largest increases in this category were in direetorsfees-armored car expense ($ +4+
100 thousand) due to additional services and eharitable-donattons-amortization of solar tax credits ($ 4+35-235 thousand). All other increases are
due primarily to overall higher operating expenses. Provision for Income Taxes In 2623-2024 , the Corporation recorded a Federal income tax
expense of § 2. 0 million compared to $ 2. 2 million eomparedte-$2—6-million-in 20222023 . The cffective tax rate was +4-16 . 6 % for 2022-2024
and 13. 7 % for 2023, which reflects the benefit of § 367 thousand in tax credits recorded during 2023. Without the tax credits, the Bank’ s effective
tax rate was-would have been 16. 0 % in 2023 . The Corporation’ s 2024 and 2023 and2022-cffective tax rate was lower than its statutory rate due
to the effect of tax- exempt income from certain investment securities, loans, and bank owned life insurance. For a more comprehensive analysis of
Federal income tax expense refer to Note 14 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements.. 26Financial Condition One method of
evaluating the Corporation’ s condition is in terms of its sources and uses of funds. Assets represent uses of funds while liabilities represent sources
of funds. At December 31, 2023-2024 , total assets increased 8-19 . 8-7 % over the prior year to $ +2 . 84-198 billion from $ 1. 76-836 billion at the
end of 2022-2023 . Interest Earning Deposits in Other Banks: Short- term interest- earning deposits, held primarily at the Federal Reserve, deereased
increased to $ 183. 8 million at December 31, 2024 from $ 3. 6 million at December 31, 2023 eempared-, due to a new FHLB term borrowing of
$ 47200 . 0 million in at-Deeember3+;2022-2024 which ;-as-the-exeess-eash-was not fully redeployed—- deployed during 2024 inte-the-toan
portfelio-and-depesitbalanees-deereased-. Long- term interest- earning deposits decreased from $4H4—0-mithenatDeeember31;2022te-$ 6. 2 million
at December 31,2023 to $ 1. 5 million at December 31, 2024 . The average balance of interest- earning deposits deereased-increased to $ 176. 0
million in 2024 compared to $ 50. 5 million in 2023 eompared-te-$+593-mithonin2022-. Investment Securities: AFS SecuritiesThe investment
portfolio serves as a mechanism to invest funds if funding sources out pace lending activity, to provide liquidity for lending and operations, and
provide collateral for deposits and borrowings. The mix of securities and investing decisions are made as a component of balance sheet management.
Debt securities include U. S. Government Agencies, U. S. Government Agency mortgage- backed securities, non- agency mortgage- backed
securities, state and municipal government bonds, and corporate debt primarily in the form of bank- issued subordinated debt. The weighted average
life of the portfolio is 5. 8-6 years, the effective duration (which measures the change in fair value for a 1 % change in interest rates) is 3-4 . 8 %,
and $ 204177 . 4-9 million (fair value) is pledged as collateral for deposits. The Bank has no investments in a single issuer that exceeds 10 % of
shareholders equity, except for U. S. Treasuries. All securities are classified as available for sale and all investment balances refer to fair value, unless
noted otherwise. The following table presents the amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities by type at December 31 for the
past two years: Table 6. Investment Securities at Amortized Cost and Estimated Fair Value 2024 2023 2022-Amortized Fair Amortized Fair (Dollars
in thousands) Cost value Cost valueU. S. Treasury $ 36,192 $ 31, 797 $ 83, 494 § 74, 69+-$1014-980-$-96, 257 Munieipal-091Municipal 156, 528
133,592 161, 339 138, 638186;-007155;455-Cerperate-618Corporate 26, 356 24, 224 26, 336 23, 19826;:31624;239-Ageney-198Agency
mortgage & asset- backed 180, 423 169, 821 142, 565 132, 591Non 5H+63274150;-935Nen— agency mortgage & asset- backed 154, 554 149, 170
108, 185 104, 605-70;-756-65-950-Fotal-005Total $ 554, 053 $ 508, 604 $ 521, 919 $ 472, 503 $-548;:333-$-486;836-The following table presents
AFS investment securities at December 31, 2623-2024 by maturity, and the weighted average yield for each maturity presented. Actual maturities
may differ from contractual maturities because of prepayment or call options embedded in the securities. The yields presented in this table are
calculated using tax- equivalent interest and the amortized cost. Table 7. Maturity Distribution of Investment Portfolio After-one-year-Afterfive-years
Afterten-One year or less After one year through five years After five years through ten years After ten years Total Fair Fair Fair Fair Fair
(Dollars in thousands) ValueYield ValueYield ValueYield ValueYield ValueYieldAvailable for Sale U. S. Treasury § — — $ 46;824— 24,327 1. 26
23 % $ 277, 267470 1.33-57 % $ — — $ 31, 797 1. 31 % Municipal ——9, 522 2. 21 % 49, 188 2. 29 % 74, 882 2. 69+ 09 +% 133,592 2.
17 % Corporate——4 166 5. 99 % 19, 197 4. 77 % 8614 . 28 %Mumeipa-l—24 224 4 287+ 95 969443064232 % 9H267223%

e o Agency mortgage & asset- backed 93-109 2. 84-25 %
-1—2—20 -1-93—158 l 62—81 %2—7—16 -7-9—7—424 2. -7’—7—61 % 133 131 4. 43 % 169 822 3. 92 49'8-4—64%—1-32—59-1—3—95—"0 Non- agency mortgage &
asset- backed 6, 723-7026 6 . 95-64 % 13-9 , 366-108 5. 37-87 % 9853——134, 036 4 . 9297 % $2-149 , 99+170 5. 09 63-%164:005-5-72-"%
Total § 6, 8+6-7135 6 . 88-57 % § 86-67 , 57281 2. 2540 % S HF92 , 522-279 2. 59-78 % $ 267-342 , 594-910 4. 65-07 % $ 472-508 , 563-605 3.
42-63 % Table 3, previously presented, shows the two- year trend of average balances and yields on the investment portfolio. The tax- equivalent
yleld on the portfolio 1ncreased from 2-46-%r2022-+te-3. 55 % in 2023 to 3. 82 % in 2024 . U. S. Agency mortgage- backed securities and

non- agency mortgage- backed securities comprise the largest sectors by fair value of the portfolio, approximately 28

33 % and 29 % respeetively-2Trespectively . The 27Banlk—- Bank cxpects that the portfolio will continue to remain concentrated in these investment
sectors. The portfolio returned $ 7297 . 4-3 million of principal cash flow in 2623-2024 while $ 58-136 . 3 million was invested into the portfolio
during the year. Municipal Bonds: This sector holds $ 438-133 . 6 million or 28-26 % of the total portfolio and the amortized cost decreased by $ 24-4
.78 million year over year. The Bank’ s municipal bond portfolio is well diversified geographically and is comprised of both tax- exempt (35 % of
the portfolio) and taxable (65 % of the portfolio) municipal bonds. Sixty- aire-eight percent of the portfolio are general obligation bonds and thirty-
two percent are revenue bonds. The portfolio holds bonds from 454-151 issuers within 34 states. The largest dollar exposures are in the states of
Texas (45-16 %), California (13 %) and Pennsylvania (4+2-13 %). When purchasing municipal bonds, the Bank looks primarily to the underlying
credit of the issuer as a sign of credit quality and then to any credit enhancement. The entire portfolio is rated “ A ” or higher by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization. Corporate Bonds: This sector is comprised primarily of $ 9-20 . 2-1 million of subordinate debt from 44
different community bank issuers. Agency Mortgage & Asset- backed Securities (MBS): This sector holds $ 432-169 . 6-8 million, or 28-33 %, of the
total portfolio. This sector is comprised of bonds issued and guaranteed by the U. S. Government, a U. S. Government Agency, or a government
sponsored entity securitized by pools of residential mortgages and other loan assets. Non- Agency Mortgage & Asset- backed Securities (ABS): This
sector holds $ +84-149 . 8-2 million, or 22-29 %, of the total portfolio. This sector is comprised of senior private label first- lien commercial and
residential mortgages. As senior position bonds, they benefit from credit support in the form of junior tranches and reserve funds that absorb loss
prior to the senior bonds. This sector has $ 83-132 . 8-6 million of its fair value rated investment grade rated-by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations while $ 2416 . 8-6 million of its fair value is nonrated. Impairment-Allowance for Credit Losses : For securities with an
unrealized loss, the Bank considers: (1) the extent to which the fair value is less than amortized cost; (2) adverse conditions specifically related to the
security, industry or geographic area; (3) the payment structure of the debt security and the likelihood of the issuer being able to make payments that
increase in the future; (4) failure of the issuer of the security to make scheduled interest or principal payments; and (5) any changes to the rating of
the security by a rating agency. In addition, the Bank considers whether it intends to sell these securities or whether it will be forced to sell these
securities before the earlier of amortized cost recovery or maturity. The Bank does not have the intent to sell and does not believe it will more likely
than not be required to sell any of these securities prior to a recovery of their fair value to amortized cost. The impairmentidentified-en-debt securities
in a loss position and subject to evaluation at December 31, 2024 and 2023, was-were determined not to be attributable to credit related factors;
therefore, the Bank does not have an allowance for credit loss for these investments. During 2023-2024 , $ 46-42 . +-4 million of securities were sold
as part of a portfolio restructuring to take advantage of higher market interest rates. The realized pre- tax loss on these sales was $ +4 . +3 million.
Equity Securities at Fair ValueThe Corporation owns one equity investment with a readily determinable fair value. At December 31, 2623-2024 , this
investment was reported at fair value ($ 427166 thousand) with changes in value reported through income in 2023-2024 . Restricted Stock at
CostThe Bank held $ 2-8 . 4-8 million of restricted stock at the end of 2023-2024 of which all but $ 30 thousand 2—4-mitten-is stock in the FHLB,
carried at a cost of $ 100 per share. FHLB stock is evaluated for impairment primarily based on an assessment of the ultimate recoverability of its




cost. As a government sponsored entity, FHLB has the ability to raise funding through the U. S. Treasury that can be used to support its operations.
There is not a public market for FHLB stock and the benefits of FHLB membership (e. g., liquidity and low- cost funding) add value to the stock
beyond purely financial measures. If FHLB stock were deemed to be impaired, the write- down for the Bank could be significant. Management
intends to remain a member of the FHLB and believes that it will be able to fully recover the cost basis of this investment. Loans: The loan portfolio
increased by $9-11 . 62 % ($ 205-141 . 9-1 million) in 2623-2024 , due primarily to an increase of $ 439-99 . 5-6 million in commercial real estate
loans and $ 35. 3 million in residential real estate 1- 4 family loans . Average gross loans for 2023-2024 increased by $ H4-179 . 3-2 million to $
1. +44-323 billion. Commercial real estate , mortgage and consumer loans showed an increase in average balances during the year, which was
partially offset by a decline in commercial home-eguity-loans during the year andlines-eferedit-and-eonstraettortoans-. The yield on the portfolio
increased in 2623-2024 to 5. 65 % from 5. 16 % frem4—44-%-in 2022-2023 . Table 3, previously presented, shows the average balances and yields
earned on loans for the past two years. 28The following table shows loans outstanding, by class, as of December 31 for the past 2 years. Table 8.
Loan Portfolio Change (Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2822-Amount % Residential real estate 1- 4 family Consumer first lien $ 181, 780 $ 142,
017 $ 8539 , 763 28 +66-$-56;851-66-. 8Commereial-0Commercial first lien 58, 821 63, 271 64(4 , 450) (7 70215692~ 0) 5Fetal-- Total first
liens 240, 601 205, 288 +46-35 , 313 17 868-58;426-39-. &2 Consumer junior lien and lmes of credit 76, 035 68, 752 69-7 , 283 10 561809 2
Geﬂa-mefera-l-6Commerc1alJumor liens and lines of credit 6, 199 3, 809 4-2 , 390 62 27348+ HFetat-TTotal junior liens and lines of credit 82,
234 72,561 9,743-673 13 568812 Sy-Fetal-3Total residential real estate 1- 4 family 322, 835 277, 849 220-44 | 986 16 556-5729326-. 6-2
Residential real estate construction Consumer 20, 742 13, 837 43-6 , 905 49 998(F)+6-. 5)-Commereial-9Commercial 11, 685 12, 063 +6,485-(378)
3. 1 ) 7 5781t5—+Fetal- Total residential real estate construction 32, 427 25, 900 24:-393+-567-6 , 527 25 . 2 Commercial real estate 803, 365 703,
767 564-99 , 598 14 20+1439,476-24-. Fcommeretal-2Commercial 230, 597 242, 654 235-(12 , 057) (5§ 6626523~ 0) Total commercial 1, 033,
962 9406, 421 799-87 , 541 9 8931446;-52848- 3-2 Consumer 8, 853 6, 81562, 038 29 +99-616-9- 9Total loans 1, 398, 077 1, 256, 985 +141 ., 092
11 654-041-265;94419-. 6Less-2Less : Allowance for fean-credit losses ( 17, 653) ( 16, 052) ( +HH75€1, 877601 ) 43-10 . 2Net-0Net loans $ 1,
380,424 $ 1, 240, 933 § +;-636;866-$204-66719-139 , 491 11 . 72 Residential real estate: This category is comprised of first lien loans and, to a
lesser extent, junior liens and lines of credit secured by residential real estate, as well as loans made to individuals secured by unimproved
noncommercial real estate. Total residential real estate loans increased $ 5745 . 3-0 million in 2623-2024 , primarily in consumer first lien loans. In
2023-2024 , the Bank originated $ 123. 1 million in mortgages compared to $ 92. 4 million in mertgagescompared-te-$-8+—Fmithonin2022-2023 ,
including approximately $ +4-43 . 6-1 million for sale in the secondary market. The Bank does not originate or hold any loans that would be
considered sub- prime or Alt- A and does not generally originate mortgages outside of its primary market area. Commercial purpose loans in this
category represent loans made for various business needs but are secured with residential real estate. In addition to the real estate collateral, it is
possible that additional security is provided by personal guarantees or UCC filings. These loans are underwritten as commercial loans and are not
originated to be sold. Residential real estate construction: The largest component of this category, $ 43-20 . 8-7 million, represents loans for
individuals to construct personal residences, while loans to residential real estate developers and home builders totaled $ 42-11 . +7 million at
December 31, 2623-2024 . The Bank’ s exposure to residential construction loans is concentrated primarily in south central Pennsylvania. Real estate
construction loans, including residential real estate and land development loans, occasionally provide an interest reserve in order to assist the
developer during the development stage when minimal cash flow is generated. Commercial real estate (CRE): This category includes commercial,
mdustrml dnd farm loans, Whuc. rml estate serves as the pumdry u)lldtcml t()r the l()dll Thls loan Lat%ory 1n<.1(.ds(.d by S -1-39-99 5—6 million over

Peﬂﬁs-ylﬂvamﬁ— The three largest growth seetors by collateral in %92—3—2024 were apartment bulldmgs, hotels & motels, and ofﬁee bu1ldm gs 3
apartmentunits-and-developmentdand-which totaled $ H-49 . 8-1 million. Included in commercial real estate are approximately § $22-615. 0 million
of nonowner occupied loans located in the Bank’ s market area of south- central Pennsylvania . 29The following table presents the largest
sectors by collateral in the commercial real estate category: (Dollars in thousands) December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023Commercial Real
Estate (CRE) Sectors Amount % of CRE Amount % of CREApartment buildings $ 146, 661 18 % $ 120, 180 17 % Hotels & motels 97, 460
12 % 80, 670 11 % Office buildings 92, 926 12 % 87, 137 12 % Shopping centers 82, 518 10 % 68, 478 10 % Development land 66, 645 8 %
62,439 9 % Also included in CRE are real estate construction loans totaling $ 434207 . 9-1 million. At December 31, 2023-2024 , the Bank had $ 63
71 . 4-9 million in real estate construction loans funded with an interest reserve and capitalized $ +-3 . 42 million of interest in 2623-2024 from these
reserves on active projects for commercial construction. Real estate construction loans are monitored on a regular basis by either an independent
third- party inspector or the assigned loan officer depending on loan amount or complexity of the project. This monitoring 29preeess—- process
includes, at a minimum, the submission of invoices or AIA documents (depending on the complexity of the project) detailing costs incurred by the
borrower, on- site inspections, and a signature by the assigned loan officer for disbursement of funds. All real estate construction loans are
underwritten in the same manner, regardless of the use of an interest reserve. Commercial: This category includes commercial, industrial, farm,
agricultural, and tax- free loans. Collateral for these loans may include business assets or equipment, personal guarantees, or other non- real estate
collateral. Commercial loans inereased-decreased $ 712 . | million over the %922—2023 endmLy bﬂl"mce At Decembe1 31, %92—3—2024 the Bank had
dpploxnﬂately $ -1—1-3—105 1mll10n of tax- free lodns in 1ts portfollo —Fheta orstb S are—pub A 6

ol PPP loans lhal are 100 % guamnteed by lhe SBA compared to$ -1—7-9-57 lhousand at Deeembel 31, 2—92—2—2023 The followmg table presents the
largest sectors by industry in the commercial category: (Dollars in thousands) December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023Commercial Amount %
of Commercial Amount % of CommercialPublic administration $ 43, 184 19 % $ 44, 717 18 % Utilities 38, 498 17 % 41, 961 17 % Real
estate, rental & leasing 23, 162 10 % 25, 016 10 % Retail trade 18, 267 8 % 18, 589 8 % Manufacturing 16, 930 7 % 17, 254 7 %
Participations: At December 31, 2023-2024 , the outstanding commercial participations were $ 97107 . 8-2 million (9. 5-6 % of commercial purpose
loans and 7. 87 % of total gross loans), compared to $ 76-97 . 6-8 million (89 . +5 % of commercial purpose loans and 6=7 . 8 % of total gross
loans) at the prior year- end. The Bank”’ s total exposure (including unfunded commitments) to purchased participations was $ 133. 1 million at
December 31, 2024 and $ 135. 4 million at December 31, 2023 and-$-96-0-mithonatDeeember314;:2022- The loan participations are comprised of
$ 26-28 . -4 million of commercial loans and $ #-78 . 8 million of CRE loans, reported in the respective loan segment. Consumer loans: This
category is comprised of installment loans and personal lines of credit and increased $ 6+6-2. 0 thousand in 2024 over 2023 ever2622-ending
balances. Fable-30Table 9. Maturities and Interest Rate Terms of Selected Loans The following table presents the stated maturities (or earlier call
dates) of selected loans as of December 31, 2623-2024 . Less than Over (Dollars in thousands) 1 year 1- 5 years 5- 15 years 15 years TotalLoans:
Residential real estate 1- 4 family Fixed rate § 2-3 , 510-644 $ 16-8 , 270-$545-405 ;- 746-$ +6-38 , 6+6-646 $ 74-19 , 542435 $ 70, 130 Variable rate 2
9, 84613-152 8 , 248-56-339 55 , 24+0-13+757 179 , 633-263-457 252 , 3675-705 12 , 35623-796 16 , 488161744 94 , 956147403 198 , 049277
892 322 . 849Residential-835Residential real estate construction Fixed rate 2585 — 27 439 19 ———3- 698143-923 20 , 837205 Variable ratc 6-7 ,
+64-5-611 3 , 25+-FH4—131 944 536 12, 063-6-222 7 , 240-5-866 3 , 25+-74143-131 971 20 , 69825459 32 , 900Cemmereial-427Commercial real
estate Fixed rate 4-12 , 256-251 69, 301 71, %494-8—599—1—54—}89#aﬂablefate4§—249—1%9—964—3+9—889-63-638 — 153 , 190 455-549;,-58749;
520192:304-398,-479-63-455-703-F6Fcommeretat-Fixedrate+-753-42,372-55;326-366-99-817Variable rate 43, 244-19-216 154 , 666-3+764 398
, 889-48-156 54 , +28-142-039 650 , 83744-175 55 , 96761467 224 , 578-87-065 469 . 235-48-794 54 , 494-242-039 803 . 654Consumer
365Commercial Fixcd rate +6+-2, 670 33 4-1-96—1—7—1—, 5664-873 50 . 6(-)3—795 — 87, 338 Variable rate 49, 119 15, 088 37 674 41, 378 143, 259 51,



789 48, 961 88, 469 41, 378 230, 597Consumer Fixed rate 105 3, 080 630 1, 501 5, 316 Variable rate 771 1, 347 1, 419 — 3, 537 876 356-980—
4,427 2, 049 2429772-775-1. 497501 8, 853 $ 128, 794 $ 297, 328 $ 655, 686 $ 316, 269 $ 1. 398 566-6-, 077 $15-$107-069-$-285,796-5-589;
858-§274:262-51256;-985-Loan Quality: Management utilizes a risk rating scale ranging from 1- Prime to 9- Loss to evaluate loan quality. This
risk rating scale is used primarily for commercial purpose loans. Consumer purpose loans are identified as either a pass or substandard rating based
on the performance status of the loans. Substandard consumer loans are loans that are 90 days or more past due and still accruing. Loans rated 1 — 4
are considered pass credits. Loans that are rated 5- Pass Watch are credits that have been identified as credits that are likely to warrant additional
attention and monitoring. Loans rated 6- Other Asset Especially Mentioned (OAEM) or worse begin to receive enhanced monitoring and reporting by
the Bank. Loans rated 7- Substandard or 8- Doubtful exhibit the greatest financial weakness and present the greatest possible risk of loss to the Bank.
Nonaccrual loans are rated no better than 7- Substandard. The following represent some of the factors used in determining the risk rating of a
borrower: cash flow, debt coverage, liquidity, management, and 30eelateral-- collateral . Risk ratings, for pass credits, are generally reviewed
annually for term debt and at renewal for revolving or renewing debt. The Bank monitors overall loan quality of the portfolio by reviewing three
primary measurements: (1) loans rated 6- OAEM or worse (collectively “ watch list ), (2) delinquent loans, and (3) net- charge- offs. Watch list
loans exhibit financial weaknesses that increase the potential risk of default or loss to the Bank. However, inclusion on the watch list, does not by
itself, mean a loss is certain. The watch list includes both performing and nonperforming loans. Watch list loans totaled $ 4721 . 2-5 million at year-
end compared to $ H-17 . 62 million one year earlier. Included in the watch list are $ 347266 thousand of nonaccrual loans at year- end 2623-2024 ,
compared to § +26-147 thousand at year- end 2622-2023 . The composition of the watch list (loans rated 6, 7 or 8), by primary collateral, is shown in
Note 6 of the accompanying financial statements. Delinquent loans are a result of borrowers’ cash flow and / or alternative sources of cash being
insufficient to repay loans. The Bank’ s likelihood of collateral liquidation to repay the loans becomes more probable the further behind a borrower
falls, particularly when loans reach 90 days or more past due. Management monitors the performance status of loans by the use of an aging report.
The aging report can provide an early indicator of loans that may become severely delinquent and possibly result in a loss to the Bank. See Note 6 in
the accompanying financial statements for information on the aging of payments in the loan portfolio. Nonaccruing loans generally represent
Management’ s determination that the borrower will be unable to repay the loan in accordance with its contractual terms and that collateral
liquidation may or may not fully repay both interest and principal. It is the Bank’ s policy to evaluate the probable collectability of principal and
interest due under terms of loan contracts for all loans 90- days or saere-31more , nonaccrual loans, or impaired loans. Further, it is the Bank’ s
policy to discontinue accruing interest on loans that are not adequately secured and in the process of collection. Upon determination of nonaccrual
status, the Bank subtracts any current year accrued and unpaid interest from its income, and any prior year accrued and unpaid interest from the
allowance for loan losses. Management continually monitors the status of nonperforming loans, the value of any collateral and potential for risk of
loss. Nonaccrual loans are rated no better than 7- Substandard. The Bank’ s Loan Management Committee reviews these loans and risk ratings on a
quarterly basis in order to proactively identify and manage problem loans. In addition, a committee meets monthly to discuss possible workout
strategies for all credits rated 7- Substandard or worse. Management also tracks other commercial loan risk measurements including high loan to
value loans, concentrations, participations and policy exceptions and reports these to the Board Enterprise Risk Management Committee of the Board
of Directors. The Bank also uses an external loan review consultant to assist with internal loan review with a goal of reviewing up to 80 % of
commercial loans each year. The FDIC defines certain supervisory loan- to- value lending limits. The Bank’ s internal loan — to- value limits are all
equal to or have a lower loan- to- value limit than the supervisory limits. However, in certain instances, the Bank may make a loan that exceeds the
supervisory loan- to- value limit. At December 31, 2622-2024 , the Bank had loans of $ 43-14 . 71 million (1. 40 % of gross loans) that exceeded the
supervisory loan- to value limit, compared to 1. 2-1 % at the prior year end. Loan quality, as measured by nonaccrual loans, totaled $ 266 thousand
at December 31, 2024 compared to $ 147 thousand at December 31, 2023 eempared-to-$120-theusand-at Deeember34;2022-and the
nonperforming loan to total loans ratio was 0. 02 % at December 31, 2024 compared to 0. 01 % at December 31, 2023 and2022-. Loans past due
90- days or more, but still accruing, totaled $ 5-2 thousand at December 31, 2623-2024 compared to $ 5 thousand at the prior year end . In
addition to monitoring nonaccrual loans, the Bank also closely monitors loans to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty when, based on current
information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all interest and principal payments due according to the originally
contracted terms of the loan agreement. Modifications to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty may include interest rate reductions, principal or
interest forgiveness, forbearances, term extensions, and other actions intended to minimize economic loss and to avoid foreclosure or repossession of
collateral . At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank had no modified loans to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty . Allowance for
Credit Losses: Allowance for Credit Losses — Loans The ACL for loans is established through provisions for credit losses charged against income.
Loans deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the ACL, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the ACL. The ACL for loans is an
estimate of the losses expected to be realized over the life of the loan portfolio. The ACL is determined for two distinct categories of loans: 1) loans
evaluated individually for expected credit losses (specific reserve), and 2) loans evaluated collectively for expected credit losses (pooled reserve).
Management’ s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the ACL for loans is based on the Bank’ s past loan loss experience, known and inherent risks
in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’ s ability to repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of
the loan portfolio, current economic forecasts and conditions, diversification of the loan portfolio, delinquency statistics, results of internal loan
reviews, borrowers’ actual or perceived financial and managerial strengths, and other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it
requires 3+material-- material assumptions and estimates that may be susceptible to significant change, including the amounts and timing of future
cash flows expected to be received on loans evaluated individually. Loans evaluated individually for credit losses are primarily commercial purpose
loans that do not share similar characteristics with those loans evaluated in the pool. These loans may exhibit performance characteristics where it is
probable that the Bank will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the
loan agreement. All commercial purpose loans greater than $ 250 thousand and rated Substandard (7), Doubtful (8) or on nonaccrual status may be
considered for individual evaluation. Impairment is measured on a loan- by- loan basis by one of the following methods: the fair value of the
collateral if the loan is collateral dependent, the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’ s effective interest rate or the
loan’ s obtainable market price. Commercial purpose loans with a balance less than $ 250 thousand, and consumer purpose loans are not evaluated
individually for a specific reserve but are included in the pooled reserve calculation. Loans that are evaluated for a specific reserve, but not needing a
specific reserve are not included in the pooled reserve calculation. The Corporation has elected to exclude accrued interest receivable from the
measurement of the ACL. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, any outstanding current accrued interest is reversed against income and prior
year accrued interest is deducted from the ACL. The pooled reserve represents the ACL for pools of homogenous loans, not evaluated individually.
The pooled reserve is calculated using a quantitative and qualitative component for the loan pools. Fhe-32The following inputs are used to calculate
the quantitative component for the loan pool: (2] Segregating loans into homogeneous pools by the FRB Call Code which is primarily a collateral-
based and secondarily a purpose- based segmentation. (2] The average remaining life of each pool is calculated using the weighted average remaining
maturity method (WARM). The WARM method produces an estimated remaining balance by pool, by year, until maturity. (2] A historical credit loss
rate is calculated for each pool, using the average historical loss, by FRB Call Code, for a peer group of Pennsylvania community banks over the last
eight quarters. The loss rate is calculated over a historical period the Bank believes best represents a period, based on a reasonable and supportable
forecast, that will be similar to the next four quarters. (2] The historical credit loss rate is applied to each WARM bucket though the initial four
quarter forward- looking period. (2] At the end of the forward- looking period, the credit loss rate applied to each WARM bucket reverts to the peer
group historical loss rate for the respective pool. (2] Collectively these estimated losses represent the quantitative component of the pooled reserve.



The qualitative component for the pool utilizes a risk matrix comprised of eight risk factors and assigns a risk level to each factor. The risk factors
give consideration to changes in: lending policy, procedures and practice; economic conditions; nature and volume of loans; experience of lending
team; volume of past due loans; quality of the loan review system; concentrations of credit; and other external factors. The risk factors are weighted
to reflect Management’ s estimate of how the factor affects potential losses. The risk levels within each factor are measured in basis points and range
from minimal risk to very high risk and are determined independently for commercial loans, residential mortgage loans and consumer loans. The
ACL for pooled loans is the sum of the quantitative and qualitative loss estimates. Allowance for Credit Losses — Unfunded Commitments The ACL
for unfunded commitments is recorded in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. The ACL represents management’ s estimate of expected
losses from unfunded commitments and is determined by estimating future usage of the commitments, based on historical usage. The estimated loss is
calculated in a manner similar to that used for the ACL for loans, previously described. The ACL is increased or decreased through the provision for
credit losses. 32Fhe-33The following table shows the allocation of the allowance for teas-credit losses and other loan performance ratios, by class,
as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-: Table 10. Loan Performance Ratios (Dollars in thousands) Residential Real Estate 1- 4 Family Junior
Liens & Commercial First Liens Lines of Credit Construction Real Estate Commercial Consumer HnaHeeatedTFotal2023-Total2024 [oans at
December 31, 2024 $ 240, 601 $ 82,234 $ 32, 427 $ 803, 365 $ 230,597 $ 8, 853 $ 1, 398, 077 Average Loans for 2024 222, 572 76, 515 28, 096
747, 037 241, 554 7, 322 1, 323, 096 Nonaccrual Loans at December 31, 2024 — — — — 266 — 266 Allowance for Credit Losses at December
31,2024 1, 497 461 376 12, 004 3, 182 133 17, 653 Net Recoveries / (Charge- offs) for 2024 3 — 14 2 (329) (64) (374) Loans / Total Gross
Loans at December 31, 2024 17 % 6 % 2 % 57 % 16 % 1 % 100 % Nonaccrual Loans / Total Gross Loans at December 31, 2024 0. 00 % 0.
00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.12 % 0. 00 % 0. 02 % Allowance for Credit Loss / Gross Loans at December 31, 2024 0. 62 % 0. 56 % 1. 16 % 1. 49
% 1.38 % 1. 50 % 1. 26 % Net Recoveries (Charge- offs) / Average Loans for 2024 0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 05 % 0. 00 %- 0. 14 %- 0. 87 %- 0. 03
% Allowance for Credit Loss / Nonaccrual Loans at December 31, 2024 6, 636. 47 % 2023 Loans at December 31, 2023 $ 205, 288 $ 72, 561 $
25,900 $ 703, 767 $ 242, 654 $ 6, 815 $—F8 1, 256, 985 Average Loans for 2023 173, 986 72, 623 21, 124 626, 817 243, 045 6, 285 —1, 143, 830
147 Allowance for Credit Losses at December 31, 2023 1, 296 419 296 10, 657 3,

290 94 —16, 052 Net Recoveries / (Charge- offs) for 2023 2 — 49 1 (193) (35) —(176) Loans / Total Gross Loans at December 31, 2023 16 % 6 %
2% 56 % 19 % 1 % —100 % Nonaccrual Loans / Total Gross Loans at December 31, 2023 0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 06 % 0. 00 % —0
01 % Allowance for Credit Loss / Gross Loans at December 31, 2023 0. 63 % 0. 58 % 1. 14 % 1. 51 % 1. 36 % 1. 38 % —1. 28 % Net Recoveries
(Char;:,e offs) / Average Loans for 2023 0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 23 0 0 0. 00 %- 0. 08 %- O 56 %— 0. 02 % Allowance for Lredlt Loss / Nonaccrual

Goodwrll The Bank has $ 9 O mllhon ofgoodwrll recorded on its bahnce sheet as the result Ofcorpordte acqursltlons Goodwrl] is not amort17ed nor
deductible for tax purposes. However, goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with ASC Topic 350. Goodwill was tested
for impairment as of August 31, 2623-2024 . The 2023-2024 test was conducted using a qualitative assessment method that requires the use of
significant assumptions in order to make a determination of impairment. These assumptions may include, but are not limited to: macroeconomic
factors, banking industry conditions, banking merger and acquisition trends, the Bank’ s historical financial performance, the Corporation’ s stock
price, forecast Bank financial performance, and change of control premiums. Management determined the Bank’ s goodwill was likely not impaired
in 2623-2024 and did not make a further assessment. The 2022-2023 impairment test was also conducted using a qualitative assessment and
Management determined the Bank’ s goodwill was likely not impaired in 2622-2023 and did not make a further assessment. At December 31, 2623
2024 , Management subsequently considered certain qualitative factors affecting the Corporation and determined that it was not likely that the results
of the prior test had changed, and it determined that goodwill was not impaired at year- end. 33Bepesits-34Depeosits : The Bank depends on deposits
generated in the normal course of business as its primary source of funds. The Bank offers numerous deposit products including demand deposits
(noninterest and interest- bearing accounts), savings, money management accounts, and time deposits (certificates of deposits / CDs) to retail,
commercial, and municipal customers. Table 11 shows a comparison of the major deposit categories over a two- year period at December 31. Table
3, presented previously, shows the average balance of the major deposit categories and the average cost of these deposits over a two- year period.
Table 11. Deposits Change (Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2622-Amount % Noninterest- bearing checking $ 290, 346 $ 273, 050 $ 299-17 , 23+%
26-296 6 ~1+8H8-. 3 H-Interest- bearing checking 417, 870 454, 517 496;-533-( 42-36 , 6+6-647 ) (8. 5-1 ) Money management 694, 880 572, 058
569-122 , 822 21 585-2,473-0-. 4-5 Savings 96, 646 105, 907 428,709+ 22-9 , 862-261 ) (+78 . 7) Time deposits 315, 905 132, 446 57183 , 459 138
390-75;056-136-. 85 Total § 1, 815,647 $ 1, 537,978 $ 277, 669 18. | 555448-$-(13;470)-€0-9)-Noninterest- bearing checking: This category
deereased-increased $ 26-17 . 2-3 million while the average balance decreased by $ 43-10 . +-5 million for the year. As a noninterest bearing account,
these deposits contributed approximately 36-37 basis points to the net interest margin. Interest- bearing checking: This category saw a decrease of $
42-36 . 8-6 million in the ending balance compared to the prior year and a decrease of $ 84-42 . 47 million compared to the prior year average
primarily , in retail accounts in 2623-2024 . The cost of these accounts increased by 28-18 basis points year over year . Money management: The
year over year balance increased $ 2-122 . 5-8 million and the average balance deereased-increased $ 26-58 . 2-6 million compared to the 26222023
average balance. The cost of this product increased by 266-56 basis points during the year as market rates increased. Savings: Savings accounts
decreased $ 22-9 . 8-3 million during the year. The cost of this product increased by &1 basis points during the year as market rates increased. Time
deposits: Time deposits increased by $ 75-183 . +-5 million in 2623-2024 with an increase in the average balance of § 27-119 . 2-0 million as
customers locked in higher interest rates. The cost of these accounts increased from 3 . 46-04 % to 3-4 . 64-43 % as market rates increased. Included in
this category is $ 87. 1 million of brokered CDs, which increased $ 78. 4 million over the prior year end balance of $ 8. 7 million efbrekered
€DBs-. Reciprocal deposits: At year- end 2023-2024 , the Bank had $ 237-288 . 8-9 million placed in the IntraFi Network deposit program ($ 37124 .
-0 million in interest- bearing checking and $ +86-164 . 8-9 million in money management) and $ 39. 6 —4-million of time deposits placed into the
CDARS program. These programs allow the Bank to offer full FDIC coverage to large depositors, but with the convenience to the customer of only
having to deal with one bank. The Bank solicits these deposits from within its market and it believes they present no greater risk than any other local
deposit. Only reciprocal deposits that exceed 20 % of liabilities are considered brokered deposits. At December 31, 2623-2024 , the Bank’ s reciprocal
deposits were +5-16 . 5-2 % of total liabilities. The Bank continually reviews different methods of funding growth that include traditional deposits and
other wholesale sources. Competition from other local financial institutions, internet banks, credit unions and brokerages will continue to be a
challenge for the Bank in its efforts to attract new and retain existing deposit accounts. This competition is not expected to lessen in the future.
Uninsured deposits: Aggregate estimated uninsured deposits at December 31, 2023-2024 were $ 411. 6 million (22. 7 % of total deposits)
compared to $ 299. 9 million (19. 5 %e%tet&depeﬁts)—eempaﬁed—te%%mﬂ%m&%—}% of total deposits) at December 31, 2622-2023 utilizing
Call Report methodology . Certain Bank deposits may not be insured but are fully collateralized by other assets. The Bank estimates that
approximately 94-85 % of its deposits are FDIC insured or collateralized as of December 31, 2023-2024 . 34A+35At December 31, 20623-2024 , time
deposits in excess of the FDIC insurance limit and time deposits that are otherwise uninsured by maturity were as follows: Table 12. Time Deposits of



$ 250, 000 or More (Dollars in thousands) Individual Instruments that Meet or Exceed FDIC Insurance Limit Time Deposits that Meet or Exceed
FDIC Insurance Limit Maturity distribution: Within three months § 24-26 , 544-648 $ +7-18 , 294-398 Over three through six months 8-15 , #54-170
6,004-920 Over six through twelve months 9-32 . 6267615 29 , 426-865 Over twelve months 42 | 475978 |, 475-478 Total $ 44-77 , 399411 $ 3+
56 ,899-661 Borrowings: As of -Sheft——term—Berfewmgs—At—December 31 %92—3—2024 the chk hdd outstandmg borrowmgs of $ 99—200 0
million beﬁewed-m a term loan trom he-Fe oFg : g 4

-88—4—mﬂ-hen— The -F-H-EB—proceeds of the term loan were used to restructure borrowmgs have—a—b-}ended-r&tee-%—%%rand to fund expected
loan growth are-due-during-the-third-quarter £ 2024 Leng—termDPebt:-On August 4, 2020, the Corporation completed the sale of a subordinated
debt note offering. The Corporation sold $ 15. 0 million of subordinated debt notes with a maturity date of September 1, 2030. These notes are
noncallable for 5 years and carry a fixed interest rate of 5 % per year for 5 years and then convert to a floating rate OfSOFR plus 4. 93 % per year for
the remainder of the term. The notes can be redeemed at par beginning 5 years prior to maturity. The Corporation also sold $ 5. 0 million of
subordinated debt notes with a maturity date of September 1, 2035. These notes are noncallable for 10 years and carry a fixed interest rate of 5. 25 %
per year for 10 years and then convert to a floating rate of SOFR plus 4. 92 % per year for the remainder of the term. The notes can be redeemed at
par beginning 5 years prior to maturity. The notes are structured to qualify as Tier 2 capital for the Corporation and any funds it invests in the Bank
qualify as Tier 1 capital at the Bank. The Corporation paid an issuance fee of 2 % of the total issue and is being amortized to the maturity date of
each issue on a pro rata bas1s The notes are recorded on the consohdated balance sheet net ofunamortlzed debt issuance costs. The proceeds are

.Jraﬂuary—?_-GQ—S— Shareholders Equrty Shareholders equrty mcreased by $ -1—7—12 9—6 mrlhon to $ -1-32—144 -1—7 mrlhon at December 31 %92—3—2024
Retained earnings increased $ 8-5 . +-5 million in 2623-2024 from earnings of $ 43-11 . 6-1 million offset by dividends paid of § 5. 6 million ($ 1. 28
per share). The dividend payout ratio was 46-50. 7 % in 2024 compared to 41 . 2 % in 2023 eemparedteo379-%12022- The Board of Directors
frequently authorizes the repurchase of the Corporation” s $ 1. 00 par value common stock. Information regarding stock repurchase plans in place
during the year are included in Item 5 Market for Registrant’ s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities. Additional information on Shareholders’ Equity is reported in Note 20 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The
Corporation’ s dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP) allows for shareholders to purchase additional shares of the Corporation’ s common stock by
reinvesting cash dividends paid on their shares or through optional cash payments. The Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP) added $ 1. 4-7 million to
capital during 2623-2024 . This total was comprised of § 1. 0 million from the reinvestment of quarterly dividends and $ 342-730 thousand of
optional cash purchases. A strong capital position is important to the Corporation as it provides a solid foundation for the future growth of the
Corporation, as well as instills confidence in the Bank by depositors, regulators and investors, and is considered essential by Management. The
Corporation is continually exploring other sources of capital as part of its capital management plan for the Corporation and the Bank. 35€Cemmeon—-
Common measures of adequate capitalization for banking institutions are capital ratios. These ratios indicate the proportion of permanently
committed funds to the total asset base. Guidelines issued by federal and state regulatory authorities require both banks and bank holding companies
to meet minimum leverage capital ratios and risk- based capital ratios. The leverage ratio compares Tier 1 capital to average assets while the risk-
based ratio compares Tier 1 and total capital to risk- weighted assets and off- balance- sheet activity in order to make capital levels more sensitive to
the risk profiles of individual banks. Tier 1 capital is comprised of common stock, additional paid- in capital, retained earnings and components of
other comprehensive income, reduced by goodwill and other intangible assets. Total capital is comprised of Tier 1 capital plus the allowable portion
of the allowance for loan losses. Fhe-36The Corporation, as a bank holding company, is required to comply with the capital adequacy standards
established by Federal Reserve Board. The Bank is required to comply with capital adequacy standards established by the FDIC. In addition, the
Pennsylvania Department of Banking also requires state- chartered banks to maintain a 6 % leverage capital level and 10 % risk- based capital,
defined substantially the same as the federal regulations. The Corporation and the Bank are subject to the capital requirements contained in the
regulation generally referred to as Basel I1I. The Basel 11 standards were effective for the Corporation and the Bank, effective January 1, 2015. Basel
III imposes significantly higher capital requirements and more restrictive leverage and liquidity ratios than those previously in place. The capital
ratios to be considered *“ well capitalized ” under Basel III are: (1) Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) of 6. 5 %, (2) Tier 1 Leverage of 5 %, (3) Tier 1
Risk- Based Capital of 8 %, and (4) Total Risk- Based Capital of 10 %. The CET1 ratio is a new capital ratio under Basel III and the Tier 1 risk-
based capital ratio of 8 % has been increased from 6 %. The rules also included changes in the risk weights of certain assets to better reflect credit and
other risk exposures. In addition, a capital conservation buffer of 2. 50 % is applicable to all of the capital ratios except for the Tier 1 Leverage ratio.
The capital conservation buffer is equal to the lowest value of the three applicable capital ratios less the regulatory minimum (* adequately
capitalized ") for each respective capital measurement. The Bank”’ s capital conservation buffer at December 31, 2623-2024 was 5-4 . 63-96 %.
Compliance with the capital conservation buffer is required in order to avoid limitations on certain capital distributions, especially dividends. As of
December 31, 2623-2024 , the Bank was “ well capitalized’ under the Basel III requirements. In 2019, the Community Bank Leverage Ratio (CBLR)
was approved by federal banking agencies as an optional capital measure available to Qualifying Community Banking Organizations (QCBO). If a
bank qualifies as a QCBR and maintains a CBLR of 9 % or greater, the bank would be considered “ well- capitalized ” for regulatory capital purposes
and exempt from complying with the Basel I1I risk- based capital rule. The CBLR rule was effective January 1, 2020 and banks could opt- in through
an election in the first quarter 2020 regulatory filings. The Bank meets~- met the criteria of a QCBO but did not opt- in to the CBLR. The
consolidated asset limit on small bank holding companies is $ 3 billion and a company with assets under that limit is not subject to the consolidated
capital rules but may file reports that include capital amounts and ratios. The Corporation has elected to file those reports. The following table
presents capital ratios for the Corporation and Bank at December 31: Table 13. Capital Ratios 2024 2023 2822-Corporation Bank Corporation
BankCommon Equity Tier | risk- based capital ratiol 1. 31 % 11. 71 % 11. 82 % 12. 38 % +4-Total risk- based capital ratiol3 . 22-85 % 12. 96 %
14 —63-%Fotatrisk—based-eapitalratiotd-. 45 % 13. 63 S4+72H%+5-88" Tier | risk- based capital ratiol 1. 31 % 11. 71 % 11. 82 % 12. 38 %
H4229%614-63-% Tier | leverage ratio9-ratio7 . 92 % 8.20 % 9 . 01 % 9. 44 %-8-95%9-21+" For additional information on capital adequacy
refer to Note 2 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Local Economy The Corporation’ s primary market area includes Franklin,
Fulton, Cumberland, Huntingdon, and Dauphin County, PA, and Washington County, MD. This area is diverse in demographic and economic
composition. County populations range from a low of approximately 15, 000 in Fulton County to over 286-289 , 000 in Dauphin County. The market
area has a diverse economic base and local industries include warehousing, truck and rail shipping centers, light and heavy manufacturers, health care,
higher education institutions, farming and agriculture, and a varied service sector. The market area provides easy access to the major metropolitan
markets on the east coast via trucking and rail transportation. Because of this, warehousing and distribution companies continue to find the area
attractive. The local economy is not overly dependent on any one industry or business and Management believes that the 36Banle-- Bank ’ s primary
market area continues to be well suited for growth. The following provides selected economic data for the Bank’ s primary market at December 31:
Eeenemie-37Economic Data 2023-2024 2022Uremployment-2023Unemployment Rate ( not scasonally adjusted) Market area range (1) 2. 7 %- 3.
8 % 2.4 %- 3.5 % 2-Pennsylvania (seasonally adjusted) 3 . 4 % —4—+%Pennsylvania3. 4 % 4-Maryland (seasonally adjusted) 3 . 0 %



Maryland-1. 7 %4-—3-% United States 3-(seasonally adjusted) 4 . 72 % 3. 7 % Housing Price Index- year over year change PA, nonmetropolitan
statistical area 9.5 % 4. 6 %44—3-% United States 5. 1 % 4. 8 %3+6—6-% Building Permits- year over year change- 12 months (2) Residential,
estimated 6. 1 %- 15. 4 % Multifamily, estimated 46. 0 %- 50. 7 % (1) Cumberland, Dauphin, Franklin, Fulton and Huntingdon County, PA,
Washington County, MD and State of Maryland (2) Hamsburg— Cdrllsle PA MS/\ ChdmbersburgD Wdynesboro P/\ MS/\ dl’ld Hdgjerstown MD
Martlnsburg, WYV MSA Rest 0 M 3 e

The 1ssets and llabllmes of the C01p01a110n are ﬁnanmal in nalure as such the pricing 01
products, customer demand for certain types ofproducts and the value of assets and liabilities are greatly influenced by interest rates. As such,
interest rates and changes in interest rates may have a more significant effect on the Corporation’ s financial results than on other types of industries.
Because of this, the Corporation watches the actions of the Federal Reserve Open Market Committee (FOMC) as it makes decisions about interest
rate changes and monetary policy. In Febraary-January 2624-2025 . the FOMC lelease mcluded thls “ Recent mdlcatOI S suggest that economic

activity has been-continued to expanding—- expand at a solid pace. The e y
unemployment rate has remained-stabilized at a low level in recent months, and labor market condltlons remain solld lnﬂatlon has—eased—evef
the-pastyear-but-remains somewhat clevated. The Committee seeks to achieve maximum employment and inflation at the rate of 2 percent over the
longer run. The Committee judges that the risks to achlevmg its employment and inflation goals are roughly in mevinginte-better-balance. The
economic outlook is uncertain, and the Committee is attentive to inflatienrthe risks to both sides of —Fhe-Committee-doesnotexpeet
-l-t-ltS w-tl-l—be—&ppfepﬂate-dual mandate In cons1dermg the extent and timing of addltlonal adjustments to reduee-the target range for untibithas

H v n-the federal funds rate, the Committee will carefully
assess mcomlng data, the evolvmg outlook, and the balance of rlsks The Commlttee will continue reducing its holdings of Treasury securities
and agency debt and agency mortgage- backed sccurltles—as-deseﬁbed-m—rts-pfevmls}raﬂﬂeuﬂeed-p-l&ns— The Committee is strongly committed to
supporting maximum employment and returning inflation to its 2 percent objective . In assessing the appropriate stance of monetary policy, the
Committee will continue to monitor the implications of incoming information for the economic outlook. The Committee would be prepared
to adjust the stance of monetary policy as appropriate if risks emerge that could impede the attainment of the Committee’ s goals. The
Committee’ s assessments will take into account a wide range of information, including readings on labor market conditions, inflation
pressures and inflation expectations, and financial and international developments . ” Over the long- term, the Corporation benefits from higher
interest rates. Liquidity The Corporation conducts substantially all of its business through its bank subsidiary. The liquidity needs of the Corporation
are funded primarily by the bank subsidiary, supplemented with liquidity from its dividend reinvestment plan. The Bank must meet the financial
needs of the customers that it serves, while providing a satisfactory return on the shareholders’ investment. In order to accomplish this, the
Corporation must maintain sufficient liquidity in order to respond quickly to the changing level of funds required for both loan and deposit activity.
The goal of liquidity management is to meet the ongoing cash flow requirements of depositors who want to withdraw funds and of borrowers who
request loan disbursements. The Bank regularly reviews its liquidity position by measuring its projected net cash flows (in and out) at a 30 and 90-
day interval. The Bank stress tests this measurement by assuming a level of deposit out- flows that have not historically been realized. In addition to
this forecast, other funding sources are reviewed as a method to provide emergency funding if necessary. The objective of this measurement is to
identify the amount of cash that could be raised quickly without the need to liquidate assets. The Bank also stresses its liquidity position utilizing
different longer- term scenarios. The varying degrees of stress create pressure on deposit flows in its local market, reduce access to wholesale funding
and limit access of funds available through brokered deposit channels. In addition to stressing cash flow, specific liquidity risk indicators are
monitored to help identify risk areas. This analysis helps identify and quantify the potential cash surplus / deficit over a variety of time horizons to
ensure the Bank has adequate funding resources. Assumptions used for liquidity stress testing are subjective. Should an evolving liquidity situation or
business cycle present new data, potential assumption changes will be considered. The Bank believes it can meet all anticipated liquidity demands.
Historically, the Bank has satisfied its liquidity needs from earnings, repayment of loans, amortizing and maturing investment securities, loan sales,
deposit growth and its ability to access existing lines of credit. All investment securities are classified as avaitable-38available for sale; therefore,
marketable securities that are unencumbered as collateral for borrowings are an additional source of 37readity—- readily available liquidity
(approximately $ +64-301 . 8-4 million fair value), either by selling the security or, more preferably, to provide collateral for additional borrowing.
The Bank also has access to other wholesale funding via the brokered CD market. The FHLB system has always been a major source of funding for
community banks. There are no indicators that lead the Bank to believe the FHLB will discontinue its lending function or restrict the Bank’ s ability
to borrow. If either of these events were to occur, it would have a material negative effect on the Bank, and it is highly unlikely that the Bank could
replace the level of FHLB funding in a short time. The Bank has also established credit at the Federal Reserve Discount Window and unsecured lines
of credit at correspondent banks. The following table shows the Bank’ s available liquidity at December 31, 2623-2024 . (Dollars in thousands)
Liquidity Source Capacity Outstanding AvailableFederal Home Loan Bank $ 484-562 , +63-697 $ 46-200 , 000 $ 444-362 , +63Federal-- 697Federal
Reserve Bank Discount Window 64, 55-575 +-496-— 55-64 , 496Fed-575Correspondent Bank-Banks 76 TermFundingProgram-94+-733-96-, 000 +
— 76 %%Geﬁespenéeﬂt—B‘aﬂkséé-OOOTotal $ 703 272 $ 200 000 —56—999%&14—55 68—7’—503 272 -392—$—BG—999—$§§7—392—Subseqtrent—te-ye&r-

----- S wh- ff Balcm(,e Sheet Commltments The Corpomtlon S ﬁndncml statements do not reﬂe(,t various

commitments that are made in the normal course of business, which may involve some liquidity risk. These commitments consist mainly of unfunded
loans and letters of credit made under the same standards as on- balance sheet loans and lines of credit. Because these unfunded instruments have
fixed matunty dates and many ofthem w11] expire w1thout bemg> drawn upon they do not generally plesent any SIgjmf'cant liquidity risk to the

AC L for untundcd commltmcnts is repotted in Othcr Llabllmcs on the Consolldated Balance Shect (Dollars in thousands) Fmanual mstruments
whose contract amounts represent credit risk 2623-2024 2022Cemmereial-2023Commercial commitments to extend credit $ 328, 806 $ 325, 982-$
275:-867Consumer-982Consumer commitments to extend credit (secured) 135, 776 112, $5793;424Censumer-157Consumer commitments to
extend credit (unsecured) 5, 352 5, 964 5-$ 469 , 247-934 § 444, +03-$-374;238Standby— 103Standby lctters of credit $ 28, 815 $ 19, 851 ACL-
Unfunded Commitments (1) $ 2,36-030 $ 2 . 734-022 (1) Reported in Other Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets Management
believes that any amounts actually drawn upon can be funded in the normal course of operations. The Corporation has no investment in or financial
relationship with any unconsolidated entities that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on liquidity. Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk Market Risk In the course of its normal business operations, the Corporation is exposed to certain market risks. The
Corporation has no foreign currency exchange rate risk, no commodity price risk or material equity price risk. However, it is exposed to interest rate
risk. All interest rate risk arises in connection with financial instruments entered into for purposes other than trading. Financial instruments, which are
sensitive to changes in market interest rates, include fixed and variable- rate loans, fixed- income securities, derivatives, interest- bearing deposits and
other borrowings. Changes in interest rates can have an impact on the Corporation’ s net interest income and the economic value of equity. The
objective of interest rate risk management is to identify and manage the sensitivity of net interest income and economic value of equity to changing
interest rates in order to achieve consistent earnings that are not contingent upon favorable trends in interest rates. 38Fhe--- The Corporation’ s
primary tool for analyzing interest rate risk is financial simulation modeling which captures the effect of not only changing interest rates but also
other sources of cash flow variability including loan and securities prepayments and customer preferenees-39preferences . Financial simulation
modeling forecasts both net interest income and the economic value of equity under a variety of different interest rate environments. The Corporation



measures the effects of multiple interest rate change scenarios on at least a quarterly basis. The magnitude of each change scenario may vary
depending on the current interest rate environment. In addition, the balance sheet is held static in each scenario so that the effect of an interest rate
change can be isolated and not distorted by changes in the balance sheet. Table 14 presents the results of six different rate change scenarios and
measures the change in net interest income against a base (unchanged) scenario over one year. For each scenario, interest rate changes are ramped up
or down over a period of 1 year. The Bank believes a ramp scenario is more realistic than an interest rate shock scenario; however, the Bank also
runs scenarios using shocks and yield curve twists. Computations of prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes are based on many
assumptions, including relative levels of market interest rates, loan prepayments and deposit repricing that cannot be measured with complete
precision. Further, the computations do not contemplate any actions Management could undertake in response to changes in market interest rates.
Table 14. Sensitivity to Changes in Market Interest Rates (Dollars in thousands) Net Interest IncomeChange in rates (basis points) Projected %
Change 300 S 48-64 , 596 4 5667 4 536 200 $ 50-63 , 852 3 806-(4-. 2 8% 100 $ 5+-62 ., 972 1 3662~ 8 33-% unchanged $ 52-61 , 566-879 —
(100) $52-60 , 866-570 (6-2 . 9-1 ) % (200) $ 5+59 , 766-645 (+3 . 6) % (300) $ 58, 606 ( 5 Y%4366)-$-5+466«2-. +3 ) % Impact of Inflation The
impact of inflation upon financial institutions such as the Corporation differs from its effect upon other commercial enterprises. Unlike most other
commercial enterprises, virtually all of the assets of the Corporation are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a more significant impact
on the Corporation’ s performance than do the effects of general levels of inflation. Although inflation (and inflation expectations) may affect the
interest rate environment, it is not possible to measure with any precision the impact of future inflation upon the Corporation. 39kem-40Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM Shareholders and the
Board of Directors of Franklin Financial Services CorporationChambersburg, Pennsylvania Opinion on the Financial Statements We have audited the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Franklin Financial Services Corporation (the" €erperatien-Company ") as of December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2022-, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for eaeh-ef
the years then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the" financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Cerperatten-Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, and the results of its
operdtlons and its C'lsh ﬂows for the yedrs then ended in conformlty w1th dccountmg prmc1ples genem]ly accepted in the Umted Stdtes of Amerlca—

These financial statements are lhe responsrbrhly of lhe Geﬁef&&eﬂ—Company s managemem Our responsrbrhty is to express an oprnron on the
Ceorperation-Company' s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (" PCAOB") and are required to be independent with respect to the €erperatter-Company in accordance with the U.
S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our
audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to
assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those
risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits
also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matters The critical audit matter
communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were-was communicated or required to be
communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of the critical audit matters— matter does not alter in any way our
opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion
on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates. Allowance for Credit Losses — Adoption of Qualitative Factor

Framework and Subsequenl Application of Risk Assignments to Quahtalrve Faclors The allowance forl-n—aeeefd-&nee—wﬁ-hﬁeeeimfmg—smﬁdafds

accountmgestlmateofexpected' oss-modeHreferred-to-as-the-eurrentexpeeted-ered 38
the expeeted-lifc of thetoan-loans . Estlmdtes of expected credit losses are bdsed on hlstorlcal experience, ad]usted for management =' s evaluation of

Lurrent eondmons and reasonablc and snpportable forecasts over the life of the loans . The Company mpaet—e#adepﬂeﬂ-ef—ﬂ&rs—sfaﬂd&rd—eﬂ%aﬂuaﬁ

a housatd etained-earnings-for-the-eumulative-effeet-adjustmen r—The p 'measuresexpectedcredlt
losses based on poo]ed loans when similar rlsk chdrdeterlstlcs exist. The ACL for pooled loans is the sum of quantitative and qualitative loss
estimates. The quantitative portion is based on historical loss rates. A historical loss rate is calculated for each pool of loans. Adjustments to the
quantitative portion are made for differences in: lending policy, procedures and practice; economic conditions; nature and volume of loans;
experience of lending team; volume of past due loans; quality of the loan review system; concentrations of credit; and other external factors. These
adjustments are formulated through a qualitative factor framework that comprises the eight aforementioned factors and assigns a risk level to each
factor. The risk factors are weighted to reflect management =!' s estimate of how the factor affects expected losses. The risk levels within each factor
are measured in basis points and range from minimal risk to t-he—very hrgh rrsk Mamgement 3551gns rlsk levels to each factor b"tsed on therr
evaluatlon of each 6f—the eght rlsk factors Audmm3 s the inttia : A ©

ofthe srgmﬁcanl audrtor j-udgefneﬂﬁ Judgment apphed and%ﬂgﬂ*ﬁeﬁﬂt—~ s1gmficant audrt ctfort nccdcd to evalualc lhc Sub_]CCIlVC and complex
judgements— judgments made by management related to the determination during A ent-appheation-of the qualitative faeter
factors -framewﬂeused in the calculation . The primary procedures swe-performed to address t-h-rs—the critical audit matter included substantively
evaluating: (2] eFhe— The appropriateness of significant jadgements— judgments applicd in adepting-the qualitative framework, including the sisk
quahtatlve faclors chosen assocmled werghtmgs and allocatron range w1lh1n the 1ramew0rk [2) eFhe— The frameworkfor-assignment-oftevelof
: 8 gh h ppllcatlon of risk assignments for the individual qualitative
fdctors m(,ludmg> thc dpproprldtcness ofmdndgcmcnt S bcms for risk lcvel dsslgnmcnts ?] eFhe— The relevance and reliability of data used in
pie q atiy a enand-determining the risk lcvel assignments. / s / Crowe LLP We have served as the
Company s audrlor since 2019 G}evel-aﬂd-Washmgton OhieMarehH-D. C. March 14 . 2624-2025 -4 1 Consolidated Balance Sheets (Dollars in
thousands, except share and per share ddta) December 31, 2023-2024 2622Assets-2023Assets Cash and due from banks $ 19, 565-848 $ +719 ,
883Shert-505Short - term interest- earning deposits in other banks 183, 765 3, 635-47-0+6Fetal—- 635Total cash and cash equivalents 203, 613 23,
140Long +40-64;-899Feng— tcrm interest- earning deposits in other banks 1, 499 6, 229Debt 22943-975Bebt-sccuritics available for sale, at fair
value 508, 604 472, 563-486;-836Equity—- S03Equity sccuritics 427166 4HHRestrieted-427Restricted stock 8, 775 2, 375Loans 375-644Leans-held




for sale 243-2, 470 283Eeans-213Loans |, 398, 077 1, 256, 985405104 AHewanee-985Allowance for tean-credit losses ( 17, 653) ( 16, 052 HH4;
+75-) Net Loans 1, 380, 424 1, 240, 933Premises 9334;-036;,-866Premises-and cquipment, net 29, 039 28, 543Right 543-36,-026Right-of usc asset 4,
680-6-106 4 , 016Bank-680Bank owned life insurance 22, #58-735 22, 3HGoeedwill-758Goodwill 9, 016 9, 016Deferred tax asset, net 10, 831 11,
86415;:-6300ther-8010ther asscts 16, 563 13, 42442-672Fetal-421Total asscts § 2,197, 841 $ 1, 836, 039 $4-699;:-599-Liabilities Deposits Nes-
nterestNoninterest - bearing checking $ 290, 346 $ 273, 050Money 959—$%99€-3—1—P«46ﬂey—managemmt savings and interest checking 1, 209, 396
1, 132, 48241494827 Fime— 482Time 315, 905 132, 446Total 446-57390Fetal-dcposits 1, 815, 647 1, 537, 978455444 8Federal-978Federal
Reserve Bank borrowings — 90, 800—Federal-000Federal Home Loan Bank advances 200 000 40, 900—-=Suberdinate-000Subordinate notes 19,
661699 19, 623Eease-661Lease liability 4, 8466263 4 , +440ther-8160ther liabilitics 13,516 | |, 448Total 448-8;+6FFotal-liabilitics 2, 053, 125
1, 703, 903 +;-585;382-Commitments and contingent liabilities Shareholders' equity Common stock, $ 1 par value per share, 15, 000, 000 shares
authorized with 4, 710, 972 shares issued and 4, 427 362 shares outstandlng at December 31 2024 and 4 710 972 shares issued and 4, 371, 231
shares outstanding at December 31, 2023 and g
711Capital stock without par value, 5, 000, 000 shares duth()uzcd w1th no ShdILS issued dl]d outstdndmgD — Addltl()lldl pdld in capital 43 646-791
43, 535Retained-646Retained carnings 139, 463 133, 993425892 Aeenmulated- 993 Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income ( 35, 508) (
40, 940 H54H28F) Treasury stock, 283, 610 shares at December 31, 2024 and 339, 741 shares at December 31, 2023 and-320;-575-shares-at
Peeember3+2022- at cost (7, 741) (9, 274 H8;-654-) Total sharcholders' equity 144, 716 132, 436-H4,497Fetal-136Total liabilitics and
shareholders' equity $ 2,197, 841 $ 1, 836, 039 $4;:-699,-579-The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
42Consolidated Statements of Income (Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Years ended December 31, 2023-2024 2022 nterest-2023Interest
income Loans, including fees $ 73,996 $ 58, 277 $-4+-93Hnterest—- Interest and dividends on investments: Tﬁxable interest 16, 433 14, 790 Tax 9;
954Fax-—cxempt interest 1, 093 1, 232 2;-666Dividend---- Dividend income 692 56 Interest- earning 2+Depesits-deposits in and-obligations-efother
banks 9,237 2, 407 2,483Fetal—- Total interest income 101, 451 76, 762 56;-449nterest—-- Interest cxpense Deposits 30, 906 18, 843 35
8+6Federal—-- Federal Reserve Bank borrowings 1,962 2, 374 —FHLB advances 10, 019 857 —Subordinate notes 1, 050 1, 051 +--047Fetal—--
Total interest expense 43,937 23, 125 Net 4—863Net—mterest income 57, 514 53, 637 54;-586Previsten—-- Provision for credit losses- loans 1, 975 2,
589 650Rrevisten—-- Provision for credit losses- unfunded commitments 8 135 —Total provision for credit losses 1, 983 2, 724 Net interest
income after provision for credit fesses—- loss expense 55, 531 50, 913 50;-936Neninterest—-- Noninterest income Wealth management fees 8, 538 7,
512 Loan #3+52Fean-service charges 987 811 724Gain-Gain on sale of loans 565 199 776Depesit---- Depeosit service charges and fees 2, 448 2, 492
2-5290ther—-- Other scrvice charges and fees 2, 040 1, 852 45724Bebit—-- Debit card income 2, 279 2, 157 4;-868Inerease--- Increase in cash
surrender value of life insurance 457 448 Net 48-6Net—€lossu )—g-a-x-ﬂs—on sales of debt securities ( 4,267) (1, 119 394+) Change in fair value of equity
securities 209 16 (69)-Other 423 483 209Fetal---- Total noninterest income 13, 679 14, 851 45;-250Neninterest—-- Noninterest Expense Salaries and
employee benefits 32, 752 28, 813 Net 28;:-094Net-occupancy 4, 583 4, 398 4;-669Marketing—-- Marketing and advertising 1, 891 2, 071 45

--- Legal and professional 2, 133 2, 301 Data 2;262Pata-processing S, 804 4, 792 4—75—1-Peﬂﬁs-y-l-v&ma—--- Pennsylvania bank shares tax
483 745 FDIC Insurance |, 710 +H48FDIcInsuranee-851 736ATM-ATM / debit card processing 1, 300 1, 235 +,428Feleeommunieationts——-
Telecommunications 435 405 396Nenserviee—-- Nonservice pension ( 51) ( 117) 56Hease—-- Lease termination — 495 —Other 4, 855 4, 022 3;
385Fetal-—-- Total noninterest expense 55, 895 50, 011 48;-69Hneome—-- Income before federat-income taxes 13,315 15, 753 $5495Federat
ineeme-Income tax expense 2, 216 2, 155 Net 2555 Net-income $ 11, 099 $ 13, 598 Per $44;-938Pershare Basic earnings per share $2.52 8 3. 11
$-3-38Diluted-- Diluted carnings per share $ 2. 51 $ 3. 10 $3-36-The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
43Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income Years ended December 31, (Dollars in thousands) 2024 2023 2622-Net Income $ 11,099 $ 13,
598 $44-938-Debt Securities Unrealized (losses) gains essesyarising during the period (300) 10, 962 ¢65;-682)-Reclassification adjustment for
losses included in net income (1) 4,267 1, 119 94-Reclassification adjustment for losses (gains) realized in income on fair value hedge (2) 2, 300
— Net unrealized gains (losses) 6,267 12, 081 £65:59H-Tax effect (1, 316) (2, 537) 4377F#4-Net of tax amount 4, 951 9, 544 S54-8+H-Pension
Unrealized gains arising during the period 565 1, 017 4#4-Reclassification for net actuarial losses included in net income ( 2-3 ) 44 — 889-Net
unrealized gains 609 1, 017 +5363-Tax effect ( 128) (214 H286-) Net of tax amount 481 803 5677 Total other comprehensive gain (loss) §, 432 10,
347 €56;746)-Total Comprehensive Income (Loss) § 16, 531 $ 23, 945 $35;:80231) Reclassified to net losses on sales of debt securities (2)
Reclassified to interest income (3 ) Reclassified to other expense The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
44Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' EquityFor years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-20622-: Accumulated Additional
Other Number Common Paid- in Retained Comprehensive Treasury (Dollars in thousands, except per share data) of Shares Stock Capital Earnings
Income / (Loss) Stock TotalBalance at January 1, 2022420234 . 444390 ,443-397 $ 4, 711 $ 43, 885535 $ H6-125 , 612-892 § ( 51 54D-$(6-, 796
net of tax — — 938§
- 98 — — 44938~ 98 Other comprehensive loss === (50, 740...... 98 — — 98 Other comprehensive income — — — 10, 347 — 10, 347 Cash
dividends declared, $ 1. 28 per share — — (5, 595) — — (5, 595) Acquisition of treasury stock (84, 414) — — —— (2, 394) (2, 394) Treasury
shares issued under dividend reinvestment plan46, 458 — 93 — — 1, 262 1, 355 Stock Compensation Plans: Treasury shares issued18, 790 — (465)
: , , 33,993 $ (40, 940) $ (9,
274)$ 132, 136 Net income — — 11,099 — — 11,099 Other comprehensive income — — — 5 {50, 432 746}~ 5 (56, 432 746)-Cash dividends
declared,$ 1.28 per share — — (5, 658-629 ) — — (5, 658-629 ) Acquisition of treasury stock (40730, 732292 ) — — — —( 827 3;:334-) ( 827
3;334-) Treasury shares issued under dividend reinvestment pland44-plan62 , 943-247 — 24449 — — 1, +75-700 1, 4+6-749 Stock Compensation
Plans:Treasury shares tssaeed-issued24 , 743-176 — (253538 ) — 462634 — — —— 462-634
Balance at December 31, 20224- 20244 , 390-427 ,397-362 $ 4,711 § 43, 535791 $ 425-139 , 892463 $ (5435, 287508 ) $ (87 , 654741 ) S H4
144 , 716 +97Netineeme——3;-The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 45Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows December 31, (Dollars in thousands) 2023-2024 2022€ash-2023Cash flows from operating activities Net income $ 11,099 $ 13, 598 $44-938
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: Depreciation and amortization 2, 090 2, 016 +;437Net
amortization of loans and investment securities 2, 968 2, 462 4,4+77-Amortization of subordinate debt issuance costs 38 35-38 Provision for credit
losses 1, 983 2, 724 58-Change in fair value of equity securities ( 209) ( 16) 69-Realized losses on sales of debt securities 4,267 1, 119 94-Loans
originated for sale ( 43, 086) ( 13, 965 35+285-) Proceeds from sale of loans 41, 394 14, 234 54:-599-Gain on sale of loans held for sale (565) (199
}H#G)hefeaseﬂﬁ—faﬁﬁue—e%dem*&ﬁve—ﬂé—(—l—%—) Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance ( 457) (448) Gains from claims on life
insurance policies ( 436-78 ) — Stock option compensation 634 483 462-Increase in other assets 1, 077 (534 HF95-) Increase in other liabilities 1,
073 3. 913 944-H8-Deferred tax (benefit) expense (berefit473 ) 1, 140 5492-Net cash provided by operating activities 21, 755 26, 565 25;244

Cash flows from investing activities Net decrease in long- term interest- earning deposits in other banks 4, 730 7, 746 {3;483)-Proceeds
from sales and calls of investment securities available for sale 42, 413 40, 113 +9;-629-Proceeds from maturities and pay- downs of securities

available for sale 54, 820 32, 295 46;924-Purchase of investment securities available for sale ( 136, 268) (50, 252 3H8F#242-) Net increase in

1eslr1c1ed stock ( 6, 400)( 1, 721 )—61-49—) Net increase m 1oans ( 141, 652) ( 205, 939 348;-866-) Proceeds from surrender of life insurance policies
S eV y ¢ s 35-680)-C dpltdl expenditures ( 2, 567) (499 3¥32248-) Net cash used in investing

activities ( 184 366)( 178 267 )—(95—955—) Cash ﬂ()ws fr()m financing activities Net increase ( decrease ) in demand deposits, mt(.rut bearing

checking, and savings accounts 94, 210 (88, 526 HH6;848-) Net increase {deerease)-in time deposits 183, 459 75, 056

Increase in shertlong - term borrowings (FHLB) 200, 000 — (Decrease) increase in long- term borrowings (FHLB & FRB) ( 130, 000 —) 130,




000 Dividends paid (5, 629) (5, 595 H5;658-) Purchase of Treasury shares ( 827) (2, 394 335;334-) Cash received from option exercises 122 47 48
Treasury shares issued under dividend reinvestment plan 1, 749 1, 355 4;44+6-Net cash provided by fused-in)-financing activities 343, 084 109, 943
40;439)(Peereaserinerease-Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 180, 473 (41, 759 36;256-) Cash and cash equivalents as of
January 1 23, 140 64, 899 +#5;3449-Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31 § 203, 613 $ 23, 140 $-64;-899-Supplemental Disclosures of Cash
Flow Information Cash paid during the year for: Interest on deposits and other borrowed funds $ 43, 105 $ 19, 460 $4-F54-Income taxes $ 1, 859 $
1, 344 $-88-Noncash Activities: Lease liabilities arising from obtaining right- of- use assets $ —20 $ — 4;-867-Noncash extinguishment of lease
liability § — $ 537 $—Noncash decrease inri ght of— use asset $ —$507 The accompanymg notes are an integral part of these unaudited
financial statements. $ a oan d-for-s The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
financial statements. 46NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies The
accounting policies of Franklin Financial Services Corporation and its subsidiaries conform to U. S. generally accepted accounting principles and to
general industry practices. A summary of the more significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, follows: Principles of Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Franklin Financial Services Corporation (the Corporation) and its wholly- owned subsidiaries; Farmers and Merchants Trust Company of
Chambersburg and Franklin Future Fund Inc. Farmers and Merchants Trust Company of Chambersburg is a commercial bank (the Bank) that has one
wholly- owned subsidiary, Franklin Financial Properties Corp., which holds real estate assets that are leased by the Bank. Franklin Future Fund Inc.
is a non- bank investment company that makes venture capital investments within the Corporation’ s primary market area. The activities of non- bank
entities are not significant to the consolidated totals. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Nature of
Operations — The Corporation conducts substantially all of its business through its subsidiary bank, Farmers and Merchants Trust Company of
Chambersburg, which serves its customer base through twenty- two community- banking offices located in Franklin, Cumberland, Fulton and
Huntingdon Counties, Pennsylvania; and Washington County, Maryland. These counties are considered to be the Corporation’ s primary market area,
but it may do business in the greater South- Central Pennsylvania and Northern Maryland market. The Bank is a community- oriented commercial
bank that emphasizes customer service and convenience. As part of its strategy, the Bank has sought to develop a variety of products and services that
meet the needs of both its retail and commercial customers. The Corporation and the Bank are subject to the regulations of various federal and state
agencies and undergo periodic examinations by these regulatory authorities. Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements — The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires Management to make estimates and
assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the
allowance for loan losses. Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk — Most of the Corporation’ s activities are with customers located within
its primary market area. Note 4 of the consolidated financial statements shows the types of securities in which the Corporation invests. Note 5 of the
consolidated financial statements shows the types of lending in which the Corporation engages. The Corporation does not have any significant
concentrations efin any one industry or customer. Statement of Cash Flows — For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
Cash and due from banks, interest- bearing deposits in other banks and cash items with original maturities less than 90 days. Investment Securities —
Management classifies its debt securities at the time of purchase as available for sale or held to maturity. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-,
all debt securities were classified as available for sale, meaning that the Corporation intends to hold them for an indefinite period of time, but not
necessarily to maturity. Available - for - sale debt securities are stated at estimated fair value, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of
discounts which are recognized as adjustments of interest income through call date or maturity. The related unrealized gains and losses are reported as
other comprehensive income or loss, net of tax, until realized. Realized securities gains and losses are computed using the specific identification
method. Gains or losses on the disposition of debt investment securities are recorded on the trade date, based on the net proceeds and the adjusted
carrying amount of the specific security sold. Equity investments are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income. On
January 1, 2023, the Corporation adopted ASU 2016- 13 Financial Instruments- Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instrumcnts Wthh cllmlnatcd thc prcv1ous conccpt of othcr than tcmporary 1mpa1rmcnt for AFS securities. (see Allowancc for Credit
Losses below) 6 Ay : a d-u ; e

cost, consists of stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Plttsburgh (FHLB) and Atlantlc Central Bankers Bank (ACBB). The Bank held § 2-8 . 4-8
million of restricted stock at the end of 2023-2024 . With the exception of $ 30 thousand, this investment represents stock in the FHLB that the Bank
is required to hold in order to be a member of FHLB and is carried at a cost of $ 100 per share. FHLB stock is divided into two classes: membership
stock and activity stock, which is based on outstanding loan balances. Federal law requires a member institution of the FHLB to hold FHLB stock
according to a predetermined formula. Management evaluates the restricted stock for impairment in accordance with ASC Topic 320. Management’ s
determination of whether these investments are impaired is based on their assessment of the ultimate recoverability of their cost rather than by
recognizing temporary declines in value. The determination of whether a decline affects the ultimate recoverability of their 47eest--- cost is
influenced by criteria such as (1) the significance of the decline in net assets of the banks as compared to the capital stock ameunt-47amount for the
banks and the length of time this situation has persisted, (2) commitments by the banks to make payments required by law or regulation and (3) the
impact of legislative and regulatory changes on institutions and, accordingly, on the customer base of the banks. As a government sponsored entity,
FHLB has the ability to raise funding through the U. S. Treasury that can be used to support its operations. There is not a public market for FHLB or
ACBB stock and the benefits of membership (e. g., liquidity and low- cost funding) add value to the stock beyond purely financial measures.
Management intends to remain a member of the FHLB and believes that it will be able to fully recover the cost basis of this investment. Management
believes no impairment charge is necessary related to the FHLB or ACBB restricted stock as of December 31, 2023-2024 . Financial Derivatives-
FASB ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“ ASC 815 ™), provides the disclosure requirements for derivatives and hedging activities with the intent
to provide users of financial statements with an enhanced understanding of: (a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, (b) how the entity
accounts for derivative instruments and related hedged items, and (c¢) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’ s financial
position, financial performance, and cash flows. Further, qualitative disclosures are required that explain the Company’ s objectives and strategies for
using derivatives, as well as quantitative disclosures about the fair value of and gains and losses on derivative instruments, and disclosures about
credit- risk- related contingent features in derivative instruments. As required by ASC 815, the Corporation records all derivatives on the balance
sheet at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the intended use of the derivative, whether the Corporation
has elected to designate a derivative in a hedging relationship and apply hedge accounting and whether the hedging relationship has satisfied the
criteria necessary to apply hedge accounting. Derivatives designated and qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset,
liability, or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges. Derivatives designated and
qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash flow
hedges. For a fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the derivative, as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk, are recognized in current earnings as fair values change. Derivatives may also be designated as hedges of the foreign currency
exposure of a net investment in a foreign operation. Hedge accounting generally provides for the matching of the timing of gain or loss recognition
on the hedging instrument with the recognition of the changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk



in a fair value hedge or the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted transactions in a cash flow hedge. The Corporation may enter into derivative
contracts that are intended to economically hedge certain of its risk, even though hedge accounting does not apply, or the Corporation elects not to
apply hedge accounting. In accordance with the FASB’ s fair value measurement guidance (in ASU 2011- 04), the Corporation may made-make an
accounting policy election to measure the credit risk of its derivative financial instruments that are subject to master netting agreements on a net basis
by counterparty portfolio. At December 31, 2623-2024 , there were no derivatives subject to a netting agreement. Loans — Loans, that Management
has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff, are stated at the outstanding unpaid principal balances, net of
any deferred fees. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are
deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the yield (interest income) of the related loans using the interest method. The Corporation is amortizing
these amounts over the contractual life of the loan. The accrual of interest is generally discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or
interest has become 90 days past due or Management has serious doubts about further collectability of principal or interest, even though the loan is
currently performing. A loan may remain on accrual status if it is in the process of collection and is either guaranteed or well secured. When a loan is
placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest credited to income in the current year is reversed and unpaid interest accrued in a prior year is charged
against the allowance for credit losses. Payments received on nonaccrual loans are applied initially against principal, then interest income, late
charges and any other expenses and fees. Generally, loans are restored to accrual status when the obligation is brought current, has performed in
accordance with the contractual terms for a reasonable period of time and the ultimate collectability of the total contractual principal and interest is no
longer in doubt. Consumer loans are typically charged off no later than 180 days past due. Past due status is based on contractual terms of the loans.
Loans Held for Sale — Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market at the time of origination are carried at the lower of
cost or estimated fair value (determined on an aggregate basis). All sales are made without recourse. Loans held for sale at December 31, 2623-2024
represent loans originated through third- party brokerage agreements for a pre- determined price and present no price risk to the Bank. Allowance for
Credit Losses (ACL) On January 1, 2023, the Corporation adopted ASU 2016- 13 Financial Instruments- Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, as amended, which replaces the incurred loss methodology with an expected loss methodology that is
referred to as the current expected credit loss (CECL) methodology. The measurement of expected credit losses under the CECL methodology is
applicable to financial assets measured at amortized cost, including loan receivables and held- to- maturity debt securities. It also applies to off-
balance sheet credit commitments not accounted for as insurance (loan commitments, 48standby letters of credit, financial guarantees, and other
similar instruments) and net investments in leases recognized by a lessor in accordance with Topic 842 on leases. The Company adopted ASC 326
using the modified retrospective method for all financial assets measured at amortized cost, and unfunded credit exposures. Results for reporting
periods beginning after January 1, 2023 are presented under ASC 326 while prior period amounts continue to be reported in accordance with the
previously applicable incurred loss methodology. The Corporation has determined this accounting policy to be critical to the results of operations. A
summary of the adoption of the new ASU follows: ACL- Investment Securities Management classifies its debt securities at the time of purchase as
available for sale (AFS) or held to maturity (HTM). At December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-, all debt securities were classified as AFS avatlable
for-sale-, meaning that the Corporation intends to hold them for an indefinite period of time, but not necessarily to maturity. Available for sale debt
securities are stated at estimated fair value, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts which are recognized as adjustments of
interest income through call date or maturity. The related unrealized gains and losses are reported as other comprehensive income or loss, net of tax,
until realized. With the adoption of CECL on January 1, 2023, the previous concept of other- than- temporary impairment for AFS securities has been
eliminated. Under CECL, credit losses on AFS debt securities are recognized in the ACL for investments, through the provision for credit losses,
rather than through a direct write- down of the security. In evaluating AFS securities for credit losses, Management considers factors such as
delinquency, guarantees, invest grade rating, and specific conditions related to a specific security or industry. If an impaired debt security is sold, any
previous ACL on that security is charged- off and any incremental loss will be recognized through earnings. Any improvement in expected credit
losses will be recognized by reducing the ACL. For HTM securities an estimate of current expected credit loss must be established at the time of
purchase with changes in estimated credit loss recognized in the ACL through the provision for credit losses —PrierteJantary15;2023deelines-inthe
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+0-K-as-ef Beeember34+2622- ACL — Loans The ACL for loans is established through provisions for credit losses charged against income. Loans
deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the ACL, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the ACL. The ACL for loans is an
estimate of the losses expected to be realized over the life of the loan portfolio. The ACL is determined for two distinct categories of loans: 1) loans
evaluated individually for expected credit losses (specific reserve), and 2) loans evaluated collectively for expected credit losses (pooled reserve).
Management’ s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the ACL for loans is based on the Bank” s past loan loss experience, known and inherent risks
in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’ s ability to repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of
the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, diversification of the loan portfolio, delinquency statistics, results of internal loan reviews,
borrowers’ actual or perceived financial and managerial strengths, and other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires
material assumptions and estimates that may be susceptible to significant change, including the amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to
be received on impaired loans. Loans evaluated individually for credit losses are primarily commercial purpose loans that do not share similar
characteristics with those loans evaluated in the pool. These loans may exhibit performance characteristics where it is probable that the Bank will be
unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. All commercial
purpose loans greater than $ 250 thousand and rated Substandard (7), Doubtful (8) or on nonaccrual status may be considered for individual
evaluation. Impairment is measured on a loan- by- loan basis by one of the following methods: the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent, the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’ s effective interest rate or the loan’ s obtainable market price.
Commercial purpose loans with a balance less than $ 250 thousand, and consumer purpose loans are not evaluated individually for a specific reserve
but are included in the pooled reserve calculation. Loans that are evaluated for a specific reserve, but not needing a specific reserve are not included
in the pooled reserve calculation. The Corporation has elected to exclude accrued interest receivable from the measurement of the ACL. When a loan
is placed on nonaccrual status, any outstanding current accrued interest is reversed against income and prior year accrued interest is deducted from
the ACL. The pooled reserve represents the ACL for pools of homogenous loans, not evaluated individually. The pooled reserve is calculated using a
quantitative and qualitative component for the loan pools. The following inputs are used to calculate the quantitative component for the pool:
Segregating loans into homogeneous pools by the FRB Call Code which is primarily a collateral- based and secondarily a purpose- based
segmentation. (2] The average remaining life of each pool is calculated using the weighted average remaining maturity method (WARM). The
WARM method produces an estimated remaining balance by pool, by year, until maturity. 49-2] A historical credit loss rate is calculated for each
pool, using the average historical loss, by FRB Call Code, for a peer group of Pennsylvania community banks over the last eight quarters. The loss
rate is calculated over a historical period the Bank believes best represents a period, based on a reasonable and supportable forecast, that will be
similar to the next four quarters. (2] The historical credit loss rate is applied to each WARM bucket though the initial four quarter forward- looking
period. 49 (2] At the end of the forward- looking period, the credit loss rate applied to each WARM bucket reverts to the historical loss rate for the
respective pool. (2] Collectively these estimated losses represent the quantitative component of the pooled reserve. The qualitative component for the
pool utilizes a risk matrix comprised of eight risk factors and assigns a risk level to each factor. The risk factors consider changes in: lending policy,
procedures and practice; economic conditions; nature and volume of loans; experience of lending team; volume of past due loans; quality of the loan
review system; concentrations of credit; and other external factors. The risk factors are weighted to reflect Management’ s estimate of how the factor



affects potential losses. The risk levels within each factor are measured in basis points and range from minimal risk to very high risk and are
determined independently for commercial loans, residential mortgage loans and consumer loans. The ACL for pooled loans is the sum of the
quantitative and qualitative loss estimates. ACL — Unfunded CommitmentsThe ACL for unfunded commitments is recorded in other liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet. The ACL represents management’ s estimate of expected losses from unfunded commitments and is determined by
estimating future usage of the commitments, based on historical usage. The estimated loss is calculated in a manner similar to that used for the ACL
for loans prev10usly descr1bed The ACL i is 1ncreased or decreased through the pr0V1510n for credlt losses —Pﬂer—te—.l-anﬁaﬁ—l—%@%?r—the—al-lewaﬂee

2622-. Prem1ses and Equ1pmem - Premlses and equ1pment are stated at cost less accumulated deprec1at1on and amort1zat1on Deprec1at1on is
computed using the straight- line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets or the lease term for lease hold improvements,
whichever is shorter. When assets are retired or sold, the asset cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the respective accounts,
and any resultant gain or loss is included in net income. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to operating expense as incurred, and the cost
of major additions and improvements is capitalized. Bank Owned Life Insurance — The Bank invests in bank owned life insurance (BOLI) as a source
of funding for employee benefit expenses. The Bank purchases life insurance coverage on the lives of a select group of employees. The Bank is the
owner and beneficiary of the policies and records the investment at the cash surrender value of the underlying policies. Income from the increase in
cash surrender value of the policies is included in noninterest income. Other Real Estate Owned (OREO) — Foreclosed real estate (OREO) is
comprised of property acquired through a foreclosure proceeding or an acceptance of a deed in lieu of foreclosure. Balances are initially reflected at
the estimated fair value less any estimated disposition costs, with subsequent adjustments made to reflect further declines in value. Any losses
realized upon disposition of the property, and holding costs prior thereto, are charged against income. All properties are actively marketed to potential
buyers. Transfers of Financial Assets — Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered.
Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Corporation, (2) the transferee obtains the
right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Corporation
does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. Federal Income Taxes —
Deferred income taxes are provided on the liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and
deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance, when in the opinion of Management, it is more
likely than not that some portion or all deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for
income taxes for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. ASC Topic 740 prescribes a recognition threshold and a
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Benefits
from tax positions should be recognized in the financial statements only when it is more- likely- than- not that the tax position will be sustained upon
examination by the appropriate taxing authority that would have full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position that meets the more-
likely- than- not recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon
ultimate settlement. Tax positions that previously failed to meet the more- likely- than- not recognition threshold should be recognized in the first
subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is met. Previously S6reeegnized-- recognized tax positions that no longer meet the
more- likely- than- not recognition threshold should be derecognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is no
longer met. ASC Topic 740, “ Income Taxes ” also provides guidance on the accounting for and disclosure of unrecognized tax benefits, interest and
penalties. Advertising Expenses — Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Freasury-S0Treasury Stock — The acquisition of treasury stock is
recorded under the cost method. The subsequent disposition or sale of the treasury stock is recorded using the average cost method. Wealth
Management — Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Corporation and therefore are not included in the consolidated financial
statements. The fair value of #rastassets under management (including assets held at third party brokers) was $ 1. 3 billion at December 31, 2024
and $ 1. 2 billion at December 31, 2023 and-$1-0-bithon-atDeeember3+2022-. Off- Balance Sheet Financial Instruments — In the ordinary course
of business, the Bank has entered into off- balance sheet financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit and letters of credit. Such
financial instruments are recorded on the balance sheet when they are funded. The amount of any liability for the credit risk associated with off-
balance sheet financial instruments is recorded in other liabilities and was $ 2. 0 million at December 31, 2623-2024 and $+—-5-millienat-December
31,2022-2023 . Stock- Based Compensation — The Corporation accounts for stock- based compensation in accordance with the ASC Topic 718, «
Stock Compensation. ” ASC Topic 718 requires compensation costs related to share- based payment transactions to be recognized in the financial
statements (with limited exceptions). The amount of compensation cost is measured based on the grant- date fair value of the equity or liability
instruments issued and forfeitures are accounted for as they occur. Compensation cost is recognized over the period that an employee provides
services in exchange for the award. The Corporation allows the employee to use shares to satisfy employer income tax withholding obligations.
Pension — The provision for pension expense was actuarially determined using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The funding policy is
to contribute an amount sufficient to meet the requirements of ERISA, subject to Internal Revenue Code contribution limitations. In accordance with
ASC Topic 715, “ Compensation — Retirement Benefits ”, the Corporation recognizes the plan’ s over- funded or under- funded status as an asset or
liability with an offsetting adjustment to Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (AOCI). ASC Topic 715 requires the determination of the fair
value of a plan’ s assets at the company’ s year- end and the recognition of actuarial gains and losses, prior service costs or credits, transition assets or
obligations as a component of AOCI. These amounts will be subsequently recognized as components of net periodic benefit costs. Further, actuarial
gains and losses that arise in subsequent periods that are not initially recognized as a component of net periodic benefit costs will be recognized as a
component of AOCI. Those amounts will subsequently be recorded as a component of net periodic benefit costs as they are amortized during future
periods. Earnings per share — Earnings per share are computed based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during each year. The
Corporation’ s basic earnings per share are calculated as net income divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding. For diluted
earnings per share, net income is divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding plus the incremental number of shares added as a
result of converting common stock equivalents, calculated using the treasury stock method. The Corporation’ s common stock equivalents consist of
stock options and restricted stock awards. A reconciliation of the weighted average shares outstanding used to calculate basic earnings per share and
diluted earnings per share follows: (Dollars and shares in thousands, except per share data) 2623-2024 2622Weighted-2023Weighted average shares
outstanding (basic) 4, 374-403 4, 42Hmpaet—- 374Impact of common stock equivalents 711 24Weighted-7TWeighted average shares outstanding
(diluted) 4, 384414 4, 445Ant+-381Anti - dilutive options excluded from calculation — — 29Net—- Net income $ 11, 099 $ 13, 598-$14;-938Baste—
598Basic carnings per share $ 2. 52 § 3. H-$3-38DPiluted-11Diluted carnings per share $ 2. 51 § 3. 10 $3-36-Segment Reporting — The Bank acts as
an independent community financial services provider and offers traditional banking and related financial services to individual, business and
government customers. Through its community offices and electronic banking applications, the Bank offers a full array of commercial and retail
financial services, including the taking of time, savings and demand deposits; the making of commercial, consumer and mortgage loans; and the
providing efsafe deposit services. The Bank also performs personal, corporate, pension and fiduciary services through its Wealth Management
Department. Prior to 2024, the Corporation had one reportable segment, Community Banking, that reflected the consolidated results of the
Corporation. Beginning in 2024, StManagement—- Management dees—net—sepaf&tely—&l—lee&te—e*peﬁses—determlned that its Wealth Management

function qualified as a reportable segment . in addition to Community tre

retail;-mortgage-banking-Banking and-trustoperations-of the Bank—As-sueh-, because of the amount of fee income 1t generates, 1ts dlscrete




financial information , and is-its management netavatable-and review by its chief operating decision maker. Note 25 of the accompanying
financial statements provides additional information on the reportable segment-segments reperting-werld-netbe-meaningful- Comprehensive
S51Comprehensive Income — Comprehensive income is reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income and includes net income
and unrealized gains or losses, net of tax, on investment securities , derivatives , reclassifications and the change in plan assets and benefit
obligations on the Bank’ s pension plan, net of tax. Reclassification — Certain prior period amounts may have been reclassified to conform to the
current yuu s plusunhl]on Such lulasmlmallons did not affect rupomd net lmmm 52Ruu11 Auoumm; Pronoumumnls Ruun]\ adopted

accounting smnddlds ASU ”02 3-01, Lu.dsn.s (Topic 842): Common ( ontrol /\1mn%mgntsDcsu1pt|0n This /\gl) requires entities to determine
whether a related party arrangement between entities under common control is a lease. If the arrangement is determined to be a lease, an entity must
classify and account for the lease on the same basis as an arrangement with a related party (on the basis of legally enforceable terms and conditions).
Effective Date January 1, 2024Effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements The Corporation adopted the ASU is-in 2024 and it did not
expeetedte-have an impaet-effect on its consolidated the-Corperation™s-financial statements. ASU 2023- 02, Investments- Equity Method and Joint
Ventures (Topic 323): Accounting for Investments in Tax Credit Structures Using the Proportional Amortization MethodDescription This ASU
permits reporting entities to elect to account for their tax equity investments, regardless of the tax credit program from which the income tax credits
are received, using the proportional amortization method if certain conditions are met. Effective Date January 1, 2024Effect on the Consolidated

Financial %mtcmcms The Corporatlon adopted the /\QL is-in 2024 and it did not e*peefed—te—hm e an fm-paet—effect on %he—@efpef&ﬁeﬂ'—s—ﬁﬁaﬂeia-}
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Cerperation’s-financial statements. ASU 2023- 07, Segment Reporting (Topic 780) improvements to Reportable Segment DisclosuresDescription
This ASU is intended to improve reportable segment disclosure requirements primarily through enhanced diselseures— disclosures about significant
sement-segment expenses. Effective Date Fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2024Effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements The Corporation adopted s-eurrently-evaluating-theimpaet-the ASU will-as of
December 31, 2024 and it did not have an effect on its consolidated financial statements. Recently issued but not yet effective accounting
standards ASU 2023- 64+-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax DisclosuresDescription This ASU is intended to
improve the transparency of income tax disclosures by requiring consistent categories and greater disaggregation of information in the rate
reconciliation table and income taxes paid to be disaggregated by jurisdiction. It also includes certain amendments to improve the
effectiveness of income tax disclosures. Effective Date January 1, 2025Effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements The ASU is not
expected to have an impact on the Corporation' s financial statements. ASU 2023- 06 , Disclosure Improvements: Codification Amendments in
Response to the SEC' s Disclosure Update and Simplification InitiativeDescription This ASU incorporates certain U. S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) disclosure requirements into the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The amendments in the ASU are expected to clarify
or improve disclosure and presentation requirements of a variety of Codification Topics, allow users to more easily compare entities subject to the
SEC' s existing disclosures with those entities that were not previously subject to the requirement, and align the requirements in the Codification with
the SEC' s regulations. Effective Date The effective date for each amendment will be the date on which the SEC' s removal of that related disclosure
from Regulation S- X or Regulation S- K becomes effective, with early adoption prohibited. Effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements The
ASU is not expected to have an impact on the Corporation' s financial statements. ASU 2024- 03, Income Statement Expense Disaggregation
Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40) Disaggregation of Income Statement ExpenseDescription This ASU will change the disclosures about a public
business entity' s expenses and address requests from investors for more detailed information about the types of expenses (for example,
employee compensation, depreciation, and amortization) in expense captions. Effective Date Fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2026



and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2027. Early adoption is permitted. Effect on the Consolidated Financial
Statements The ASU is not expected to have an impact on the Corporation’' s financial statements. 54Nete-53Note 2. Regulatory Matters The
Bank is limited as to the amount it may lend to the Corporation, unless such loans are collateralized by specific obligations. State regulations also
limit the amount of dividends the Bank can pay to the Corporation and are generally limited to the Bank’ s accumulated net earnings, which were $
+52-160 . 76 million at December 31, 2623-2024 . In addition, dividends paid by the Bank to the Corporation would be prohibited if the effect
thereof would cause the Bank” s capital to be reduced below applicable minimum capital requirements. The Bank is subject to various regulatory
capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and
possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’ s financial statements.
Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of the Bank’ s assets, liabilities, and certain off- balance- sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting
practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgements by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and
other factors. Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios
(set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk- weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as
defined) to average assets (as defined). Although not adopted in regulation form, the Pennsylvania Department of Banking utilizes capital standards
requiring a minimum leverage capital ratio of 6 % and a total risk- based capital ratio of 10 %, defined substantially the same as those by the FDIC.
Management believes, as of December 31, 2023-2024 , that the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject. The Corporation
and the Bank are subject to the capital requirements contained in the regulation generally referred to as Basel I1I. The Basel III standards were
effective for the Corporation and the Bank, effective January 1, 2015. Basel 111 imposes significantly higher capital requirements and more restrictive
leverage and liquidity ratios than those previously in place. The capital ratios to be considered “ well capitalized ” under Basel III are: (1) Common
Equity Tier 1 (CET1) of 6. 5 %, (2) Tier 1 Leverage of 5 %, (3) Tier 1 Risk- Based Capital of 8 %, and (4) Total Risk- Based Capital of 10 %. The
CETI ratio is a new capital ratio under Basel III and the Tier 1 risk- based capital ratio of 8 % has been increased from 6 %. The rules also included
changes in the risk weights of certain assets to better reflect credit and other risk exposures. In addition, a capital conservation buffer of 2. 50 % is
applicable to all of the capital ratios except for the Tier 1 Leverage ratio. The capital conservation buffer is equal to the lowest value of the three
applicable capital ratios less the regulatory minimum (“ adequately capitalized ”’) for each respective capital measurement. The Bank’ s capital
conservation buffer at December 31, 2023-2024 was 54 . 63-96 %. Compliance with the capital conservation buffer is required in order to avoid
limitations on certain capital distributions, especially dividends. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Bank was “ well capitalized’ under the Basel 111
requirements. For additional information on the capital ratios see the section titled Shareholders’ Equity, and Table 13. At December 31, 2623-2024 ,
the Corporation had $ 20. 0 million of unsecured subordinated debt notes payable, $ 15. 0 million which mature on September 1, 2030 and $ 5. 0
million which mature on September 1, 2035. The notes are recorded on the consolidated balance sheet net of remaining debt issuance costs totaling $
339 thousand at December 31, 2623-2024 , which is being amortized on a pro- rata basis over a 5- year and 10- year period, based on the maturity
dates of the notes, on an effective interest method. The subordinated notes totaling $ 15. 0 million have a fixed interest rate of 5. 00 % through
September 1, 2025, then convert to a variable rate of 90- day Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 4. 93 % for the applicable interest
periods through maturity. The subordinated notes totaling $ 5. 0 million have a fixed interest rate of 5. 25 % through September 1, 2030, then convert
to a variable rate of 90- day SOFR plus 4. 92 % for the applicable interest periods through maturity. The Corporation may, at its option, redeem the
notes, in whole or in part, at any time 5- years prior to the maturity. The notes are structured to qualify as Tier 2 Capital for the Corporation and there
are no debt covenants on the notes. In 2019, the Community Bank Leverage Ratio (CBLR) was approved by federal banking agencies as an optional
capital measure available to Qualifying Community Banking Organizations (QCBO). If a bank qualifies as a QCBR and maintains a CBLR of 9 % or
greater, the bank would be considered ““ well- capitalized ” for regulatory capital purposes and exempt from complying with the Basel III risk- based
capital rule. The CBLR rule was effective January 1, 2020 and banks could opt- in through an election in the first quarter 2020 regulatory filings. The
Bank meets the criteria of a QCBO but did not opt- in to the CBLR. The consolidated asset limit on small bank holding companies is $ 3 . 0 billion
and a company with assets under that limit is not subject to the consolidated capital rules but may file reports that include capital amounts and ratios.
The Corporation has elected to file those reports. $5Fhe-54The following table presents the regulatory capital ratio requirements for the Corporation
and the Bank. As of December 31, 2623-2024 Regulatory Ratios Adequately Capitalized Well Capitalized Actual Minimum Minimum (Dollars in
thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount RatioCommon Equity Tier 1 Risk- based Capital Ratio (1) Corporation $ 171, 208 11. 31 % $ 68,
095N /AN/AN/ABank 179, 837 11. 71 % 69, 088 4. 50 % $ 99, 794 6. 50 % Tier 1 Risk- based Capital Ratio (2) Corporation $ 171, 208
11.31 % $ 90,793 N /A N /A N/ABank 179, 837 11. 71 % 92, 117 6. 00 % $ 122, 823 8. 00 % Total Risk- based Capital Ratio (3)
Corporation $ 209, 603 13. 85 % $ 121,057 N/ A N/ A N / ABank 199, 033 12. 96 % 122, 823 8. 00 % $ 153, 529 10. 00 % Tier 1 Leverage
Ratio (4) Corporation $ 171, 208 7. 92 % $ 86,449 N/ A N /A N / ABank 179, 837 8. 20 % 87, 715 4. 00 % $ 109, 644 5. 00 % As of
December 31, 2023 Regulatory Ratios Adequately Capitalized Well Capitalized Actual Minimum Minimum (Dollars in thousands) Amount
Ratio Amount Ratio Amount RatioCommon Equity Tier 1 Risk- based Capital Ratio (1) Corporation $ 164, 060 11.82 % $ 62,463 N/ A N/
A N /ABank 171, 932 12. 38 % 62,496 4. 50 % $ 90, 271 6. 50 % Tier 1 Risk- based Capital Ratio (2) Corporation $ 164, 060 11. 82 % $ 83,284 N
/AN/AN/ABank 171,932 12. 38 % 83,327 6.00 % $ 111, 103 8. 00 % Total Risk- based Capital Ratio (3) Corporation $ 200, 589 14.45 % $
111,046 N/AN/A N/ABank 189,300 13.63 % 111, 103 8. 00 % $ 138, 879 10. 00 % Tier 1 Leverage Ratio (4) Corporation $ 164, 060 9. 01 %

$72 833N/AN/AN/ABank17l 9329 44"/;72 8714 00"/>$91 088 5. 00%—As—e§Beeember—34ﬁ-92—2—Regu{&tefy—R&Hesﬁéeqﬁate}y

-$-8—7‘—4-1—1%—99%(1) Common Lqulty TILI' 1 capltal / total rlsk wught@d assgts (2) Tier 1 mpltal /t()tdl risk- wught@d assets (3) Total risk- bascd
capital / total risk- weighted assets (4) Tier 1 capital / average quarterly assets Note 3. Restricted Cash Balances The Federal Reserve’ s reserve
requirement on the Bank’ s deposit liabilities is 0 %. Therefore, the Bank was not required to hold any reserves at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-.
At December 31, 2622-2024 , the Corporation had posted cash collateral of $ S . 2 million to a counterparty in a derivative transaction.
S6Nete-55Note 4. Investments Available for Sale (AFS) SecuritiesThe following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair value of securities
available- for- sale at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-and the corresponding amounts of gross unrealized gains and losses recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities available for sale as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-is as follows: (Dollars in thousands) Gross Gross Amortized unrealized unrealized FairDecember 31, 2023
2024 cost gains losses valueU. S. Treasury $ 83-36 , 494-192 § — S (94 , 4063-395 ) $ 74-31 . 89 Munieipal-797Municipal +61-156 , 339—528 37
(22,724973 ) 138-133 , 618Cerperate-592Corporate 26, 336—356 1 (3-2 , 438-133 ) 23-24 | 198Ageney-224Agency mortgage & asset- backed
+42-180 , 565-90-423 178 (10, 864-780 ) +32-169 , 5HNen-821Non - Agency mortgage & asset- backed 154 +08;185-48+(4;228)104;-005Fotat-$
52—1—9-1-9—$—1—3—8—$—(49— 554 ¥$-472-45 (5 , 503-429) 149, 170Total $ 554, 053 $ 261 $ (45, 710) $ 508, 604 (Dollars in thousands) Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized FairDecember 31, 2622-2023 cost gains losses valueU. S. Treasury $ +64-83 ,980-494 § — § (9, 403) $ 74,

091Municipal ++161 , 339 —4—2—3}—$—9(-)—2—54-th9£—1-8~6—997—1-4—( 36-22 , 566-721 ) +55-138 . 455Ceorporate-618Corporate 26, 3+6-336 — (23 .



077138 ) 24-23 | 239Ageney-198Agency mortgage & asset- backed +63;27449-32-142 , 3583565 90 (56— 10 , 935Nen-064) 132, 591Non -
Agency mortgage & asset- backed 70-108 , 7561185 48 (4, 807-228 ) 65-104 , 950Fetal-- 005Total $ 548-521 , 333-919 $ 34-138 § ( 6+-49 , 531554
) $ 486472 , 836-503 At December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-, the fair value of investment securities pledged to secure public funds and trust
deposits totaled $ 151. 7 million and $ 207. 4 mithenand-$208-9-million, respectively. The Bank has no investment in a single issuer that exceeds
10 % of shareholders equity except U. S. Treasuries. The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2623-2024 , by
contractual maturity are shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because of prepayment or call options embedded in
the securities. Mortgage- backed and asset- backed securities without defined maturity dates are reported on a separate line. (Dollars in thousands)
Amortized cost Fair valueDue in one year or less $ — $ — Due after one year through five years 6442 , 34455038 38 , 672Due-015Due after five
years through ten years +04-87 , 953-88-395 75 , 740Due-855Due after ten years +67-89 | 643 875 75 92- 995274743 219 . +69235-076 189 ,
907Mertgage-613Mortgage - backed and asset- backed 256-334 , 750-236-977 318 , 596Fetal-- 991Total $ 5214-554 , 949-053 § 472-508 , 503-604
The composition of the net realized securities (losses) gains for the years ended December 31 is as follows: (Dollars in thousands) 2623-2024
2022Preeeeds-2023Proceeds $ 42, 413 $ 40, 113 $49;-629-Gross gains realized 42— 6+Gress— 12Gross losses realized (4,267) (1, 131 3452
Net (losses) / gains realized $ (4,267) $ (1, 119) $9H-Tax previsterrbenefit on net Closses JHgains-realized $ 896 $ 235 $—l—96—7—1-mpa:ﬂmeﬁt—
S56Allowance for Credit Losses : The followmg table reflects the unrealized losses in the investment portfolio, aggregated by investment category,
length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position and the number of securities in each category as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-. Securities in an unrealized loss position are evaluated at least quarterly for impairment. For this evaluation,
the Bank considers: (1) the extent to which the fair value is less than amortized cost; (2) adverse conditions specifically related to the security,
industry or geographic area; (3) the payment structure of the debt security and the likelihood of the issuer being able to make payments that increase
in the future; (4) failure of the issuer of the security to make scheduled interest or principal payments; and (5) any changes to the rating of the
security by a rating agency. In addition, the Bank considers whether it intends to sell these securities or whether it will be forced to sell these
securities before the earlier of amortized cost recovery or maturity. The Bank does not have the intent to sell and does not believe it will more likely
than not be required to sell any of these securities prior to a recovery of their fair value to amortized cost. The impairmentidentified-en-debt securities
in a loss position and subject to evaluation at December 31, 2024 and 2023, was-were determined not to be attributable to credit related factors;
therefore, the Bank does not have an allowance for credit loss for these investments. December 31, 2024 Less than 12 months 12 months or more
Total Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized (Dollars in thousands) Value Losses Count Value Losses Count Value Losses Count
U.S. Treasury $ —$ — —$ 31,797 $ (4, 395) 13 $ 31, 797 $ (4, 395) 13 Municipal —— — 132, 550 (22, 973) 164 132, 550 (22, 973) 164
Corporate — — — 23, 237 (2, 133) 50 23, 237 (2, 133) 50 Agency mortgage & asset- backed 55, 121 (2, 251) 18 101, 171 (8, 529) 217 156, 292
(10, 780) 235 Non- Agency mortgage & asset- backed 79, 422 (2, 974) 26 53, 615 (2, 455) 50 133, 037 (5, 429) 76 Total temporarily impaired $
134,543 $ (5, 225) 44 $ 342,370 $ (40, 485) 494 $ 476, 913 $ (45, 710) 538 December 31, 2023 Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total Fair
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized (Dollars in thousands) Value Losses Count Value Losses Count Value Losses Count U. S. Treasury $ —
$——$74,091 8 (9,403) 28 $ 74, 091 $ (9, 403) 28 Municipal — —— 138, 618 (22, 721) 168 138, 618 (22, 721) 168 Corporate 1, 483 (167) 5
21,715 (2,971) 46 23, 198 (3, 138) 51 Agency mortgage & asset- backed 6, 227 (186) 19 118, 053 (9, 878) 223 124, 280 (10, 064) 242 Non- Agency
mortgage & asset- backed 47, 928 (560) 19 50, 071 (3 668) 56 97 999 (4 228) 75 Total temporarlly 1mpa1red $ 55 638 $ (913) 43 S 402 548 $ (48,
641)521 $458 186$(49 554) 564 B 3 g g 3 ed-Fai

699%—645—94—2—)—2—8%—474—8‘%66—143—19—59—1—Equ1ty Securmes at talr valueThe Corporatlon owns one equlty 1nvestment w1th a readlly
determinable fair value. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622- this investment was reported at a fair value of $ 166 thousand and $ 427
theusand-and-$-4+-thousand, respectively, with changes in value reported through income. Note 5. Loans The Bank reports its loan portfolio based
on the primary collateral of the loan. It further classifies these loans by the primary purpose, either consumer or commercial. The Bank’ s mortgage
loans include long- term loans to individuals and businesses secured by mortgages on the borrower’ s real property. Construction loans are made to
finance the purchase of land and the construction of residential and commercial buildings thereon and are secured by mortgages on real estate.
Commercial loans are made to businesses of various sizes for a variety of purposes including construction, property, plant and equipment, and
working capital. Commercial loans also include loans to government municipalities. Commercial lending is concentrated in the Bank’ s primary
market, but also includes purchased loan participations. Consumer loans are comprised of installment, home equity and unsecured personal lines of
credit. Each class of loans involves a different kind of risk. However, risk factors such as changes in interest rates, general economic conditions and
changes in collateral values are common across all classes. The risk of each loan class is presented below. S8Residential-57Residential Real Estate 1-
4 familyThe largest risk in residential real estate loans to retail customers is the borrower’ s inability to repay the loan due to the loss of the primary
source of income. The Bank attempts to mitigate this risk through prudent underwriting standards including employment history, current financial
condition and credit history. These loans are generally owner occupied and serve as the borrower’ s primary residence. The Bank usually holds a first
lien position on these properties but may hold a second lien position in some home equity loans or lines of credit. Commercial purpose loans, secured
by residential real estate, are usually dependent upon repayment from the rental income or other business purposes. These loans are generally non-
owner occupied. In addition to the real estate collateral, these loans may have personal guarantees or UCC filings on other business assets. If a
payment default occurs on a 1- 4 family residential real estate loan, the collateral serves as a source of repayment, but may be subject to a change in
value due to economic conditions. Residential Real Estate ConstructionThis class includes loans to individuals for construction of a primary residence
and to contractors and developers to improve real estate and construct residential properties. Construction loans to individuals generally bear the same
risk as 1- 4 family residential loans. Additional risks may include cost overruns, delays in construction or contractor problems. Loans to contractors
and developers are primarily dependent on the sale of improved lots or finished homes for repayment. Risks associated with these loans include the
borrower’ s character and capacity to complete a development, the effect of economic conditions on the valuation of lots or homes, cost overruns,
delays in construction or contractor problems. In addition to real estate collateral, these loans may have personal guarantees or UCC filings on other
business assets, depending on the financial strength and experience of the developer. Real estate construction loans are monitored on a regular basis
by either an independent third party or the responsible loan officer, depending on the size and complexity of the project. This monitoring process
includes at a minimum, the submission of invoices or AIA documents detailing the cost incurred by the borrower, on- site inspections, and an
authorizing signature for disbursement of funds. Commercial Real EstateCommercial real estate loans may be secured by various types of
commercial property including retail space, office buildings, warchouses, hotels and metelmotels , manufacturing facilities and, agricultural land.
Commercial real estate loans present a higher level of risk than residential real estate loans. Repayment of these loans is normally dependent on cash-
flow generated by the operation of a business that utilizes the real estate. The successful operation of the business, and therefore repayment ability,
may be affected by general economic conditions outside of the control of the operator. On most commercial real estate loans ongoing monitoring of
cash flow and other financial performance indieters-indicators is completed annually through financial statement analysis. In addition, the value of
the collateral may be negatively affected by economic conditions and may be insufficient to repay the loan in the event of default. In the event of
foreclosure, commercial real estate may be more difficult to liquidate than residential real estate. Commercial Commercial loans are made for various



business purposes to finance equipment, inventory, accounts receivables, and operating liquidity. These loans are generally secured by business assets
or equipment, non- real estate collateral and / or personal guarantees. Commercial loans present a higher level of credit risk than other loans because
repayment ability is usually dependent on cash- flow from a business operation that can be affected by general economic conditions. On most
commercial loans ongoing monitoring of cash flow and other financial performance indicators occur at least annually through financial statement
analysis. In the event of a default, collateral for these loans may be more difficult to liquidate, and the valuation of the collateral may decline more
quickly than loans secured by other types of collateral. Loans to governmental municipalities are also included in the Commercial class. These loans
generally have less rlsk than Commerc1al & Industrlal (C & l) loans due to the taxmg authorlty ofthe munlclpallty and 1ts ablllty to assess fees on
s(,rvu,(,s frts-€ acre y etton A P a 4 t a 0

same—ﬁslef&etefs—as—am#ether—eemmefei&k}eaf%onsumchhcsc loam are made for a vancty of reasons to consumers and mcludc term loans and
personal lines- of credit. The loans may be secured or unsecured. Repayment is primarily dependent on the income of the borrower and to a lesser
extent the sale of collateral. The underwriting of these loans is based on the consumer’ s ability and willingness to repay and is determined by the
borrower’ s employment history, current financial condition and credit background. Collateral for these loans, if any, usually depreciates quickly
S59and-—- and therefore, may not be adequate to repay the loan if it is repossessed. Therefore, the overall health of the economy, including
unemployment rates and wages, will have an effect on the credit quality in this loan class. A-S8A summary of loans outstanding, by class, at
December 31 is as follows: (Dollars in thousands) 2623-2024 2022Restdenttal-2023Residential Real Estate 1- 4 Family Consumer first liens $ 181,
780 $ 142, 017-$-85166Comnmereial-017Commercial first licn 58, 821 63, 24-6+-702Fetal-271Total first liens 240, 601 205, 288 146,868
Consumer junior liens and lines of credit 76, 035 68, #52-69;-56+Cemmeretal-752Commercial junior liens and lines of credit 6, 199 3, 809Total 869
4127 Fetaljunior liens and lines of credit 82, 234 72, 56473688 Fetal-561Total residential real estate 1- 4 family 322, 835 277, 849 226:-556
Residential real estate- construction Consumer 20, 742 13, 837143;-968Commeretat-—- 837Commercial 11, 685 12, 063Total 66316;-485Fotat
residential real estate construction 32, 427 25, 900 24;393-Commercial real estate 803, 365 703, 767564;29+Commereial-767Commercial 230, 597
2472, 654235-602F otal-654Total commercial 1, 033, 962 946, 421 799-893-Consumer 8, 853 6, 815 6;499-1, 398, 077 1, 256, 985Less 985165+
Bdtess-: Allowance for credit losses (17, 653) (16, 052 H3F44F5-) Net Loans $ 1, 380,424 $ 1, 240, 933 $45:036;:866-Included in the loan
balances are the following: Net unamortized deferred loan costs $ 1, 766 $ 1, 615 $2;-627-Loans pledged as collateral for borrowings and
commitments from FHLB S 775 410 $ 699 527Federal 52—7—$—58§—69—1—Fedefa-1—1{c%rvc Bank 96, 592 83, 48292922 Tetal-482Total $ 872, 002 $
6 h ; neluded-in-Comm ans-009Loans to dircectors and executive

off'cels and related interests and aff'llated enterpnses were as follows (Dollars in thousands) %92—3—2024 2622Balanee-2023Balance at beginning of
year $ 11, 545 $ 13, 283New 283-$10,162New-loans made 18, 476 8, 876-4-615Repayments-870Repayments (18, 278) (10, 608 H1494-) Balance
atend of year $ 11, 743 $ 11, 545 $13;:283-Note 6. Loan Quality and Allowance for Credit Losses The Bank categorizes loans into risk categories
based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service their debt such as: current financial information, historical payment
experience, credit documentation, and current economic trends, among other factors. Management utilizes a risk rating scale ranging from 1- Prime to
9- Loss to evaluate loan quality. This risk rating scale is used primarily for commercial purpose loans. Consumer purpose loans are identified as
either performing or nonperforming based on the payment status of the loans. Nonperforming consumer loans are loans that are nonaccrual or 90
days or more past due and still accruing. The Bank uses the following definitions for risk ratings: 66Pass--- Pass (1- 5): are considered pass credits
with lower or average risk and are not otherwise classified. OAEM (6): Loans classified as OAEM have a potential weakness that deserves
management’ s close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of
the borrower” s credit position at some future date. Substandard-59Substandard (7): Loans classified as Substandard are inadequately protected by
the current net worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well- defined weakness or
weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some loss if the
deficiencies are not corrected. Doubtful (8): Loans classified as Doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as Substandard, with the
added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions and values, highly
questionable and improbable. Loans that do not share risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual basis. Loans evaluated individually are not
included in the pool evaluation. When management determines that foreclosure is probable or when the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty
at the reporting date and repayment is expected to be provided substantially through the sale of the collateral, the expected credit losses are based on
the fair value of the collateral at the reporting date, adjusted for any discounts and selling costs as appropriate. Management monitors loan
performance on a monthly basis and performs a quarterly evaluation of the adequacy of the Allowance for Credit Loss for loans (ACL). The Bank
begins enhanced monitoring of all loans rated 6 — OAEM or worse and obtains a new appraisal or asset valuation for any loans placed on nonaccrual
and rated 7- Substandard or worse. Management, at its discretion, may determine that additional adjustments to the appraisal or valuation are
required. Valuation adjustments will be made as necessary based on factors, including, but not limited to: the economy, deferred maintenance,
industry, type of property / equipment, age of the appraisal, etc. and the knowledge Management has about a particular situation. In addition, the cost
to sell or liquidate the collateral is also estimated and deducted from the valuation in order to determine the net realizable value to the Bank. When
determining the ACL, certain factors involved in the evaluation are inherently subjective and require material estimates that may be susceptible to
significant change, including the amounts and timing of future cash flows. Management monitors the adequacy of the ACL on an ongoing basis and
reports its adequacy quarterly to the Enterprise Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors. Management believes the ACL at December
31,2023-2024 is adequate. 6+Fhe-60The following table presents loans by year of origination and internally assigned risk ratings as of December
31, 2024 : (Dollars in thousands) Revolving Revolving Term Loans Loans Loans Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year Amortized Converted
As of December 31, 2623-2024 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2649-Prior Cost Basis to Term TotalResidential real estate 1- 4 family: Commercial: Risk
rating: Pass (1- 5) $ 5,306 $ 9, 867436 $ 9-7 . 688-529 S H-10 , 938-133 $ 9-8 , 691099 $ 2-20 , 433-251 $ 224 . 966-079 $ 2;057-%- S 6764 .
086833 OAEM (6) — — — — — — — — — Substandard (7)) —— — — — — 187 — 187 Doubtful §) ————M@ — ———— Total
Commercial 5,306 9, 8679-436 7 , 68811529 10 , 638-9-133 8 , 69+2-099 20 , 433-22-251 4 , 266 9662057 6765 , 686-020 Consumer:
Performing $3;42834;136- 36 +5-, 625-16-214 67 , 245-5;-222-28-248 31 , 4234396826290 14 , 622-216-303 9 , 769-014 27, 744 54, 147 17, 855
257, 815 Nonperforming — — — — — — — — — Total Consumer 53;42834;1436- 36 15-, 62510-214 67 , 245-5;22228-248 31 , 42343968
20-290 14 , 022-216-303 9 , 769-014 27, 744 54, 147 17, 855 257, 815 Total $ 62-41,520 $ 76, 684 $ 38, 819 $ 24,436 $ 17, 113 $47 , 995 § 58,43
413 7 224-$ 26-17 , 663—855 $49-322 | 835 936-57-655-55+329-$-46;,025-520;-022-5-277-849-Current period gross charge- offs § —$—$ —§

§—%—8%—8—8— Residential real estate construction: Commercial: Risk rating: Pass (1- 5) $ 6-5 , 845-582 $ 2-3 , 209-306 $ 403 $ 1, 289
150 $ 159 244-$—=5 1, 5060855 — § — $ 4211 . 63685 OAEM (6) — — — — — — — — — Substandard (7) —— — — — — — — —
Doubtful §) ————————— Total Commercial 65, 8452582 3, 209-306 403 1, 150 159 289244—1. 506085 — —12-11 , 963-685
Consumer: Performing +3-20 ,83+742 — — — — — — — +3-20 , 837742 Nonperforming — — — — — — — — — Total Consumer 43-20 ,
837742 13-20 , 837742 Total $ 20-26 , 682-324 $ 2-3 ., 209-306 $ 403 S 1, 289-150 $ 159 244-$—=5 1, 5060855 — § — $ 25
32 ,900-427 Current period gross charge- offs § —$§ —$ —8§ — 8§ —$ —3$ —§ — $ — Commercial real estate: Risk rating: Pass (1- 5) § 48695 ,
052-410 $ H6-221 , 886-889 $ 98-106 , 546-$5-34;:367-5-38-385 ;-603-5 2+4-93 , +79-228 $ 32, 546 $ 218, 875 $ 16,290 $ — $ 784, 623 OAEM (6)




——1,7721, 711 6, 624 — — — 10, 107 Substandard 567-$—=S$687%134-OAEM-( 7) — 6 ¥, 301 266 — — 2, 018 9551;350-1,-000-6;823—
2—!—82—1—3-9—1—4—449—Sﬁbstaﬂdafd—€79—2—1-34-50 — 28, 484635 Doubtful (8) — — — — — — — — — Total § +83;-007-$H2;
236-5-99:-540-5-41136-538-603-5218:495 95 &, 16-410 -756-5 228 —5-763-, 767190 $ 108, 423 $ 94,939 $ 39,170 $ 220, 893 $ 16, 340 $ —
$ 803, 365 C Llllu]t period gross charge- oﬁx $—$—8—8—$—%—2) $ —$— $—(2) Commercial: Risk rating: Pass (1- 5) § 25, 398 $ 16,
289 $ 27,545 $ 37,927 $ 18,196 $ 60, 126 $ 42, 595 $ — $ 228, 076 OAEM (6) — 11 420 1, 500 9 — 250 — 2, 190 Substandard (7)) —— — —

58 — 273 — 331 Doubtful §) —— — — — — — — — Total $ 25,398 $ 16, 300 $ 27, 965 $ 39,427 $ 18, 263 $ 60, 126 $ 43,118 $ — $ 230,
597 Current period gross charge- offs $ (11) $ —$ (287) $ —$ —$ —$ (161) $ — $ (459) Consumer: Performing 2, 289 1, 140 386 1, 682 36
27 3,291 — 8, 851 Nonperforming — ——1——1—2 Total $2,289 $ 1,140 $386 $ 1, 683 $36 $27 $ 3,292 $§ — $ 8, 853 Current period

gross charge- offs $ (44) $ —$—$—$(6) $ — $ (49) $ —$ (99) 61The following table presents loans by year of origination and internally
assigned risk ratings as of December 31, 2023: (Dollars in thousands) Revolving Revolving Term Loans Loans Loans Amortized Cost Basis
by Origination Year Amortized Converted As of December 31, 2023 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Prior Cost Basis to Term TotalResidential
real estate 1- 4 family: Commercial: Risk rating: Pass (1-5)$ 9,867 $9, 088 $ 11, 038 $ 9, 691 $ 2, 433 $ 22, 906 $ 2, 057 $ — $ 67, 080

OAEM(6) ———M— — — — — — Substandard (7)) ————————— Doubtful ) ————«F — — — — Total Commercial 9,
8679, 088 11, 038 9, 691 2, 433 22, 906 2, 057 — 67, 080 Consumer: Performing 53, 128 34, 136 15, 625 10, 245 5, 222 28, 423 43, 968 20, 022
210, 769 Nonperforming —— — — — — — — — Total Consumer 53, 128 34, 136 15, 625 10, 245 5, 222 28, 423 43, 968 20, 022 210, 769

Total $ 62, 995 $ 43,224 $ 26, 663 $ 19, 936 $ 7, 655 $ 51, 329 $ 46, 025 $ 20, 022 $ 277, 849 Current period gross charge- offs§ —$—$ —$§
—$—9%—8$—$—$— Residential real estate construction: Commercial: Risk rating: Pass (1- 5) $ 6, 845 $2,209 $1,289$214$—$ 1,

5068 —9$—$12,063 OAEM (6) ——— — — — — — — Substandard (7) —— ———— ——— Doubtful §) ———— — — — —
— Total Commercial 6, 845 2, 209 1, 289 214 — 1, 506 — — 12, 063 Consumer: Performing 13,837 — — — — — — — 13, 837
Nonperforming ———— — — — — — Total Consumer 13,837 —— — — — — — 13, 837 Total $ 20,682 $ 2,209 $1,289 $2148$ —$

1,506 $ —$ — $ 25, 900 Current period gross charge- offs$§ —$ —8$ —8$—8$—8$ —$ — 8 —$ — Commercial real estate: Risk rating:
Pass (1- 5) $ 180, 052 $ 110, 886 $ 98, 540 $ 34,307 $ 38, 603 $ 214,179 $ 10, 567 $ — $ 687, 134 OAEM (6) 2, 955 1, 350 1, 000 6, 823 — 2,
182 139 — 14, 449 Substandard (7)) —— — — — 2,134 50 — 2, 184 Doubtful §) ——— ——— —— — Total $ 183, 007 $ 112, 236 $ 99,
540 $ 41,130 $ 38, 603 $ 218, 495 $ 10, 756 $ — $ 703, 767 Current period gross charge-offs$ —$ —$—$—$—$—$—$—$—
Commercial: Risk rating: Pass (1- 5) $ 34, 851 $ 33,983 § 45,754 $ 22,847 $ 3,579 $ 64, 542 § 36, 508 § — § 242, 064 OAEM (6) — — — —

Substandard (7) — 317 273 590 Doubtful (8) Total $ 34, 851 $ 34,300 $ 45, 754 $ 22
847 $ 3,579 $ 64,542 $ 36,781 $ — §$ 242, 654 Current period gross charge- offs $ (125) $ —$ (130) § —§ —$ —$ (50) § — $ (305) Consumer:
Performing 1, 863 669 1, 985 148 80 5 2, 060 — 6, 810 Nonperforming — — — — — — 5—5Total $1,863$66981,9858148$80858 2,

065 $ — $ 6, 815 Current period gross charge- offs $ (63) $—$ (10) $ (2) $ (6) $—$(36) $—$ (117) 62The fol]oxnng presents the amortized
cost basis of loans on nonaccrual status and loans past due over 90 days and still accruing as of December 31, 2024 and 2023: December 31, 2024
December 31, 2023 (Dollars in thousands) Nonaccrual and Loans Past Due Over 90 Days Nonaccrual and Loans Past Due Over 90 Days Loans
Past Due Loans Past Due Nonaccrual Nonaccrual Over 90 Days Nonaccrual Nonaccrual Over 90 Days Without ACL With ACL Still Accruing
Without ACL With ACL Still AccruingDecember 31, 2023-2024 Residential Real Estate 1- 4 Family Firstliens $ —$ —§ —$—8 —8 —
Junior liens and lines of credit ———Total —m—— Residential real estate- construction — — — Commercial real

estate — — — ——— Commuual 266 —— 147 —— ( onsumer —— 2——5 Tolal $ 266 $—$28% 147 §— ‘B 5 T—he—fe-l-}ewmg—ﬁtb-}e-fepeﬁs

6—P99:Fetal—$+939—497—$—3ﬁ346—$4—7-88—$—$+9§4—944—Delmquem Ioans are a 1e\u]t OT bonow ers’ Lash flow and / or dl[el name sources of
cash being insufficient to repay loans. The Bank’ s likelihood of collateral liquidation to repay the loans becomes more probable the further behind a
borrower falls, particularly when loans reach 90 days or more past due. Management monitors the performance status of loans by the use of an aging
report. The aging report can provide an early indicator of loans that may become severely delinquent and possibly result in a loss to the Bank. The
following table presents the aging of payments in the loan portfolio as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-: (Dollars in thousands) Loans Past
Due and-Stit-Aeeraing-Total Total 30- 59 Days 60- 89 Days 90 Days Past Due Current Loans December 31, 2024 Residential Real Estate 1- 4
Family First liens $ 203 $ 640 $ — $ 843 $ 239, 758 $ 240, 601 Junior liens and lines of credit 241 160 — 401 81, 833 82, 234 Total 444 800 —
1, 244 321, 591 322, 835 Residential real estate- construction — — — — 32, 427 32, 427 Commercial real estate 380 219 — 599 802, 766 803,
365 Commercial 747 50 266 1, 063 229, 534 230, 597 Consumer 30 4 2 36 8, 817 8, 853 Total $ 1,601 $ 1,073 $268 $2,942$1,395,1358 1,
398, 077 Loans Past DueTotal Total December 31, 2023 30- 59 Days 60- 89 Days 90 Days Past Due Current Loans Residential Real Estate 1- 4
Family First liens $ 62 $ 394 § — § 456 $ 204, 832 § 205, 288 Junior liens and lines of credit 239 228 — 467 72, 094 7’ 561 Total 301 622 — 923
276, 926 277, 849 Residential real e\lale construction — — — — 25, 900 25, 900 Commercial real estate 3, 232 — — 32700, 535 703, 767
(()mmuual 542 117 147 801 241, 853 242, 63—1(01]sumu 21125386, 7776, 811 Total S4 096 % 746 % 152 % 4,994 S l 751 ‘)91 % 1, 256, ‘)\3
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048:487-$1-05504+-At December 31, 2024 and 2023, th Bank had $ 0 of residential DI”O[)LIIILS in the pmccss of Ioucl()suu compared-to-5120
theusand-at-the-end-of 2022~ Interest not recognized on nonaccrual loans was $ 8 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2024 and $ 6
thousand for the years— year ended December 31, 2023 and-2022-respeetively-. ©r-630n January 1, 2023, The Bank adopted ASU 2022- 02,
Financial Instruments- Credit Losses (Topic 326): Troubled Debt Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures ™ (“ ASU 2022- 02 ), which eliminated the
accounting guidance for troubled debt restructurings (“ TDRs ’) while enhancing disclosure requirements for certain loan refinancing and
restructurings by creditors when a borrower is experiencing financial difficulty. Modifications to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty may
include interest rate reductions, principal or interest forgiveness, forbearances, term extensions, and other actions intended to minimize economic loss
and to avoid t(nulosmc or 1me’scs910n of collateral. I\o loan modltlcdtlons were ll](ld(, to borrowers prumnunu Tlndnudl difficulties during 2024
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4 S < e . Allowance
for Crudlt Lossu Tlm tollowmg tablu shows the activ 1ty in tlm Allowanu for Cruht Loss (ACL) for thu years Lndcd Ducmbur 31,2024 and 2023
and-2022-: Residential Real Estate 1- 4 Family First Junior Liens & Commercial (Dollars in thousands) Liens Lines of Credit Construction Real
Estate Commercial Consumer Unallocated Total ACL at December 31,2023 $ 1,296 $ 419 $ 296 $ 10,657 $ 3,290 $ 94 $ — $ 16, 052 Charge-

offs — — — (2) (459) (99) — (560) Recoveries 3 — 14 4 130 35 — 186 Provision 198 42 66 1, 345 221 103 — 1, 975 ACL at December 31,
2024 $1,497 $461 $376 $ 12,004 $3,182 $133$—$ 17,653 ALL at December 31,2022 § 459 § 234 §343 § 7,493 $4,846 8 133 $ 667 $ 14,
175 Impact of adopting CECL on 1- 1- 23 1, 096 493 (95) 584 (1, 907) (40) (667) (536) Charge- offs — — — — (305) (117) — (422) Recoveries 2

— 491 112 82 — 246 Provision (261) (308) (1) 2, 5 , $419$296$ 10,657 $3,290$94 $
— $ 16, 052 AEE=-At December 31, 2024, there was one collateral dependent loan for $ 266 thousand secured by real estate. There were no
collateral dependent loans al Decembel 31,2624-2023 . Note 7. Premlses and Equlpment The components of premlses and equlpment were as

in thousands) Estlmated Life 292—3—2024 %92%]:&nd—2023Land ‘E 3, 69-7—935 $3, 6-1—7-Bu+}di-ﬁgs-607Bulldmgs and lmsuhold improv ununts 15- 30
years, or lease term 34, 880 33, 9473575 urniture—- 947Furniture , fixtures and equipment3- 10 years 10, 241 11, 8979767 Fetal-097Total cost
49, 056 48, 651Less 65+49435Fess— Accumulated depreciation (20, 017) (20, 108 349;3+09-) Net premises and equipment $ 29, 039 $ 28, 543 &
36;:-026-The following table shows the amount of depreciation for the years ended December 3 1: 2023-2024 2022Depreetation-2023Depreciation
expense $ 1,758 $ 2, 137 $1+-382-Note 8. Leases The Corporation leases various assets in the course of its operations that are subject to recognition
on the balance sheet. The Corporation considers all of its leases to be operating leases and it has no finance leases. The leased assets may include
equipment, and buildings and land (collectively real estate). The equipment leases are shorter- term than the real estate leases, and generally have a
fixed payment over a defined term without renewal options. Certain equipment leases have purchase options and it was determined the option was
not reasonably certain to be exercised. The real estate leases are longer- term and may contain renewal options after the nitial-64initial term, but none
of the real estate leases contain a purchase option. The renewal options on real estate leases were reviewed and if it was determined the option was
reasonably certain to be renewed, the option term was considered in the determination of the lease 66kability—- liability . There is only one real estate
lease with a variable payment based on an index included in the lease liability. None of the leases contain any restrictive covenants and there are no
significant leases that have not yet commenced. The discount rate used to determine the lease liability is based on the Bank’ s fully secured borrowing
rate from the Federal Home Loan Bank for a term similar to the lease term. Operating lease expense is included in net occupancy expense in the
consolidated statements of income. Lease Cost: The components of total lease cost were as follows for the period ending: For the years ended
December 31, (Dollars in thousands) 2623-2024 26220perating-20230perating lcase cost § 845-764 § 779Shert-815Short - term lease cost +6-3
299V ariable-16Variable lcase cost +47-156 433Fetal-147Total lcase cost $ 923 $ 978 $42H-Supplemental Lease Information: (Dollars in
thousands) For the years ended (PeHarsinthousandsy-December 31, 3+€ash—- Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease
liabilities: 2023-2024 20220perating-20230perating cash flows from operating leases $ 733 § 791 $#54-Weighted- average remaining lease term
(years) +2-11 . 8-6 12. 0Weighted- average discount rate 3. 48-48 % 3. 3640 % Lease Obligations: Future undiscounted lease payments for operating
leases with initial terms of one year or more as of December 31, 2023 are as follows: (Dollars in thousands) 2624-2025 $ 6812026 7212025-6662026
5642027 4212028 3932029 3972030 and beyond 3-2 , 265Undiseounted-808Undiscounted cash flows 5, 970 mputed-264Imputed interest (1, +54
001 ) Total lease liability § 4, 846-263 Note 9. Other Real Estate Owned The Bank had no other real estate owned at December 31, 2024 and 2023
and-2022-. Note 10. Goodwill The Bank has $ 9. 0 million of goodwill recorded on its balance sheet as the result of corporate acquisitions. Goodwill
is not amortized, nor deductible for tax purposes. However, Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with ASC Topic 350.
Goodwill was tested for impairment as of August 31, 2623-2024 . The 2623-2024 test was conducted using a qualitative assessment method that
requires the use of significant assumptions in order to make a determination of likely impairment. These assumptions may include, but are not limited
to: macroeconomic factors, banking industry conditions, banking merger and acquisition trends, the Bank’ s historical financial performance, the
Corporation’ s stock price, forecast Bank financial performance, and change of control premiums. Management determined the Bank’ s goodwill was
not likely impaired in 2623-2024 and did not make a further assessment. The 2622-2023 impairment test was also conducted using a qualitative
assessment and Management determined the Bank’ s goodwill was not likely impaired in 2822-2023 and did not make a further assessment. 6/ Nete
65Note | 1. Deposits Deposits are summarized as follows at December 31: (Dollars in thousands) 2023-2024 2022Neninterest-2023Noninterest -
bearing checking $ 290, 346 $ 273, 050 $299:234-Interest- bearing checking 417, 870 454, 537-496;-533Meney-517Money management 694, 880
572, 858-569:-585Savings— 058Savings 96, 646 105, 9671428;709Fetal—- 907Total interest- bearing checking and savings 1,209,396 1, 132, 482 45
+94:-827-Time deposits 315, 905 132, 446 57-398-Total deposits $ 1, 815,647 $ 1, 537, 978 $4-555448-Overdrawn deposit accounts reclassified as
loans $ 136 $ 160 $4+63-Time deposits greater than $ 250, 000 at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-were $ 44-77 . 4 million and $ 844 . 84
million, respectively. At December 31, 2623-2024 the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows: (Dollars in thousands) Time Pepesits2624
Deposits2025 $ 94-208 , 2182026 51+92625-19-6692626-8, 9992027 24, 8642028 S, +042627-1042029 3-68 , 61126287263 Fotal-- 720Total § 132
315, 446905 The deposits of directors, executive officers, related interests and affiliated enterprises totaled $ 4. 1 million and $ 4. 8 milien-and-$4-
3-million at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. Note 12. Other Borrowings The Bank has access to short- term borrowings from
the FHLB in the form of a revolving term commitment used to fund the short- term liquidity needs of the Bank. These borrowings reprice on a daily
basis and the interest rate fluctuates with short- term market interest rates. The Bank had no short- term borrowings at December 31, 2024 and 2023
and-2022-. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, other borrowings were: December 31 (Dollars in thousands) 20623-2024 2022FHEB-2023FHLB
maturing January 12, 2027, with fixed rate at 4. 32 % $ 200, 000 $- FHLB maturities through 2024, floating with SOFR, at rates from 5. 82 % to
5. 83 %, averaging 5. 82 % $~40, 999—$-—Fedefa-l—000Federal Rcsmc Baﬂ-k—mdturmcs tlnougjh 2024 w1th ’nxud rate-atrates from 4. 38 % to 4. 93 %,
a\uragmgél 58 % =90, 000-—$ 200 000 $ 130, OOO h atera 699- a Sery
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ne-advanees-atPeeember3+2022-The Bank’ s maximum borrowing capacity with the FHLB at December 31, 2023-2024 was $ 484-562 . 2-7
million with § 444-362 . 2-7 million available to borrow. This borrowing capacity is secured by a Blanket Pledge Agreement with FHLB on the Bank’
s real estate loan portfolio ($ 775. 4 million) together with pledged securities with a fair value of $ 28. 0 million . 68Seheduled-66Scheduled
payments on other borrowings over the next five years are as follows: (Dollars in thousands) 2624-2025 $ 4366062025 2026- 2027 200, 0002028 -
26282029 - $ +36-200 , 000 The Bank has established credit at the Federal Reserve Discount Window and as of year- end had the ability to borrow
approximately $ 56-65 million. The Bank also has $ 56-76 . 0 million in unsecured lines of credit at +we-three correspondent banks. Note 13.
Subordinate Notes At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the Corporation had $ 20. 0 million of unsecured subordinated debt notes payable, $
15. 0 million which mature on September 1, 2030 and $ 5. 0 million which mature on September 1, 2035. The notes are recorded on the consolidated
balance sheet net of remaining debt issuance costs totaling $ 339 thousand at December 31, 2623-2024 and $ 377. 0 thousand at December 31, 2622
2023, which is being amortized on a pro- rata basis, based on the maturity dates of the notes, on an effective interest method. The subordinated notes
totaling $ 15. 0 million have a fixed interest rate of 5. 00 % through September 1, 2025, then convert to a variable rate of 90- day Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 4. 93 % for the applicable interest periods through maturity. The subordinated notes totaling $ 5. 0 million have a fixed
interest rate of 5. 25 % through September 1, 2030, then convert to a variable rate of 90- day SOFR plus 4. 92 % for the applicable interest periods
through maturity. The Corporation may, at its option, redeem the notes, in whole or in part, at any time 5- years prior to the maturity. The notes are
structured to qualify as Tier 2 Capital for the Corporation and there are no debt covenants on the notes. Note 14. Federal-Income Taxes The
temporary differences which give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 are as follows: (Dollars in
thousands) Deferred Tax Assets 2023-2024 2022AHowanee-2023 Allowance for fean-credit losses $ 3, 440-810 $ 3, 824 Deferred—- 440Deferred
compensation 939-951 946Purehase-939Purchase accounting 20 +9Aeeumutated-20Accumulated other comprehensive loss 9, 439 10, 882Lease
88243633 ease-liabilitics 920 1, 8324;3090ther-0320ther 596280Fetal-605 596Total gross deferred tax assets 15, 745 16, 909 49:3478-Deferred
Tax Liabilities Depreciation 2, 936 3, 623-+-079Right-023Right - of- usc assct 886 1, 802428 Heint—- 002Joint ventures and partnerships 43-48
45Penston-43Pension 69471 Deferred-663 694Deferred loan fees and costs, net 346-381 432Fetal-346Total gross deferred tax liabilities 4, 914 5,
108Net +68-3-548Net-deferred tax asset $ 10, 831 $ 11, 801 $45:630-In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, Management considers
whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management
considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.
Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are
deductible, Management believes it is more likely than not that the Bank will realize the benefits of these deferred tax assets other than those for
which a valuation allowance has been recorded. 69Fhe-67The components of income taxes attributable to income from operations were as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31 (Dollars in thousands) 2023-2024 2022€urrent-2023Current tax expense (benefit) $ 2, 689 $ 1, 645-%45
385Peferred-015Deferred tax cxpense (benefit) (473) 1, 44047 2neeme-140Income tax provision $ 2,216 $ 2, 155 $25-55%For the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the income tax provisions are different from the tax expense which would be computed by applying the
Federal statutory rate to pretax operating earnings. The Federal statutory rate was 21 % for 2024 and 2023 and-2022-. A reconciliation between the
tax provision at the statutory rate and the tax provision at the effective tax rate is as follows: For the Years Ended December 31 (Dollars in
thousands) 2024 % 2023 2022Fax-% Tax provision at statutory rate $ 2, 79621. 0 % $ 3, 368-$35-31021. 0 % 674neeme—-- Income on tax-
exempt loans and securities ( 881)- 6. 6 % (949) 5H3)—- 6. 0 % [nvestment in solar tax credit (29)- 0. 2 % (325) ——= 2.1 % Nondeductible
interest expense relating to carrying tax- exempt obligations 3232. 4 % 2+5-2151 . 4 % 4Hneome—- Income from bank owned life insurance ( 107)-
0.8 % (88)863-0. 6 % Stock option compensation £120. 1 % (1) 0. 0 % 5O6ther- Other . nct 1020. 8 % (5-7 ) 0. 0 % 36ineerme—- Income tax
provision $ 2, 455-21616. 6 % $ 2, 15513 557 Effeetiveineometax—rate13-. 7 %34—6-% The Corporation recognizes interest accrued related to
unrecognized tax benefits and penalties in income tax expense for all periods presented. No penalties or interest were recognized in 2024 or 2023 et
2022-. The Corporation had no uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2623-2024 . The Corporation is no longer subject to U. S. Federal and state
examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2026-2021 . Note 15. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) The components of
accumulated other comprehensive loss included in shareholders' equity at December 31 are as follows: For the Years Ended December 31 2024 2023
2022-Net unrealized gains-losses on debt securities $ (43, 149) $ (49, 416 ¥$464497) Tax effect 9, 061 10, 377Ending 377342;-9H4Ending-balance
$ (34, 088) $ (39, 039 ¥$48;-583-) Accumulated pension adjustment $ (1, 797) $ (2, 406 3$-35423-) Tax effect 565-HINet-377 505Net of tax
amount $ (1, 420) $ (1, 901 ¥$42,764-) Total accumulated other comprehensive €loss $ (35, 508 ) treeme-$ (40, 940 y$54287) Note 16. Financial
Derivatives The Corporation is exposed to certain risks arising from both its business operations and economic conditions. The Corporation
principally manages its exposures to a wide variety of business and operational risks through management of its core business activities. The
Corporation manages economic risks, including interest rate, liquidity, and credit risk, primarily by managing the amount, sources, and duration of its
assets and liabilities. Fair Value Hedges — The Corporation -s-existing-eredit-entered into certain interest rate swap contracts designated as fair
value portfolio layer hedges of certain available- for- sale investment securities. The Corporation makes a fixed payment and receives a
variable payment over the life of the contracts. The hedges were determined to be effective during all periods presented and are expected to
be effective during the remaining term of the contracts. At December 31, 2024, the Corporation had posted cash collateral of $ S. 2 million to
a counterparty, reported in interest- bearing deposits in other banks on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 68Derivatives Not Designated as
Hedges — These derivatives result from participations in interest rate swaps provided by external lenders as part of loan participation arrangements,
therefore, are not used to manage interest rate risk in the Corporation’ s assets or liabilities. 70Bertvatives—- Derivatives not designated as hedges are
not speculative and result from a service the Corporation provides to certain lenders which participate in loans. The table below presents the fair value
of the Corporation’ s derivative financial instruments as well as their classification on the Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2024 and 2023: Fair
Value of Derivative Instruments Derivative Liabilities (Dollars in thousands) As of December 31, 2023-2024 As of December 31, 26222023
Notional amount Balance Sheet Location Fair Value Notional amount Balance Sheet Location Fair ValueDerivatives designated as hedging
instruments Interest rate swaps $ 111, 087 Other Assets $ 2, 275 $ — Other Assets $ — Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments
$ 2,275 $ — Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments Other Contracts $ 6, 064 Other Liabilities $ — $ 6, 268 Other Liabilities § 2 $-65
465-OtherEtabilittes$3-Total derivatives not designated as hedging instruments $ — $ 2 The table below presents the effect of the Corporation’ s
derivative financial instruments that are designated as hedging instruments on the Income Statement as of December 31, 2024 and 2023:
Effect of Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments on the Statement of Financial PerformanceDerivatives Designated as Hedging
Instruments under Subtopic 815- 20 Location of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Income on Derivative Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in
Income on Derivatives (Dollars in thousands) Year Ended December 31 2024 2023Interest rate swaps Investment income $ 3-212 $- The table
below presents the effect of the Corporation’ s derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments on the Income
Statement as of December 31, 2024 and 2023: Effect of Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments on the Statement of Financial
PerformanceDerivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments under Subtopic 815- 20 Location of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Income on
Derivative Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Income on Derivatives (Dollars in thousands) Year Ended December 31 2623-2024 20220ther
20230ther Contracts Other income $ 1 $ +8-As-1 69The table below presents the carrying amount of the derivative financial instruments as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 5-: Carrying amount of thc hedged items Cumulative amount of fair valuc efderivatives-hedging instruments
(Dollars in a—net—habﬂ-rty—pestﬂeﬂ-thousands) Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31 2024 2023 2024 2023Investment securities ,



AFS (1) $ 112, 261 $- $ (2, 300) $- (1) The amounts represent the amortized cost basis of closed portfolios used to designate hedging
relationships in which ineludes-aeerned-interest-butexeludesany-adjustment-the hedged item is the stated amount of assets in the closed portfolio
anticipated to be outstanding for nenperformaneerisk-the designated hedge period. At December 31 , relatedt0-2024, the fair value of the
closed portfolio used in these agreements-hedging relationships was $ 2 theusand-. 3 million and the notional amount was $ 111. 1 million .
Note 17. Benefit Plans The Bank has a 401 (k) plan which includes an auto enrollment feature and covers all employees of the Bank who have
completed four months of service. Employee contributions to the plan are matched at 100 % up to 4 % of each participant’ s deferrals plus 50 % of
the next 2 % of deferrals from participants’ eligible compensation. Under this plan, the maximum amount of employee contributions in any given
year is defined by Internal Revenue Service regulations. In addition, a 100 % discretionary profit- sharing contribution of up to 2 % of each
employee’ s eligible compensation is possible provided net income targets are achieved. The related expense for the 401 (k) plan, and the
discretionary profit- sharing plan was $ 1. 3 million in 2024 and in 2023 aad-$+—4-milllenin2022-. This expense is recorded in the Salary and
employee benefits line of the Consolidated Statements of Income. The Bank has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering employees
hired prior to April 1, 2007 and the plan was closed to new participants on this date. Benefits are based on years of service and the employee’ s
compensation using a career average formula. The Bank’ s funding policy is to contribute the annual amount required to meet the minimum funding
requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Contributions are intended to provide not only for the benefits attributed to
service to date but also for those expected to be earned in the future. Employees who are eligible for pension benefits may elect to receive an annuity
style payment or a lump- sum payout of their pension benefits. Pension service costs are recorded in Salary and benefits expense while all other
components of net periodic pension costs are recorded in other expense. For the next fiscal year, the estimated net loss for the defined benefit
pension plan that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit costs is $ 6-78 thousand . The Bank
uses December 31 as the measurement date for its pension plan. The Bank’ s Pension Committee reviews and determines all the assumptions used to
determine the benefit obligations and expense annually. Historical investment returns play a significant role in determining the expected long- term
rate of return on Plan assets. #4+Fhe-70The following table sets forth the plan’ s funded status, based on the 2022-2024 and 2023 actuarial valuations:
For the Years Ended December 31 (Dollars in thousands) 2023-2024 2622€hange-2023Change in projected benefit obligation Benefit obligation at
beginning of measurement year $ 13, 865-$49-129 § 13 , 002Serviee-865Service cost 246-219 3421nterest— 216Interest cost 866-769 672Aetuarial-
- 806Actuarial (gain) loss ( 14) (214 4264 Benetlts paid ( 855) (1, 544 335950-) Benefit obligation at end of measurement year 13, 248 13,
129 43;:-865-Change in plan assets Fair value of plan assets at beginning of measurement year 13, 779-48-962 13 , 462Aetual-779Actual return on
plan assets net of expenses 1, 414 1 72942~ 7333 Benefits-727Benefits paid ( 855) (1, 544 345956 Fair value of plan assets at end of measurement
year 14, 521 13, 962 43;-779-Funded status of projected benefit obligation $ 1,273 $ 833 $86)-For the Years Ended December 31 2023-2024
tons-2023 Assumptions uscd to determine benefit obligations: Discount rate 6. 32 % 5. 96 % 6—=37%-Rate of compensation increase -5
.00 % 6. 00 % Expected long- term return on plan assets 6. 00 % 6. 00 % (Dollars in thousands) Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive For the Years Ended December 3 1income (loss), net of tax 2023-2024 2022Net-2023Net actuarial loss $ (1, 797) $ (2, 406 ¥$-35
423-) Tax effect 505FH9INet-377 505Net amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (1, 420) $ (1, 901) $+42,-764—72-(Dollars in
thousands) For the Years Ended December 31Components of net periodic pension cost 2023-2024 2022Serviee-2023Service cost $ 246219 §
342nterest— 216Interest cost 886-769 672Expeeted—- 806Expected rcturn on plan assets ( 863) (923 H994-) Recognized net actuarial loss 43 —
598Net-Net periodic pension cost 168 99-618Settlementexpense—290Fetal- 99Total net periodic pension cost $ 168 $ 99 $-908Fe+71For the
Years Ended December 31 2623-2024 2022Assumptions-2023 Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost: Discount rate 5. 96 % 6. 17
953—H"% Rate of compensation increase 6. 00 % 56 . 00 % Expected long- term return on plan assets 6. 00 % 6. 00 % Asset allocations: Cash and
cash equivalents 3 % 3 % Common stocks 29 % 36 %433-% Corporate bonds +4-17 % 14 % Municipal bonds 28-24 % 28 % Investment fund- debt 6
% 2 %6-% Investment fund- equity 18 % 13 %+4-% Deposit in immediate participation guarantee contract 3 % 4 %2-% Total 100 % 100 % The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of the assets held by the plan. See Note 22 for additional information on the
fair value hierarchy. Cash and Cash Equivalents: The carrying value of this asset is considered to approximate its fair value (Level 1). Equity
Securities, Investment Funds (Debt and Equity): The fair value of assets in these categories are determined using quoted market prices from
nationally recognized markets (Level 1). Bonds (Corporate and Municipal): Fair values of these assets was primarily measured using information
from a third- party pricing service. This service provides pricing information by utilizing evaluated pricing models supported with market data
information. Standard inputs include benchmark yields, reported trades, broker / dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two- sided markets, benchmark
securities, bids, offers, and reference data from market research publications. Fair values were estimated primarily by obtaining quoted prices for
similar assets in active markets or through the use of pricing models (Level 2). Immediate Participation Guarantee Contract: The carrying value of
this asset is considered to approximate its fair value. (Level 1). Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance: The cash surrender value of this asset is
considered to approximate its fair value. However, the inputs used to determine the cash surrender value are not readily observable in the market
(Level 3). 73Fhe~- The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Plan's investments at fair value as of December 31,
2024 and 2023 and-2622-. For more information on the levels within the fair value hierarchy, please refer to Note 22. (Dollars in Thousands)
December 31, 2024Asset-2022Asset Description Fair Value Level | Level 2 Level 3Cash and cash equivalents $ 493-464 $ 473-464 $ — $ — Equity
securities 4, 256-502 4, 256-502 — — Corporate bonds 2-1 , 476-915 — 2-1 . 476-915 — Municipal bonds 3, 469-794 — 3. 469-794 — Investment
fund- debt 856-856-766 766 — — Investment fund- equity 21 , 62329351 , 623-935 — — Deposit in immediate participation guarantee contract
364361375375 — — Cash surrender value of life insurance 43-28 — — 43Fetal-28Total asscts $ +4-13 , 524779 $ 8, 569-042 $ 5. 939-709 S 43
28 (Dollars in Thousands) December 31, 2023 Asset Description Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3Cash and cash equivalents $ 457 $ 457§ — $ —
Equity securities 4, 978 4, 978 — — Corporate bonds 1, 961 — 1, 961 — Municipal bonds 3, 911 — 3, 911 — Investment fund- debt 274 274 — —
Investment fund- equity 1, 831 1, 831 — — Deposit in immediate participation guarantee contract 537 537 — — Cash surrender value of life
insurance 13 — — 13Total assets $ 13,962 $ 8,077 $ 5, 872 $ 13 (Dollars in Thousands) December 31...... 042§ 5,709 $ 28 The following table
sets forth a summary of the changes in the fair value of the Plan's level 3 investments for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-:
Cash Value of Life Insurance December 31 (Dollars in thousands) 2623-2024 2622Batanee-2023Balance at the beginning of the period $ 2813 $
28Unrealized gain (loss) relating to investments held at the reporting date — — Purchases, sales, issuances and settlement, net — (15) —Balance at
the end of the period $ 13 $ 28-13 Contributions The Bank does not expect to make any contributions in 2624-2025 . Estimated future benefit
payments at December 31, 2023-2024 (Dollars in Thousands) 2024-2025 $ 9342625-1, 2492626-2642026 |, 5622027 6252027 |, 6122028-6762028
1, 4252629-1462029 8442030 - 2033-2034 4-5 , 823-159 Note 18. Stock Based Compensation In 2004, the Corporation adopted the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan of 2004 (ESPP). Under the ESPP, options for 250, 000 shares of stock can be issued to eligible employees. The number of shares that
can be purchased by each participant is defined by the plan and the Board of Directors sets the option price. However, the option price cannot be less
than 90 % of the fair market value of a share of the Corporation” s common stock on the date the option is granted. The Board of Directors also
determines the expiration date of 74the—- the options; however, no option may have a term that exceeds one year from the grant date. ESPP options
are exercisable immediately upon grant. Any shares related to unexercised options are available for future grant. The Board of Directors may amend,
suspend or terminate the ESPP at any time. The exercise price of the 2623-2024 ESPP options was set at 95 % of the stock’ s fair value at the time of
the award. In 2019, the Corporation approved the 2019 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (Stock Plan), replacing the Incentive Stock Option Plan of
2013 (ISOP). No new awards will be made under the 2013 plan; however, any awards made under the 2013 plan remain outstanding under the terms
they were issued. Under the Stock Plan, 400, 000 shares have been authorized to be issued, inclusive of the remaining shares available under the 2013



plan that were rolled into the Stock Plan and forfeited awards are available for future grants. The Stock Plan allows for various types of awards
including incentive stock options, restricted stock and stock appreciation rights. Fe-73The ESPP options and the incentive stock options (ISO)
awarded under the Stock Plan and outstanding at December 31, 2623-2024 are all exercisable. The ESPP options expire on June 30, 2624-2025 and
the ISO options expire 10 years from the grant date. The following table summarizes the activity in the ESPP: Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP
Weighted Average Aggrcgate (Dollar@ in thou@and@ exccpt share and per sharc data) Optlons PI‘ICC Pcr Sharc Intrinsic ValueBalance Out@tandlng at
December 31, 26 6-Ba standing
3452022 25, 943 $ 28. 73 $ -1-9-1—- Granted 34 894 26 35 Exercrsed (1 607) 27 2] Explred (27 306) 27 77 Balance Outstandmg at December 31,
2023 31,924 $26.35$ 166 Granted 37, 700 26. 87 Exercised (1, 159) 26. 61 Expired (33, 188) 26. 38 Balance Outstanding at December 31,
2024 35,277 $ 26. 87 $ 107 Shares available for future grants under the ESPP at December 31, 2023-2024 +72-167 , 624-509 The following tables
summarize the activity in the Stock Plan: Incentive Stock Options Weighted Average Aggregate (Dollars in thousands except share and per share
data) ¥S6-ISOP Price Per Share Intrinsic ValueBalance Outstanding at December 31, 2024-2022 96-70 , 254-454 § 28. 46-84 $ 419-511 Granted —
— Exercised — — @300y 2427 Forfeited — — 497560y 2722-Balance Outstanding at December 31, 2022-2023 70, 454 $ 28. 84 $ 54H-191
Granted — — Exercised (6, 375) 22. 05 Forfeited — — Balance Outstanding at December 31, %92-3—2024 76-64 ., 454-079 $ 28-29 . 84-51 $
19425 FSRestrieted-T4Restricted Shares Weighted Average Restricted Grant Date Shares Fair ValueNonvested as of December 31, 26242022 +H-
20, 955504 $ 29-32 . 36-40 Grantecd8-Granted15 . $1+4-33-734 31 . 36-64 Vested (9-17 , 974-183) 31. 56 Forfeited (548 ) 32. 67 Forfeited-(29H
30-—40Nenvested-48Nonvested as of December 31, %92—2%9—202318 504-507 $ 32. 40-53 Granted+5-Granted26 . 734-001 27. 03 Vested (16, 652)
31. 64V estedH7-183- 18 y3+-"56-Forfeited ——(—548)—32—48Neﬂvesfed-—— Nonvested as of December 31, %92—3—1—8—202427 567-856 $ 32-28 . 53
21 Shares available for future grants under the Stock Plan at December 31, 2023-2024 253-227 , 541-540 Restrlcted shares awarded under the Stock
Plan fully vest in one year for awards to Directors and ratably over three years for awards to other eligible employees. Compensation expense is based
on the grant date fair value and was S 634 thousand in 2024 and $ 483 theusand-in 2023 and-$462-412022- The amount of unrecognized
compensation expense for restricted shares was $ 336-405 thousand at December 31, 2023-2024 . The following table provides information about the
options outstanding at December 31, 2023-2024 : Options Weighted Outstanding Exercise Price Average RemainingStock Option Plan and
Exercisable per share Life (years) Employee Stock Purchase Plan 34-35 , 924-277 $ 26. 35-87 0. 5 Incentive Stock Options 625 74-6686-22. 05 4+-0 .
2Incentive Stock Options 14, 650 21. 27 21 . 2Incentive Stock Options 24, 050 30. 00 3-2 . 2Incentive Stock Options 24, 754 34. 10 4-3 . 2ISO Total
/ Average 76-64 , 454-079 $ 28. 84 2. 3 —+Note 19. Deferred Compensation Agreement The Bank has a Director’ s Deferred Compensation Plan,
whereby each director may voluntarily participate and elect each year to defer all or a portion of their Bank director’ s fees. Each participant directs
the investment of their own account among various publicly available mutual funds designated by the Bank’ s Wealth Management department.
Changes in the account balance beyond the amount deferred to the account are solely the result of the performance of the selected mutual fund. The
Bank maintains an offsetting asset and liability for the deferred account balances and the annual expense is recorded as a component of directors’
fees as if it were a direct payment to the director. The Bank will not incur any expense when the account goes into payout. Note 20. Shareholders’
Equity The Board of Directors, from time to time, authorizes the repurchase of the Corporation’ s $ 1. 00 par value common stock. The repurchased
shares will be held as Treasury shares available for issuance in connection with future stock dividends and stock splits, employee benefit plans,
executive compensation plans, the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP) and other appropriate corporate purposes. The term of the repurchase plans is
normally one year. The Corporation held 283, 610 and 339, 741 and-320;-5F5-treasury shares at cost at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-,
respectively. The following table provides information about the Corporation’ s stock repurchase activity under an approved plan : Shares
RepurchasedPlan Date Authorized Expiration 2024 202312 / 14 / 2023 202242-+22-+2022-150, 000 shares 12 /24-31 / 2623-2024 83-24 . 520 — 658
2;-848F6Fhe—- The Corporation’ s DRIP allows for shareholders to purchase additional shares of the Corporation’ s common stock by reinvesting
cash dividends paid on their shares or through optional cash payments. The Corporation has authorized one million (1, 000, 000) shares ef750f its
currently authorized but not outstanding common stock to be issued under the plan or it may issue from Treasury shares. The DRIP added $ 1. 4-7
million to capital during 2623-2024 . This total was comprised of $ 1. 0 million from the reinvestment of quarterly dividends and $ 342-730 thousand
of optional cash purchases. During 2023-2024 , 46-62 , 458-247 shares of common stock were purchased through the DRIP and 226-158 , 452-205
shares remain to be issued. In Beeember-January 2023-2025 , an open market repurchase plan was approved to repurchase 150, 000 shares over a
one- year period. Note 21. Commitments and Contingencies In the normal course of business, the Bank is a party to financial instruments that are not
reflected in the accompanying financial statements and are commonly referred to as off- balance- sheet instruments. These financial instruments are
entered into primarily to meet the financing needs of the Bank’ s customers and include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit.
Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk not recognized in the consolidated balance sheet. The
Corporation’ s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by other parties to the financial instruments for commitments to extend credit
and standby letters of credit is represented by the contract or notional amount of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as they do for on- balance- sheet instruments. The Bank had the following outstanding commitments as of
December 31: (Dollars in thousands) Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk 2023-2024 2022Cemmeretal
2023Commercial commitments to extend credit $ 328, 806 $ 325, 982-$275-86FConsumer-982Consumer commitments to extend credit (secured)
135,776 112, 457931 24€Censumer-157Consumer commitments to extend credit (unsecured) 5, 352 5, 964 5-$ 469 , 247934 § 444, +03-5374;
238Standby— 103Standby lctters of credit $ 28, 815 $ 19, 851 ACL- Unfunded Commitments (1) $ 2,36-030 $ 2 , 734-022 (1) Reported in Other
Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation
of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses with the exception of
home equity lines and personal lines of credit and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer’ s
creditworthiness on a case- by- case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank, is based on Management’ s credit
evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral for most commercial commitments varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant,
and equipment, and income- producing commercial properties. Collateral for secured consumer commitments consists of liens on residential real
estate. Standby letters of credit are instruments issued by the Bank, which guarantee the beneficiary payment by the Bank in the event of default by
the Bank’ s customer in the nonperformance of an obligation or service. Most standby letters of credit are extended for one year periods. The credit
risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Bank holds collateral
supporting the majority of those commitments for which collateral is deemed necessary primarily in the form of certificates of deposit and liens on
real estate. Management believes that the proceeds obtained through a liquidation of such collateral would be sufficient to cover the maximum
potential amount of future payments required under the corresponding guarantees. Most of the Bank’ s business activity is with customers located
within its primary market and does not involve any significant concentrations of credit to any one entity or industry. On January 1, 2023, the
Corporation adopted ASU 2016- 13 Financial Instruments- Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments,
referred to as the current expected credit loss (CECL) methodology. Upon adoption, $ 412 thousand was added to the allowance for credit losses
(ACL) — unfunded commitments. For 2623-2024 , the provision for credit losses- unfunded commltments was $ 8 thousand compared to $ 135
thousand eempafed—te—ﬂ&-@-for 2022 AtDeeember31-2023 sthe Bankhad-a-$2- O-millie SIS ared
- 76Legal Proceedings The nature of the Corporatlon S busmess generates a certain amount of htlgatlon
-'p'—'p’-We-We establish accruals for legal proceedings when information related to the loss contingencies represented by those matters indicates both that




a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. When we are able to do so, we also determine estimates of probable losses,
whether in excess of any accrued liability or where there is no accrued liability. These assessments are based on our analysis of currently available
information and are subject to significant judgment and a variety of assumptions and uncertainties. As new information is obtained, we may change
our assessments and, as a result, take or adjust the amounts of our accruals and change our estimates of possible losses or ranges of possible losses.
Due to the inherent subjectivity of the assessments and the unpredictability of outcomes of legal proceedings, any amounts that may be accrued or
included in estimates of probable losses or ranges of probable losses may not represent the actual loss to the Corporation from any legal proceeding.
Our exposure and ultimate losses may be higher, possibly significantly higher, than amounts we may accrue or amounts we may estimate. In
management’ s opinion, we do not anticipate, at the present time, that the ultimate aggregate liability, if any, arising out of all litigation to which the
Corporation is a party will have a material adverse effect on our financial position. We cannot now determine, however, whether or not any claim
asserted against us will have a material adverse effect on our results of operations in any future reporting period, which will depend on, amount other
things, the amount of loss resulting from the claim and the amount of income otherwise reported for the reporting period. Thus, at December 31,
2023-2024 , we are unable to provide an evaluation of the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome or an estimate of the amount or range of potential
loss with respect to such other matters and, accordingly, have not yet established any specific accrual for such other matters. No material proceedings
are pending or are known to be threatened or contemplated against us by governmental authorities. In management’ s opinion, there are no other
proceedings pending to which the Corporation is a party or to which its property is subject which, if determined adversely to the Corporation, would
be material. Note 22. Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair
value of the Corporation’ s financial instruments; however, there are inherent weaknesses in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all
financial instruments, the fair value estimates herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Corporation could have realized in a sales
transaction on the dates indicated. The estimated fair value amounts have been measured as of their respective year- ends and have not been re-
evaluated or updated for purposes of these financial statements subsequent to those respective dates. As such, the estimated fair values of these
financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates maybe different than the amounts reported at each year- end. FASB ASC Topic
820, “ Financial Instruments ”, requires disclosure of the fair value of financial assets and liabilities, including those financial assets and liabilities
that are not measured and reported at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis. The Corporation does not report any nonfinancial assets at fair
value. FASB ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation methods used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC Topic 820 are as
follows: Level 1: Valuation is based on unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or liabilities. Level 2: Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model- based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the
market. There may be substantial differences in the assumptions used for securities within the same level. For example, prices for U. S. Agency
securities have fewer assumptions and are closer to level 1 valuations than the private label mortgage- backed securities that require more
assumptions and are closer to level 3 valuations. Level 3: Valuation is generated from model- based techniques that use significant assumptions not
observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect the Corporation’ s assumptions regarding what market participants would assume
when pricing a financial instrument. An asset’ s or liability’ s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The level within the hierarchy does not represent risk. Fhe-77The following information regarding the fair
value of the Corporation’ s financial instruments should not be interpreted as an estimate of the fair value of the entire Corporation since a fair value
calculation is only provided for a limited portion of the Corporation’ s assets and liabilities. Due to a wide range of valuation techniques and the
degree of subjectivity used in making the estimates, comparisons between the Corporation” s disclosures and those of other companies may not be
meaningful. #8Fhe~- The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of the Corporation’ s financial instruments
measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-20822-. Equity Securities: Equity securities are
valued using quoted market prices from nationally recognized markets (Level 1). Equity securities are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
Investment securities: Fair values of investment securities available- for- sale were primarily measured using information from a third- party pricing
service. This service provides pricing information by utilizing evaluated pricing models supported with market data information. Standard inputs
include benchmark yields, reported trades, broker / dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two- sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, and reference
data from market research publications. Level 2 investment securities are primarily comprised of debt securities issued by states and municipalities,
corporations, mortgage- backed securities issued by government agencies, and government- sponsored enterprises. Fair values were estimated
primarily by obtaining quoted prices for similar assets in active markets or through the use of pricing models. Investment securities are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis. Collateral Dependent Loans: The fair value of collateral dependent loans with specific allocations of the allowance for
credit losses is generally based on recent real estate appraisals conducted by an independent, licensed appraiser, less cost to sell. These appraisals may
utilize a single valuation approach or a combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income approach (Level 2). If the appraiser
makes an adjustment to account for differences between the comparable sales and income data available for similar loans, or if management adjusts
the appraised value, then the fair value is considered Level 3. Non- real estate collateral may be valued using an appraisal, net book value per the
borrower’ s financial statements, or aging reports, adjusted or discounted based on management’ s historical knowledge, changes in market conditions
from the time of the valuation, and management’ s expertise and knowledge of the client and client’ s business, resulting in a Level 3 fair value
classification. Collateral dependent loans are evaluated on a quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted in accordance with the allowance
policy. No partial charge- offs on these loans was-were taken in the-third-guartero£2623-2024 . Collateral dependent loans are measured at fair value
on a nonrecurring basis . Derivatives: The fair value of derivatives are based on valuation methods using observable market data as of the
measurement data (Level 2). The fair value of derivatives are determined using quantitative models using multiple market inputs. The
inputs will vary based on the type of derivative, but could include interest rates, prices and indices to generate continuous yield or pricing
curves, prepayment rates and other factors to value the position. The majority of market inputs are actively quoted and can be validated
through external sources including, brokers, market transactions and third- party pricing services. The fair value represents an estimate of
the amount the Corporation would receive or pay to terminate the derivative contract . Other Real Estate Owned: Assets acquired through or
instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at the lower of cost or the fair value less costs to sell when acquired. These assets are subsequently
accounted for at lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell. Fair value is commonly based on recent real estate appraisals which are
updated no less frequently than annually. These appraisals may utilize a single valuation approach or a combination of approaches including
comparable sales and the income approach with data from comparable properties (Level 2). If the appraiser makes an adjustment to account for
differences between the comparable sales and income data available for similar loans, or if management adjusts the appraised value, then the fair
value is considered Level 3. In connection with the measurement and initial recognition of other real estate owned, losses are recognized through the
allowance for loan losses. Subsequent charge- offs are recognized as an expense. Other real estate owned properties are evaluated on a quarterly basis
for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly. Reeurring-78Recurring Fair Value Measurements For financial assets measured at fair value on
a recurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within the fair value hierarchy used at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-are as follows:
(Dollars in Thousands ) Fair Value at December 31, 2024Asset Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 TotalEquity securities, at fair value $ 166 $
— $ —$ 166 Available for sale: U. S. Treasury 31, 797 — — 31, 797 Municipal — 133, 592 — 133, 592 Corporate — 24, 224 — 24, 224



Agency mortgage & asset- backed — 169, 821 — 169, 821 Non- Agency mortgage & asset- backed — 149, 170 — 149, 170Total available for
sale securities $ 31, 963 $ 476, 807 $ — $ 508, 770 Derivatives $ — $ 2,275 $ — § 2, 275 (Dollars in Thousands) Fair Value at December 31,
2023 Asset Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 TotalEquity securities, at fair value $ 427 § — $ — $ 427 Available for sale: U. S. Treasury 74, 091

74, 091 Municipal — 138, 618 — 138, 618 Corporate — 23, 198 — 23, 198 Agency mortgage & asset- backed — 132, 591 132, 591 Non-
Agency mortgage & asset- backed — 104, 005 — 104, 005Total assets-available for sale securities $ 74, 518 $ 398,412 § — $ 472, 563-$—$472;
930 %eﬂaﬁ*n%}eﬁs&nds}-hablhtles Derivatives $ — $ 2 $ — $ 2 Nonrecurrmg Fan Value Measurements Fmanclal &t—DeeembeH—l—

$

me"nsured 11 1a1r v alue ona nonrecurrmg bas1s at December 31, %92—3—2024 are presented in the table belowa-nd—%@%%—was%—}theﬁs&ﬂd—aﬂd%—}

y a Neﬂﬁeﬂfrmg—Faﬂ—Vﬂ-l-u&Meastrremeﬂts-There were no financial assets measured at fair value
ona n()nruumng basls at Duunbu %l 2023 eh’zeaa- (Dollars in Thousands) Fair Value at December 31, 2024Asset Description Level 1 Level
2 Level 3 TotalCollateral Dependent Loans (1) $ — $ — $ 380 $ 380Total assets $ — $ — $ 380 $ 380 (1) Collateral dependent loans are
reported at the fair value of the underlying collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral. Collateral values are estimated
using Level 3 inputs based on customized discounting criteria . The Corporation did not record any liabilities at fair value for which measurement
of the fair value was made on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2024 and 2023. For financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis, there were no transfers of financial assets or liabilities between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period ending December 31, 2024 and
2023. Fhe-79The Corporationrdidnotreeord-any-following table presents additional quantitative information about Level 3 fair value
measurements for asscts measured ertabilities-at fair value forwhieh-measurementofthe-fairvalue-wasmade-on a nonrecurring basis at
December 31, 2—92-3—2024 Fer—ﬁﬁ&neia-l—There were no assets &nd—h&bi-ht—les—measmed at fair v alue on a reeurring-nonrecurring basis as rthere-were
no-transters  fian 5 v v ding-December 31, 2023, (Dollars in Thousands)
Quantitative Informatlon about Level 3 Falr Value Measurements RangeDecember 31, 2024 Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable
Input (Weighted Average) Collateral Dependent $ 380 Appraisal Appraisal Adjustment on Real estate assets 100 % (100 %) Cost to sell 10
% (1) Collateral Dependent Loans: Collateral dependent loans are reported at the fair value of the underlying collateral if re payment is
expected solely from the collateral. Collateral values are estimated using Level 3 inputs based on customized discounting criteria. 86Fhe-—-
The carrying amounts and estimated fair value of financial instruments not carried at fair value are as follows: December 31, 2623-2024 Carrying
Fair (Dollars in thousands) Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3Financial assets, carried at cost: Cash and cash equivalents $ 23-203 , +46-613 $ 23
203 ,+46-613 $23-203 , +46-613 $ — $ — Long- term interest- earnings deposits in other banks 6-1 , 229-6-499 1, 229-6-499 1 , 229-499 [ oans held

for sale 243-243-2, 470 2, 470 — 243-2, 470 — Net loans 1, 246-380 , 933-424 1, 267351 , 403-450 — 1, 267351 , 403Aeerted-- 450Accrued
interest receivable 7, 596—348 7, 596—348 7, 596—348 l“mdll(.ldl liabilities: Deposits § 1, 537815, 9—7-8—647 $1,537814 ,480479 5 —§ 1,534
814 ,486-479 5 — FHLB Advances 46-200 , 000 46-200 , +-6-46-883 200 . -1—1-9-883

Subordinate notes 19, 66-1—699 18, %93—032 — 18 393—032 — Aecrued mlerest payable 3-4 | 856-3-689 4 , 856-689 —3—4 856-689 — December 31,
2022-2023 Carrying Fair (Dollars in thousands) Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3Financial assets, carried at cost: Cash and cash equivalents $
64-23 . 899-140 $ 64-23 . 899-140 $ 64-23 , 899-140 $ — $ — Long- term interest- earnings deposits in other banks 43-6 , 97543-229 6 , 97543-229 6
,995-229 [oans held for sale 283287213 213 — 287213 — Net loans 1, 836-240 , 866-986-933 1 , 207 +4+——986-, 403 — — 1, 207,
+HAeerted- 403Accrued interest receivable 67 , 354-6-506 7 . 354506 — — 6-7 , 354-506 Financial liabilities: Deposits $ 1, 554537 , 448-978 $
1,550-537 ,030-480 $ — S 1,550-537 , 936480 $ — Federal Reserve Bank Borrowings 90, 000 89, 783 89, 783 FHLB Advances 40, 000 40, 110
40, 110 Subordinate notes 19, 62347-661 18 , 876-303 — +718 , 876-303 — Accrued interest payable $92492-3, 856 3, 856 — 192-3, 856 — Nete
80Note 23. Parent Company (Franklin Financial Services Corporation) Condensed Financial Information Balance Sheets December 31 (Dollars in
thousands) 2023-2024 2022Assets-2023Assets : Cash and cash equivalents $ 9, 137 $ 10, 670-$13;-506Investment— 070Investment sccuritics 427
166 4HEquity-427Equity investment in subsidiaries 153, 410 140, 874-H8;7680ther-0740ther asscts 1, 228-704 1, +53Fetat-228Total assets §
164, 417 151, 799 433;:-832-Liabilitics: Subordinate notes $ 19, 664699 $ 19, 6230ther-6610ther liabilitics 2 +2Fetal- 2Total liabilitics 19, 663-701
19, 635Sharehelders— 663Shareholders ' cquity 144, 716 132, 4364197 Fetal-136Total liabilities and sharcholders' equity $ 164,417 $ 151, 799
$133,832-8tStatements—- Statements of Income Years Ended December 31 (Dollars in thousands) 2023-2024 2022dreome-2023Income :
Dividends from Bank subsidiary § 5, 687956 $ 5, 670€hange-- 607Change in fair value of equity securities 209 +6-(69)-Dividends-16Dividends 7 7
6, 172 5 5-, 630-5;-606Expenses— 630Expenses : [nterest expense 1, 854050 1, 847Operating-0510perating cxpenses 1, 887932 |, 7 Hneome—-
887Income before income taxes and equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 3, 190 2, 692Income 6922788 neome-tax benefit $94
600Equity-568 894Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 7, 341 10, 642-012Net income 11, 099 556Netineome-13, 598149380 ther—-
5980ther comprehensive income / (loss) of subsidiary 5, 432 10, 34950;740)-Comprehensive-347Comprehensive income (loss) $ 16,531 $ 23,
945 $-35;-802) Statements-81Statements of Cash Flows Years Ended December 31 (Dollars in thousands) 2023-2024 2622€ash-2023Cash flows
from operating activities Net income $ 11, 099 $ 13, 598-$+4;-938Adjustments— 598 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities: Equity in undistributed (income) of subsidiary ( 7, 341) ( 10, 012 3+3H5556-) Stock option compensation 483-634 462Change
483Change in fair value of equity security ( 209) ( 16) 69nerease-- Increase in other assets / liabilities ( 531) ( 896 H528-) Net cash provided by
operating activities 3, 652 3, 157 3;394+-Cash flows from financing activities Dividends paid (5, 629) (5, 595 H5;-658-) Cash received from option
exercises 47122 48€emmenr47Common stock issued under dividend reinvestment plan 1, 355-749 1, 4+6Freasury-355Treasury stock purchase (
827) (2, 394 335334 Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ( 4, 585) (6, 587 HF528-) (Decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents ( 933) ( 3, 430 H4;33F) Cash and cash equivalents as of January 1 10, 070 13, 500Cash $603+74-63%Cash-and cash equivalents as of
December 31 $9,137 $ 10, 070 $43:-580-Note 24. Revenue Recognition All of the Corporation’ s revenue from contracts with customers within the
scope of ASC 606 is recognized in non- interest income as presented in our consolidated statements of income. Revenue generating activities that fall
within the scope of ASC 606 are described as follows: Wealth Management Fees- these represent fees from wealth management (assets under
management), fees from the management and settlement of estates and commissions from the sale of investment and insurance products. Asset
management fees are generally assessed based on a tiered fee schedule, based on the value of assets under management, and are recognized monthly
when the service obligation is completed. Fees for estate management services are based on the estimated fair value of the estate. These fees are
generally recognized monthly over an 18- month period that Management has determined to represent the average time to fulfill the performance
obligations of the contract. Management has the discretion to adjust this time period as needed based upon the nature and complexity of an individual
estate. Commissions from the sale of investment and insurance products are recognized upon the completion of the transaction. 82Fhe~- The
following table presents Wealth Management Fees for December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-: For the Twelve Months Ended (Dollars in thousands)
December 31, Wealth Management Fees 2024 2023 2022-Asset Management Fees $ 7, 760 $ 6, 889-$-6:485Estate— 889Estate Management Fees
295-508 498Ceommissions-295Commissions 328+69Fetal-270 328Total $ 8, 538 $ 7, 512 $F452-1 oan Service Charges — these represent fees on
loans for services or charges that occur after the loan has been booked, for example, late payment fees. All of these fees are transactional in nature
and are recognized upon completion of the transaction which represents the performance obligation. Deposit Service Charges and Fees — these
represent fees from deposit customers for transaction based, account maintenance, and overdraft services. Transaction based fees include, but are not
limited to, stop payment fees and overdraft fees. These fees are recognized at the time of the transaction when the performance obligation has been



fulfilled. Account maintenance fees and account analysis-82analysis fees are earned over the course of a month, representing the period of the
performance obligation, and are recognized monthly. Debit Card Income — this represents interchange fees from cardholder transactions conducted
through the card payment network. Cardholders use the debit card to conduct point- of- sale transactions that produce interchange fees. The fees are
transaction based and the fee is recognized with the processing of the transaction. These fees are reported net of cardholder rewards. Other Service
Charges and Fees — these are comprised primarily of merchant card fees, credit card fees, ATM surcharges and interchange fees and wire transfer
fees. Merchant card fees represent fees the Bank earns from a third party for enrolling a customer in the processor’ s program. Credit card fees
represent a fee earned by the Bank for a successful referral to a card- issuing company. ATM surcharges and interchange fees are the result of Bank
customers conducting ATM transactions that generate fee income and are processed through multiple card networks. All of these fees are transaction
based and are recognized at the time of the transaction. Other Income — these items are transactional in nature and recognized upon completion of the
transaction which represents the performance obligation. Certain items included in this category may be excluded from the scope of ASC 606. Gains /
Losses on the Sale of Other Real Estate — these are recognized when control of the property transfers to the buyer. Contract Balances — A contract
asset balance occurs when an entity performs a service for a customer before the customer pays consideration (resulting in a contract receivable) or
before payment is due (resulting in a contract asset). A contract liability balance is an entity’ s obligation to transfer a service to a customer for which
the entity has already received payment (or payment is due) from the customer. The Company’ s noninterest revenue streams are largely based on
transactional activity, or standard month- end revenue accruals such as asset management fees based on month- end market values. Consideration is
often received immediately or shortly after the Company satisfies its performance obligation and revenue is recognized. The Company does not
typically enter into longer- term revenue contracts with customers, and therefore, does not experience significant contract balances. Contract
Acquisition Costs — The Corporation expenses all contract acquisition costs as costs are incurred. Note 25. Segment Reporting The Corporation’ s
reportable segments are determined by the Chief Operating Officer of the Bank, who is the designated chief operating decision maker
(CODM), based upon information provided about the Corporation’ s products and services offered primarily between community banking
and wealth management segments. The segments are also distinguished by the level of information provided to the CODM, who uses such
information to review the performance of various components of the business, which are then aggregated if operating performance, products
/ services, and customer are similar. The CODM evaluates the financial performance of the Corporation’ s business segments by evaluating
revenue streams, significant expenses, and budget to actual results to assess the performance of the segments and to determine allocation of
resources. This evaluation is also used to assess the performance of each segment to evaluate compensation of certain employees. Segment
pretax profit or loss is used to assess the performance of the community banking segment by monitoring net interest income, fee income and
noninterest expense. In this segment, interest income on loans and securities, and banking service fees are the primary source of revenue.
Interest expense, the provision for credit losses, and salaries and benefits are the primary expenses. 83Segment pretax profit or loss is used
to assess the performance of the wealth management segment by monitoring fee income and operating expense, and by assets under
management. In this segment, fees from assets under management are the primary source of revenue, while salaries and benefits are the
primary expense. Year Ended December 31, 2024 Year Ended December 31, 2023 Reportable Segments Reportable Segments (Dollars in
thousands) Wealth Community Banking Consolidated Total Wealth Community Banking Consolidated Total Interest income- loans,
including fees $ — $ 73,996 $ 73,996 $ — $ 58, 277 $ 58, 277 Interest income- investments — 18, 211 18, 218 — 16, 071 16, 078 Interest
income- interest- earning deposits in other banks — 9, 237 9, 237 — 2, 407 2, 407 Wealth fee income 8, 538 — 8, 538 7, 512 — 7, 512 Total
segment income $ 8, 538 $ 101, 444 $ 109, 989 $ 7, 512 $ 76, 755 $ 84, 274 Reconciliation of revenue Other revenue- not allocated to a segment
5,141 7, 339 Total consolidated revenue $ 115, 130 $ 91, 613 Less: Interest expense- deposits $ — $ 30, 906 $ 30,906 $ — $ 18, 843 $ 18, 843
Interest expense- other borrowings — 11, 981 13, 031 — 3, 231 4, 282 Provision for credit losses — 1, 983 1, 983 — 2, 724 2, 724 Salary and
benefit expense 3, 829 28, 923 32, 752 3, 722 25, 091 28, 813 Segment profit $ 4, 709 $ 27, 651 $ 36,458 $ 3, 790 $ 26, 866 $ 36, 951 Other
expenses- not allocated to a segment 23, 143 21, 198 Income before taxes $ 13, 315 $ 15, 753 Other segment disclosures Net occupancy $ 524 §
4,059 $4,583 $400$ 3,998 $ 4, 398Data processing $ 198 $ 5, 606 $ 5,804 $ 197 $ 4, 595 $ 4, 792 Total assets for reportable segments $ 1,
555$2,194,365$ 2,197,841 $1,422 $ 1, 834,333 $ 1, 836, 039 Note 26. Tax Credit Investments The 3a#2023;the-Corporation has invested $
036-theusand-in various solar tax credit limited partnerships or LLCs. These partnerships develop, build and operate solar renewable energy projects.
Over the course of these investments, the Corporation expects to receive federal tax credits, tax- related benefits and excess cash distributions, if
available . At December 31, 2024, the balance of these investments was ($ 382) thousand. The Corporation has no unfunded commitments to
these projects. During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Corporation recognized other income, net of amortization of $ 447
thousand and $ 0, respectively, reported in Other Noninterest Income on the consolidated statements of income. Additionally, the
Corporation recognized $ 122 thousand in federal i income tax credits for 2024 and $ 367 thousand for 2023 The tax beneﬁt\ from these
investments is generally recognized over six years. Puring-the-yearended-Deeembe P f &1 ax-ere
36Ftheusand—Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements w1th ALL()untdnts on Acu)untmu dnd l“ll]dn(,ld.l Dlscl()suu. Nom 8—3-I-tem- Item 9A (()ntr()ls
and ProceduresEvaluation of Controls and ProceduresThe Corporation carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of
the Corporation’ s Management, including the Corporation’ s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of its
disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e). Based upon the evaluation, the Corporation’ s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of December 31, 2023-2024 , the Corporation’ s disclosure controls and
procedures are effective. Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in the Corporation’ s reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission” s rules and forms. Management84Management Report on Internal Control Over
Financial ReportingThe Management of the Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. The Corporation’ s internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent
limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2623-2024 , using the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013). Based on this assessment, Management concluded that, as of December 31, 2023-2024 , the
Corporation’ s internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria. There were no changes during the fourth quarter of 2623
2024 in the Corporation’ s internal control over financial reporting which materially affected, or which are reasonably likely to affect, the
Corporation” s internal control over financial reporting. Item 9B. Other Information During the quarter ended December 31, 2024, Nesrie-none of
our directors or executive officers adopted or terminated a Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement or adopted or terminated a non- Rule 10b5- 1 trading
arrangement (as defined in Item 408 (c) of Regulation S- K) during-the-quarterended-Deeember3+2023-. Item 9C. Disclosures Regarding Foreign
Jurisdictions that Prevent InspectionsNot applicable. Part III Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance The information
required by this Item relating to the directors and executive officers of the Corporation is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth
under the heading “ ELECTION OF DIRECTORS- Information about Nominees and Continuing Directors ” and under the heading “ ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION — Key Employees ” appearing in the Corporation' s 26242025 proxy statement. The information required by this item relating to




compliance with Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the heading “
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION- Delinquent Section 16 (a) Filings ”” appearing in the Corporation' s 2824-2025 proxy statement. The information
required by this item relating to the Corporation' s code of ethics is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the heading “
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICIES, PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES ” appearing in the Corporation' s 2624-2025 proxy statement. The
Corporation will file on Form 8- K any amendments to, or waivers from, the code of ethics applicable to any of its directors or executive officers.
There have been no material changes to the procedures by which shareholders may recommend nominees to the Corporation’ s Board of Directors.
84Fhe—- The information required by this Item relating to the Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expert of the Corporation is
incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the heading “ BOARD STRUCTURE AND COMMITTEES — Audit Committee.
”Item 11. Executive Compensation The information required by this item relating to executive and director compensation is incorporated herein by
reference to the information set forth under the heading “ EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION ” and “ Proposal 1 — Election of Directors — 2024
Director Compensation ” appearing in the Corporation' s 2624-2025 proxy statement. #emr-85Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters The information required by this item relating to securities authorized for issuance under
executive compensation plans is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the heading “ EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
— Compensation Tables and Additional Compensation Disclosure ” appearing in the Corporation' s 2024-2025 proxy statement. The information
required by this item relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under
the heading “ GENERAL INFORMATION- Voting of Shares and Principal Holders Thereof' ”” appearing in the Corporation' s 2624-2025 proxy
statement. The information required by this item relating to security ownership of management is incorporated herein by reference to the information
set forth under the heading “ ELECTION OF DIRECTORS — Common Stock Ownership of Directors, Nominees and Executive Officers ” appearing
in the Corporation' s 2624-2025 proxy statement. Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence The
information required by this item relating to director independence is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the heading
“ ELECTION OF DIRECTORS- Director Independence ” and under the heading “ ADDITIONAL INFORMATION- Transactions with Related
Persons ” appearing in the Corporation' s 2624-2025 proxy statement. Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services The information required by
this item relating to principal accountant fees and services is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the heading
RELATIONSHIP WITH INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ” appearing in the Corporation' s 2624-2025 proxy statement.
Part [VItem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules (a) The following documents are filed as part of this report: (1) The following
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation: Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID 173) Consolidated
Balance SheetsConsolidated Statements of IncomeConsolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomeConsolidated Statements of Changes in
Shareholders’” EquityConsolidated Statements of Cash FlowsNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements. (2) All financial statement schedules for
which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related
instructions or are inapplicable and have therefore been omitted. 85-86 (3) The following exhibits are part of this report: ItemDescription3.
I Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation (Filed as Exhibit 3. 1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2020 and incorporated herein by reference.) 3. 2Bylaws of the Corporation (Filed Exhibit 99. 1 of Current Report on Form 8- K as filed with
the Commission on September 2, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference.) 4. Instruments defining the rights of securities holders, including
indentures, are contained in the Articles of Incorporation (Exhibit 3. 1) and Bylaws (Exhibit 3. 2) 10. 1Deferred Compensation Agreements with
Bank Directors * (Filed as Exhibit 10. 1 to Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2014 and incorporated herein by
reference.) 10. 2Director’ s Deferred Compensation Plan * (Filed as Exhibit 10. 2 to Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31,
2014 and mcorporated herem by reference ) 10. 3 Senior Management Annual lncentlve Plan * (—- Filed-filed herewith10 asExhibit10-3-to-Annual
d y - 4Scmor Management and Directors

Incentlve Stock Plan * (—--F-ﬁed—ﬁled herew1th10 as-Exhibt 0

. 5 Incentive Stock Optlon Plan of 2013 (F 1led as Exhibit 10. 1 to Reglstratlon Statement No. 333 193655 on
Form S- 8 filed January 30, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference) * 10. 62019 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (Filed as Appendix A to the
Definitive Proxy statement on Schedule 14A as filed with the Commission on March 18, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference.) * 10.
7Employment Agreement by and among Franklin Financial Services Corporation (“ Corporation ”’), Farmers and Merchants Trust Company of
Chambersburg (“ Bank ), and Timothy G. Henry, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 1 to the Registrant’ s Form 8- K filed March 4, 2021 * 10.
9Employment Agreement by and among Franklin Financial Services Corporation (** Corporation ”), Farmers and Merchants Trust Company of
Chambersburg (“ Bank ), and Mark R. Hollar, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 3 to the Registrant’ s Form 8- K filed March 4, 2021 * 10.
11Employment Agreement by and among Franklin Financial Services Corporation (“ Corporation ), Farmers and Merchants Trust Company of
Chambersburg (“ Bank ’) and Charles (Chad) B. Carroll, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 2 to the Registrant’ s Form 8- K filed January 5,
2023 * 10. 12Employment Agreement by and among Franklin Financial Services Corporation (“ Corporation ), Farmers and Merchants
Trust Company of Chambersburg (“ Bank ) and Craig W. Best, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 1 to the Registrant’ s Form 8- K
filed January 14, 2025 * 14Code of Ethics posted on the Corporation” s websitel19Insider Trading Policy — filed webstte2+Subsidiartes—--
herewith21Subsidiaries of Corporation- filed herewith23. 1Consent of Crowe LLP — filed herewith31. IRule 13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a) Certification
(Chief Executive Officer) — filed herewith31. 2Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a) Certification (Chief Financial Officer) — filed herewith32. 1Section 1350
Certification (Chief Executive Officer) — filed herewith32. 2Section 1350 Certification (Chief Financial Officer) — filed herewith97Policy Relating to
Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation (Clawback ) (Filed as Exhibit 97 to Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended
December 31, 2023 and incorporated herein by reference ) 101Interactive Data File (XBRL) * Compensatory plan or arrangement. (b) The
exhibits required to be filed as part of this report are submitted as a separate section of this report. (¢) Financial Statement Schedules: None. ftem
87Item 16. Form 10- K SummaryNone. -86Parsaant--- Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. FRANKLIN FINANCIAL
SERVICES CORPORATION By: /s / Timothy G. Henry Timothy G. Henry President-and-Chicf Executive Officer Dated: March +3-14 , 2624-2025
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. SignatureTitleDate / s / G. Warren ElliottChairman of the Board and DirectorMarch H-14
,20246-2025G . Warren Elliott /s / Timothy G. HenryChief Executive Officer s Prestdent-and DirectorMarch H-14 , 2024Fimethy-2025Timothy G.
Henry (Principal Executive Officer) /s / Craig W. BestPresident and DirectorMarch 14, 2025Craig W. Best / s / Mark R. HollarTreasurer and
Chief Financial OfficerMarch H-14 , 2624Marle2025Mark R. Hollar (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) /s / Martin R.
BrownDirectorMarch H-14 | 2024Martin-2025Martin R. Brown /s / Kevin W. CraigDirectorMarch H-14 | 2024Kevin-2025Kevin W. Craig /s /
Gregory A. DuffeyDirectorMarch H-14 , 2624Gregery-2025Gregory A. Duffey /s / Daniel J. FisherDirectorMarch +-14 , 2024DBantel-2025Daniel
J. Fisher /s / Allan E. Jennings, Jr. DirectorMarch H-14 , 2624AHan-2025Allan E. Jennings, Jr. / s / Stanley J. KerlinDirectorMarch H-14 ,
2024Stanley-2025Stanley J. Kerlin /s / Donald H. MoweryDirectorMarch +4-14 , 2024Benald-2025Donald H. Mowery /s / Kimberly M.
RzompDirectorMarch H-14 , 2024Kimberds-2025Kimberly M. Rzomp /s / Gregory [. SnookDirectorMarch H4-14 , 2024Gregory-2025Gregory |.
Snook Exhibit 10. 3 Senior Management Annual Incentive Plan (Effective January 1, 2024) The Senior Management Annual Incentive Plan
(the" Incentive Plan") is a short- term compensation program designed for the purpose of linking a portion of the compensation of its senior
officers to the success of the Company in meeting certain financial targets which are established annually by the Compensation and



Personnel Committee. Each year, under the terms of the Incentive Plan, the Committee establishes four distinct performance criteria: (1) net
income versus budget, (2) return on equity compared to peer group performance, (3) accomplishment of individual goals, and (4) a
discretionary component. Performance criteria one and two are set at the same goal for each participant in the Incentive Plan while criteria
three and four are unique to each participant. Each performance criterion is weighted differently depending on the position, but in a manner
where the total weighting equals 100 %. A performance level goal is then defined for each performance criterion defined as “ Threshold ”,
Target ” and “ Outstanding ” An incentive award defined as a percent of salary is then defined for “ Threshold ”, “ Target ” and
Outstanding ” performance results. The payout opportunities vary by position due to the different level of incentive award percentage
assigned to the position and the criteria weighting. Payouts can range from 0 % to S0 % of salary, based on position and the achievement
level of each performance criterion. The following illustrates the Incentive Plan structure for the Chief Executive Officer: Performance
Level Goals / Payout PercentagePerformance Criteria Criterion Weighting Threshold Target Outstanding Net Income v. Budget 35 % 95
%-99 % of budget (20 %) 100 %- 124 % of budget (35 %) => 125 % of budget (50 %) ROE Peer Performance 35 % S0th- 59th percentile
of peer median ROE (20 %) 60th- 74th percentile of peer median ROE (35 %) = > 75th percentile of peer median ROE (50 %) Functional
Goals 15 % 20 % 35 % 50 % Discretionary 15 % 20 % 35 % 50 % Exhibit 10. 4Franklin Financial Services Corporation2019 Omnibus
Stock Incentive Plan Operating Guidelines (as of January, 2024) Executive Compensation Program Philosophy. FFSC (“ the Company )
and F & M Trust (“ the Bank ) wish to provide their executives (and other key personnel) and outside directors with a comprehensive,
competitive total rewards program, including longer- term incentives that align rewards for participating employees and outside directors
with the interests of shareholders. The Company and the Bank intend to utilize equity grants under the FFSC 2019 Omnibus Stock Incentive
Plan as the vehicle for providing longer- term incentives. The equity grants, along with competitive base salaries and shorter- term (annual)
incentive earnings opportunities for employees and retainers and meeting fees for outside directors, will provide comprehensive
compensation opportunities for all participants. Types of Award Opportunities. Under the Plan, the Compensation and Personnel
Committee of the Board of Directors (the Committee) may make a variety of equity grants to participants, ranging from Incentive and
Nonqualified Stock Options to Stock Appreciation Rights and Restricted Shares (time and performance restricted). Generally, the
Committee intends to follow the prevailing practices of other comparable community banks in deciding on the types of awards it will make to
its participants; currently restricted shares. The Committee will review this decision periodically and determine whether to use another type
of vehicle permitted under the Plan. It may choose to use any of the award types permitted by the Plan at any time, in its sole discretion.
Vesting of Grants. Generally, the Committee intends to use “ continuing service time ” as the basis for vesting of grants, but it may choose to
apply performance goals for vesting purposes, in its sole discretion. Typically, employee participants will vest their grants over a three- year
(3) time period at a rate of one- third each year following the date of grant. For outside directors, grants will vest upon the earlier of twelve
(12) months from date of grant or the conclusion of their term of service. In the event of a participant’ s death, permanent disability, normal
retirement, or a Change of Control before the grant is fully vested, vesting will accelerate and the participant will be fully vested in the grant.
Frequency of Grants. Consistent with prevailing practices of peer institutions, the Company and the Bank intend to consider making equity
awards each year, based on the current performance of the Company and the Bank. The Committee, however, maintains the prerogative of
not making grants in a given year, as it deems appropriate. Size of Awards. Grant sizes are intended to reflect the position level and
expected contributions of a participant, and to be consistent with practices of peer institutions. Further, in a given year, grant size can vary
based on the performance of the Company and the Bank against goals and standards approved by the Committee for the period. The
Committee is currently following a a schedule that awards shares based upon a percentage of the executives’ base salary or, in the case of a
director, a percentage of the directors' retainer fee. Based on current industry practice and the available shares under the Plan, the
Committee may modify the award structure at its discretion. Exhibit 1 illustrates the award structure for the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chairman of the Board. The award structures for all other executives and directors are set at proportionally lower levels. Program
Management Process: @At the beginning of each year, the Committee and management will determine performance goals for the
organization. Typically, two (2) goals. One internal measure, e. g. net income v. budget, and one external measure, e. g. ROE v. peers. They
will agree on both the standard and the relative weighting of the goals, one to another. The Committee will also approve the list of employees
eligible for equity grant consideration for that period. @During the course of the year, management will report to the Committee on
progress toward goal attainment and the number of shares likely to be awarded at the end of the period. @In the fall of each year, as part of
its annual program review and update, the Committee will review program objectives and operating guidelines, and make changes to the
program process as appropriate to maintain compensation program competitiveness for employees and outside directors. @At of the end of
the year (most likely the 1st quarter of the following calendar year), management will report to the Committee on achievement against
established goals and performance standards, and the Committee will determine the size of equity grants to eligible recipients. Each
recipient will receive a written agreement detailing the size of a grant and associated terms and conditions of the grant. See Exhibits 2 and 3.
Exhibit 1Annual Equity Grants to Executives and Outside Directors @ Various Performance Levels When Awarding Time Restricted
Stock ¥ [----m—mmmmmmememeeem Shares to be Awarded--------------—------- | * Performance restricted awards are usually 25 %- 50 % larger than time
restricted awards Exhibit 2F & M TrustChambersburg, PAFranklin Financial Services Corporation2019 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan
Employee’ s Restricted Stock Grant AgreementThis Agreement is made the day of, 20, by and between F & M Trust ("' the Company') and
(" the Participant'), an employee of the Company serving in a key job role on this date. A. Declaration of Award to Participant In
recognition of the participant' s role in the Company and the extent of opportunities for the executive to contribute to the growth and success
of the business, the Board of Directors of F & M Trust grants to the Participant an award of “ xxxx ” shares of Restricted Company Stock, at
$ 8. $ § per share, the Fair Market Value (FMYV) of the stock on the date of grant. B. Terms and Conditions of the Grant 1. Term of the
Grant. This grant will remain in effect until fully vested by the participant or forfeited because of a separation from service before vesting
requirements are satisfied. In the event that the Participant terminates service with the Company prior to the expiration of this grant, only
vested portions of the award will be available to the Participant under the rules and regulations explained later in this grant agreement.
Portions of the grant that have not vested prior to the Participant’ s separation from service will be forfeited. 2. Vesting of Interests in the
Grant. The Participant will vest interests in the grant over a three (3) year period at a rate of 33 1 /3 % on each anniversary of the grant.
However, in the event of participant’ s death, permanent disability, normal retirement, or a Change of Control prior to full vesting, vesting
will accelerate and the participant’ s interests in the grant will fully vest. 3. Participant' s Rights. Participants in this Plan will enjoy rights
and privileges accorded Shareholders, including receipt of dividends, on those portions of the grant that have vested. Any dividends received
on vested portions of this award will be treated as ordinary income for tax purposes. 4. Investment Requirement. The Participant is not
required to make any investment in the Company in order to participate in this grant. 5. Forfeiture of Interests. If a Participant is
terminated “ for Cause ”, as defined in the Plan, the Participant will forfeit all interests in the award that have not vested as of the date of
separation from service. Further, if the Participant voluntarily terminates employment for any reason, but violates the nonsolicitation
provisions of the agreement, any interests that have not yet been distributed will be forfeited. 6. Distribution of Vested Interests. Vested
portions of this grant will be distributed to the Participant as soon as practical following vesting in shares of Company stock, less the number
of shares required to cover then current tax withholding amounts, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Plan. 7. Active
Employment Contingency. The Participant' s opportunity to receive grants and to vest interests in grants is contingent upon continuation of



active employment with the Company, except in cases of retirement, disability or death as explained in the Plan description. 8.
Nontransferability of Grant. The Participant’ s rights and financial interests in this award may not be transferred other than by will or laws
of descent and distribution. 9. Employment Rights. Receipt of grants under this Plan does not constitute an employment agreement between
the participant and the Company. The employment relationship may be terminated at any time by either party at will, except in cases where
the Company and the Executive have entered into a formal employment agreement, in which case the terms and conditions in the
employment agreement take precedence. 10. Nonsolicitation Agreement. Participant covenants and agrees that, upon termination of his /
her employment with F & M Trust, for any reason whatsoever, Participant shall not, directly or indirectly, within the then existing
marketing area of the Company or any future marketing area entered by Company during the term of his / her employment with the
Company, solicit customers and / or employees of F & M Trust on behalf of himself / herself or any other person, company, firm, or
corporation for a period of twelve (12) months following termination of his / her employment with the Company, with or without Cause.
Participant will not induce or attempt to induce any employee, customer, supplier or other business relation of the Company to terminate an
employment or business relationship with the Company during this period. C. NoticesAny notice hereunder to the Company shall be
addressed to its offices in Chambersburg, PA to the attention of the Plan Administrator, and any notice to the Participant shall be addressed
to him or her at the address of record in the Company' s personnel files. D. Participant Bound by Plan The Participant acknowledges
receipt of a copy of the Plan and this Agreement and agrees to be bound by all of the terms and provisions therein contained. In accepting
this award, Participant also agrees not to solicit the Company’ s customers or employees as required by the Plan and this Agreement. In
witness whereof, the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed on its behalf by the Plan Administrators and the Participant on the
date indicated. For the Company: Date By the Employee:

Date Exhibit 3F & M TrustChambersburg, PA Franklin Financial
Services Corporation2019 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan Outside Director’ s Restricted Stock Grant AgreementThis Agreement is made the
day of, 20, by and between F & M Trust ("' the Company'') and (" the Participant"), an independent director serving on the Company’ s
Board of Directors. A. Declaration of Award to Participant In recognition of the participant' s role in the Company and the extent of
opportunities for the executive to contribute to the growth and success of the business, the Board of Directors of F & M Trust grants to the
Participant an award of “ xxxx ” shares of Restricted Company Stock, at $ $. $ $ per share, the Fair Market Value (FMYV) of the stock on the
date of grant. B. Terms and Conditions of the Grant 1. Term of the Grant. This grant will remain in effect until fully vested by the
Participant or forfeited because a permanent break in Board service before vesting requirements are satisfied. In the event that the
Participant terminates service with the Company prior to the expiration of this grant, only vested portions of the award will be available to
the Participant under the rules and regulations explained later in this grant agreement. Portions of the grant that have not vested prior to
the Participant’ s separation from service will be forfeited. 2. Vesting of Interests in the Grant. The Participant will vest interests in the
grant over the earlier of twelve (12) months from the date of grant or the conclusion of the Participant’ s term on the Board of Directors.
However, in the event of participant’ s death, permanent disability, normal retirement, or a Change of Control prior to full vesting, vesting
will accelerate and the participant’ s interests in the grant will fully vest. 3. Participant' s Rights. Participants in this Plan will enjoy rights
and privileges accorded Shareholders, including receipt of dividends, on those portions of the grant that have vested. Any dividends received
on vested portions of this award will be treated as ordinary income for tax purposes. 4. Investment Requirement. The Participant is not
required to make any investment in the Company in order to participate in this grant. 5. Forfeiture of Interests. If a Participant is
terminated “ for Cause ”, as defined in the Plan, the Participant will forfeit all interests in the award that have not vested as of the date of
separation from service. Further, if the Participant voluntarily terminates employment for any reason, but violates the nonsolicitation
provisions of the agreement, any interests that have not yet been distributed will be forfeited. 6. Distribution of Vested Interests. Vested
portions of this grant will be distributed to the Participant as soon as practical following vesting in shares of Company stock, less the number
of shares required to cover then current tax withholding amounts, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Plan. 7. Active Service
Contingency. The Participant' s opportunity to receive grants and to vest interests in grants is contingent upon continuation of active service
with the Company’ s Board of Directors, except in cases of retirement, disability or death as explained in the Plan description. 8.
Nontransferability of Grant. The Participant’ s rights and financial interests in this award may not be transferred other than by will or laws
of descent and distribution. 9. Nonsolicitation Agreement. Participant covenants and agrees that, upon termination of his / her service with
the F & M Trust Board of Directors, for any reason whatsoever, Participant shall not, directly or indirectly, within the then existing
marketing area of the Company or any future marketing area entered by Company during the term of his / her employment with the
Company, solicit customers and / or employees of F & M Trust on behalf of himself / herself or any other person, company, firm, or
corporation for a period of twelve (12) months following termination of his / her employment with the Company, with or without Cause.
Participant will not induce or attempt to induce any employee, customer, supplier or other business relation of the Company to terminate an
employment or business relationship with the Company during this period. C. NoticesAny notice hereunder to the Company shall be
addressed to its offices in Chambersburg, PA to the attention of the Plan Administrator, and any notice to the Participant shall be addressed
to him or her at the address of record in the Company' s corporate files. D. Participant Bound by Plan The Participant acknowledges
receipt of a copy of the Plan and this Agreement and agrees to be bound by all of the terms and provisions therein contained. In accepting
this award, Participant also agrees not to solicit the Company’ s customers or employees as required by the Plan and this Agreement. In
witness whereof, the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed on its behalf by the Plan Administrators and the Participant on the
date indicated. For the Company: Date By the Outside Director:

Date Exhibit 19Franklin Financial Services Corporation Insider Trading
PolicyTHE USE OF INSIDE INFORMATION IN CONNECTION WITH TRADING IN SECURITIESGeneral RuleThe U. S. securities
laws regulate the sale and purchase of securities in the interest of protecting the investing public. U. S. securities laws give Franklin Financial
Services Corporation (the “ Company ), its officers, directors and other employees the responsibility to ensure that information about the
Company is not used unlawfully in the purchase and sale of securities. All employees and directors should pay particularly close attention to
the laws against trading on “ inside ” information. These laws are based upon the belief that all persons trading in a company’ s securities
should have equal access to all “ material ” information about that company. For example, if an employee or a director of a company knows
material non- public financial information, that employee or director is prohibited from buying or selling company stock until the
information has been disclosed to the public. This is because the employee or director knows information that will probably cause the stock
price to change, and it would be unfair for the employee or director to have an advantage (knowledge that the stock price will change) that
the rest of the investing public does not have. In fact, it is more than unfair. It is considered to be fraudulent and illegal. Civil and criminal
penalties for this kind of activity are severe. The general rule can be stated as follows: It is a violation of the federal securities laws for any
person to buy or sell securities if he or she is in possession of material non- public information. Information is material if it could affect a
person’ s decision whether to buy, sell or hold the securities. It is non- public information if it has not been publicly disclosed. Furthermore,
it is illegal for any person in possession of material non- public information to provide other people with such information or to recommend
that they buy or sell the securities. This is called “ tipping ”. In that case, they may both be held liable. While it is not possible to identify all
information that would be deemed “ material, ” the following types of information ordinarily would be considered material: - Financial




performance, especially quarterly and year- end results of operations, and significant changes in financial performance, conditions or
liquidity. - Company projections and strategic plans. - Potential mergers and acquisitions or the sale of Company assets or subsidiaries.
New major contracts, collaborations, orders, suppliers, customers, or finance sources, or the loss thereof. - Significant changes or
developments in products or product lines. - Stock splits, public or private securities / debt offerings, or changes in Company dividend
policies or amounts. - Significant changes in senior management. Significant labor disputes or negotiations. - Actual or threatened major
litigation, or the resolution of such litigation. The rule applies to any and all transactions in the Company’ s securities, including its common
stock and options and warrants to purchase common stock (other than the exercise of employee stock options or warrants), and any other
type of securities that the Company may issue, such as preferred stock, convertible debentures, warrants and exchange- traded options or
other derivative securities. The Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ SEC ), the stock exchanges and plaintiffs’ lawyers focus on
uncovering insider trading. A breach of the insider trading laws could expose the insider to criminal fines of up to $ 5 million and
imprisonment for up to twenty years, in addition to civil penalties (up to three times the profits earned or losses avoided), and injunctive
actions. In addition, punitive damages may be imposed under applicable state laws. Securities laws also subject controlling persons to civil
penalties for illegal insider trading by employees, including employees located outside the United States. Controlling persons include
directors, officers, and supervisors. These persons may be subject to fines up to the greater of $ 1, 000, 000 or three times the profit or loss
avoided by the insider trader. Inside information does not belong to the individual directors, officers or other employees who may handle it
or otherwise become knowledgeable about it. It is an asset of the Company. For any person to use such information for personal benefit or to
disclose it to others outside the Company violates the Company’ s interests. More particularly, in connection with trading in the Company
securities, it is a fraud against members of the investing public and against the Company. Violations of this policy could result in termination
of employment or in a request to resign from the Board of Directors. All violations are judged on a case- by- case basis. Additional penalties
may be imposed under Federal and / or State law. To Whom the Policy AppliesThe prohibition against trading on material non- public
information applies to directors, officers and all other employees, and to other people who gain access to that information. Because of their
access to material non- public information on a regular basis, Company policy subjects its directors and certain employees (the “ Window
Group, ” comprised of the “ Section 16 Individuals ” and “ Other Window Group Members, ” as such terms are defined below) to additional
restrictions on trading in the Company securities. The restrictions for the Window Group are discussed under “ Guidelines — Restrictions on
the Window Group, ” below. In addition, directors and certain employees with material non- public information may be subject to ad hoc
restrictions on trading from time to time. The Company has designated the persons listed on Exhibit A attached hereto (“ Section 16
Individuals ”) as the directors and executive officers who are subject to the reporting provisions and trading restrictions of Section 16 of the
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “ Exchange Act ). Section 16 Individuals must obtain prior approval of all trades in Company securities from
the Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary in accordance with the pre- clearance procedures set forth in F. below. The
Company will amend Exhibit A from time to time as necessary to reflect the addition, resignation or departure of Section 16 Individuals. The
Company also has designated the persons listed on Exhibit B attached hereto (“ Other Window Group Members ) who, because of their
position with the Company and / or their access to material nonpublic information (such as secretaries or administrative assistants to
Executive Officers and Directors), will be deemed to be members of the Window Group and must obtain approval of all trades in Company
securities from the Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary in accordance with the procedures set forth under “ Pre-
Clearance. ” below. Other Window Group Members, however, are not subject to the reporting obligations or trading restrictions of Section
16. The Company will amend Exhibit B from time to time as necessary to reflect the addition, resignation or departure of Other Window
Group Members. The Company may designate other persons to be Other Window Group Members from time to time. Such persons will be
notified of Window Group status by the Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Security and, during the period of such status, must
obtain approval of all trades in Company securities from the Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary in accordance with the
procedures set forth herein. Such Other Window Group Members, however, are not subject to the reporting obligations or trading
restrictions of Section 16. Other Companies’ StocksThe same rules apply to other companies’ stocks. Employees and directors who learn
material non- public information about suppliers, customers, or competitors through their work at the Company should keep it confidential
and not buy or sell stock in such companies until the information becomes public. Employees and directors should not give tips about such
stocks. Margin AccountsSecurities held in a margin account may be sold by the broker without the customer’ s consent if the customer fails
to meet a margin call. Because such a sale may occur at a time when an employee or a director had material non- public information or is
otherwise not permitted to trade in Company securities, the Company prohibits employees and directors from purchasing Company
securities on margin or holding Company securities in a margin account. GuidelinesThe following guidelines should be followed in order to
ensure compliance with applicable antifraud laws and with the Company’ s policies: Nondisclosure: Material non- public information must
not be disclosed to anyone, except to persons within the Company whose positions require them to know it. No one may “ tip ” or disclose
material non- public information concerning the Company to any outside person (including, but not limited to family members, analysts,
individual investors, and members of the investment community and news media), unless required as part of that person’ s regular duties for
the Company and authorized by the Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary and / or the Board of Directors. In any instance
in which material non- public information is disclosed to outsiders, the Company will take such steps as are necessary to preserve the
confidentiality of the information, including requiring the outsider to agree in writing to comply with the terms of this policy and / or to sign
a confidentiality agreement. All inquiries from outsiders regarding material non- public information about the Company must be forwarded
to the Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary. No one may give trading advice of any kind about the Company to anyone
while possessing material non- public information about the Company, except to advise others not to trade if doing so might violate the law
or this policy. The Company strongly discourages all directors and executive officers from giving trading advice concerning the Company to
third parties even when the director or executive officer does not possess material non- public information about the Company. Trading in
the Company’ s Securities: No employee or director should place a purchase or sale order, or recommend that another person place a
purchase or sale order in the Company’ s securities, when he or she has knowledge of material non- public information concerning the
Company. Employees or directors who possess material non- public information should wait until the start of the third business day after the
information has been publicly released before trading. The exercise of stock options and warrants where no Company securities are sold in
the market to fund the exercise (where the purchase price is tendered in cash at the time of exercise) is not subject to the restrictions set forth
in this policy. Exercises of stock options or warrants where all or a portion of the acquired stock is sold, including broker- assisted cashless
exercises, however, are subject to the restrictions set forth in this policy. Similarly, stock that was acquired upon exercise of a stock option or
warrant will be treated like any other stock, and may not be sold by an employee or director who is in possession of material non- public
information. The regular reinvestment of cash dividends in the dividend reinvestment plan is not subject to the restrictions set forth in this
policy, but new cash investments pursuant to a voluntary cash purchase option under the plan are. Avoid Speculation: Investing in the
Company’ s Common Stock provides an opportunity to share in the future growth of the Company. But investment in the Company and
sharing in the growth of the Company does not mean short range speculation based on fluctuations in the market. Such activities put the
personal gain of the employee or director in conflict with the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. Although this policy does
not mean that employees or directors may never sell shares, the Company encourages employees and directors to avoid frequent trading in



Company stock. Speculating in Company stock is not part of the Company culture. Trading in Other Securities: No employee or director
should place a purchase or sale order, or recommend that another person place a purchase or sale order, in the securities of another
corporation, if the employee or director learns confidential or material non- public information about the other corporation that is likely to
affect the value of those securities. For example, it would be a violation of the securities laws if an employee or director learned through
Company sources that the Company intended to purchase assets from a company, and then bought or sold stock in that other company
because of the likely increase or decrease in the value of its securities. Restrictions on the Window Group: The Window Group is subject to
the following restrictions on trading in Company securities: - All trades are subject to prior review and clearance for all trades should be
obtained from the Company’ s Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary; - Trading is generally permitted from the start of the
third business day following an earnings release with respect to the preceding fiscal period until the close of trading on the twenty- second
day of the third month of the current fiscal quarter (the “ Window ”), subject to the restrictions below; - No trading in Company securities
even during applicable trading Windows while in the possession of material non- public information; - No trading in Company securities
outside of the applicable trading Windows or during any special blackout periods of which the Company’ s Corporate Secretary or Assistant
Corporate Secretary may give notice. No one may disclose to any outside third party that a special blackout period has been imposed. Pre-
Clearance Due to the level of scrutiny and regulation applied to trades in the Company’ s securities made by members of the Window
Group, such persons’ trades are subject to prior review by the Company’ s Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary. All
members of the Window Group must pre- clear all trades of Company securities with the Company’ s Corporate Secretary or Assistant
Corporate Secretary, including, without limitation, voluntary cash purchases under the dividend reinvestment plan and cashless exercises
under a stock option plan. (Purchases of Company stock through the reinvestment of dividends pursuant to the dividend reinvestment plan
or the exercise of stock options where the purchase price is tendered in cash at the time of exercise are not subject to the pre- clearance
procedures.) In order to obtain pre- clearance, a member of the Window Group must submit to the Company’ s Corporate Secretary or
Assistant Secretary at least one business day in advance of the proposed transaction a Pre- Clearance Checklist in the form of Exhibit C
attached hereto that (i) he or she is not in possession of material non- public information concerning the Company; and (ii) the proposed
trade (s) does not violate the trading restrictions of Section 16 of the Exchange Act or Rule 144 of the Securities Act. If a proposed
transaction receives pre- clearance, the pre- cleared transaction must be effected within five business days of receipt of pre- clearance unless
an exception is granted or the person becomes aware of material non- public information before the transaction is executed in which case the
pre- clearance is void and the transaction must not be completed. Transactions not effected within the five business days’ time limit would be
subject to pre- clearance again. If a person requests pre- clearance and permission to engage in the transaction is denied, then he or she
should not execute the transaction and should not inform any other person of the restriction. The existence of the pre- clearance procedure
does not in any way obligate the Corporate Secretary or Assistant Secretary to approve any transaction. SECTION 16
COMPLIANCEGeneralThe Company is required to register its securities under Section 12 (g) of the Exchange Act. As a result, the
directors and executive officers of the Company are subject to certain filing requirements and restrictions under the federal securities laws
whenever they purchase, sell or otherwise engage in transactions involving stock of the Company. Most notably, directors and executive
officers are subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Section 16 Trading RulesSection 16 of the Exchange Act
was designed to provide public information about securities transactions by corporate insiders and to deter speculative short- term trading
in corporate securities by insiders. More specifically, Section 16 (a) generally requires officers, directors and persons who hold more than ten
percent of the Company’ s securities to file certain reports disclosing ownership of and transactions in the Company’ s securities with the
SEC. Section 16 (b) imposes absolute liability upon officers, directors and ten percent shareholders for short- swing profits obtained in
trading the Company’ s securities. Insider Reporting Requirements under Section 16 (a). General Rule: A person who becomes an executive
officer, director or ten percent shareholder of the Company must file an initial report of beneficial ownership of the Company’ s securities on
Form 3. Subsequent changes in beneficial ownership must be reported on Form 4 within two business days after the date of the transaction,
with certain limited exceptions. All changes in beneficial ownership (subject to certain limited exceptions) are required to be reported,
including any purchase, sale, inheritance or gift of Company stock, as well as the receipt of a stock option or a debenture convertible into
common stock, and the exercise or conversion thereof. The reporting of certain transactions (such as transactions involving nominal
amounts), however, may be deferred until the end of the year when they are to be reported on Form 5. Within forty- five days after the end
of the fiscal year, an executive officer, director or ten percent shareholder must file a Form S to report any transactions not previously
reported on Form 4 during the year, either because of deferred reporting in accordance with the rules or a failure to file a required report.
The SEC rules assume that all Section 16 Individuals will need to file Form 5 at the end of the fiscal year. The Company must disclose the
failure of any Section 16 Individual to file Form S (or Form 4) in its proxy statement and annual report on Form 10- K, unless the Section 16
Individual has given to the Company a written representation that no Form 5 is required. The Company distributes a representation form in
January of each year to the Section 16 Individuals so that they can confirm that all transactions in the Company’ s stock during the
preceding year have previously been reported to the SEC. Beneficial Ownership: The reporting requirements of Section 16 (a) are imposed
upon persons who beneficially own securities of the Company. There are two concepts of beneficial ownership under Section 16. The first is
used in determining whether a person holds ten percent or more of the Company’ s stock, and focuses on the person’ s voting or investment
power. Once a person is subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16 (a), whether as an executive officer, director or ten percent
shareholder, a second concept of beneficial ownership is used to determine which securities and what transactions must be reported. The
second concept is based upon the person’ s pecuniary interest, that is, the ability to profit from purchases or sales of the securities. As a
general rule, a person is deemed to be the beneficial owner of securities which he or she owns (in his or her own name or jointly with any
other person, including stock held in street name, in a custodial or agency account, or by a nominee) or which are owned by his or her
spouse, or children or immediate family member who lives in the same home. A person may also be considered the beneficial owner of
securities held by any partnership, corporation, trust or other entity in which the person has a significant interest or with respect to which he
or she exercises control. Short- Swing Profit Liability under Section 16 (b). General Rule: Under Section 16 (b) of the Exchange Act, Section
16 Individuals are subject to strict liability for any * profit ” derived during any six- month period from any purchase and sale or sale and
purchase of Company stock beneficially owned by them. The purpose of Section 16 (b) is to prevent the misuse of material non- public
information, but the penalties are imposed arbitrarily, regardless of whether the person used or even possessed material non- public
information. The Section 16 Individual can be compelled to return to the Company any profit received as a result of such transactions. In the
event the Company fails to pursue recovery of any such profit, the rule is rigorously enforced by a number of “ bounty hunter ” plaintiffs’
lawyers who systematically review Forms 4 and 5 filed with the SEC in a search for violations. Profit: “ Profit ” is determined by examining
all transactions by a Section 16 Individual occurring within any six- month period and matching the highest sale price with the lowest
purchase price until all purchases and sales are accounted for. It makes no difference whether the sale follows or precedes the purchase,
whether inside information was in fact abused, or how long the securities sold have been held. Because of the arbitrary nature of the rule, it
is possible for a Section 16 Individual to be liable, even though in reality he or she sustains a net economic loss during the six- month period
involved. Therefore, as a practical matter, a Section 16 Individual should allow six months to elapse between any purchase and subsequent
sale or between any sale and subsequent purchase, unless all trades occur at the same price. Stock Options: Under Section 16, stock options



and convertible securities are defined as “ derivative securities. ” The SEC takes the position that derivative securities are functionally
equivalent to the underlying securities to which they relate. Therefore, transactions in derivative securities are reportable and can be
matched with other transactions for the purposes of short- swing profit liability under Section 16 (b). The acquisition of a stock option or
other derivative security is considered to be a purchase which can be matched with a sale of stock occurring within the preceding or
subsequent six months. The exercise of a stock option, or conversion of a derivative security, is simply a change in the form of beneficial
ownership and thus exempt from liability under Section 16 (b). Even though exempt under Section 16 (b), these transactions must still be
reported as required by Section 16 (a). Exemptions: Some transactions are exempt from the short- swing profits recapture rule. The
purchase of stock pursuant to a dividend reinvestment plan, for example, is disregarded for purposes of the rule, although purchases made
with additional voluntary cash contributions under the plan are not exempt. Similarly, an increase or decrease in the amount of stock held
by an executive officer, director or ten percent shareholder as a result of a stock split or stock dividend is exempt from Section 16 (b). As a
general rule, a bona fide gift is not a sale for purposes of the short- swing profits recapture rule. However, a gift which is followed by a sale
by the recipient within six months may give rise to liability if the recipient is a person whose ownership would be attributed to the donor
under the beneficial ownership rules. Tax Conditioned Plan Exemptions: Transactions in issuer securities through a “ Tax Conditioned Plan
” (other than discretionary transactions) are exempt from Section 16 (a) reporting and Section 16 (b) liability to the extent that they are not
“ discretionary ”. A Tax Conditioned Plan means a Qualified Plan, an Excess Benefit Plan or a Stock Purchase Plan, including 401 (k) thrift
plans and Employee Stock Purchase Plans that meet the requirements of Section 423 and Section 410 of the Internal Revenue Code. A
transaction is considered to be “ discretionary ” if the participant in the plan (i) makes a volitional intra- plan transfer involving an issuer
equity securities fund or (ii) obtains a cash withdrawal funded by a volitional disposition of an issuer equity security. Section 16 Reporting
Procedures The Company will assist Section 16 Individuals with the preparation of the forms necessary to satisfy the reporting obligations
of Section 16. However, in order to permit sufficient time for the Company to do so, Section 16 Individuals must follow the pre- clearance
procedure discussed above. Failure to pre- clear transactions may result in the Company’ s inability to prepare and facilitate timely filing of
a Section 16 Individual’ s Section 16 reports. In the majority of cases, Section 16 requires reports of trades made by Section 16 Individuals
within two business days of the date of the trade. In order to facilitate the timely filing of Section 16 reports, Section 16 Individuals will be
required to execute a power of attorney in the form of Exhibit D, attached hereto. Although the Company assists Section 16 Individuals with
their Section 16 reporting obligations, it is the Section 16 Individuals’ sole responsibility to comply with his or her Section 16 obligations and
to make timely filings as required by Section 16. The Company is required to disclose in its annual proxy statement the name of all Section
16 persons who failed to timely file a required Section 16 report during the prior year. RULE 144 COMPLIANCE General It is unlawful
under Section 5 of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “ Securities Act ”) for any person to sell a security without registration unless the security
or the transaction is exempt. Generally, the Company’ s securities will not be exempt. In addition, although Section 4 (a) (1) of the Securities
Act provides an exemption for transactions by any person other than an issuer, underwriter or dealer, the SEC and the courts interpret the
term “ underwriter ” broadly to include persons who purchase securities from an issuer with a view to, or offers or sells for an issuer in
connection with the distribution of any security, or participates in any such undertaking. The SEC has adopted Rule 144 to provide a safe
harbor from being deemed to be an underwriter for persons, particularly Section 16 individuals, who sell securities in accordance with the
conditions of Rule 144. Accordingly, it is the policy of the Company that all sales of Company securities by Section 16 Individuals should
comply with the conditions of Rule 144, unless such persons are able to furnish a written opinion of recognized securities law counsel
acceptable to the Company that the transaction otherwise is exempt from registration under the Securities Act. Conditions of Rule 144 The
following conditions must be satisfied in order for the Rule 144 safe harbor to be available: - Adequate current public information must be
available with respect to the Company. The Company typically satisfies this requirement by its timely filing of its annual reports on Form
10- K, quarterly reports on Form 10- Q, current reports on Form 8- K and its annual proxy statement. - The amount of securities a Section
16 Individual may sell in any transaction, together with all sales within the preceding three (3) month period, is limited to the greater of one
percent of the Company’ s outstanding shares or the average weekly trading volume of the Company’ s share during the four (4) preceding
weeks. - The shares must be sold in “ brokers transactions > or in transactions with a “ market maker. ” A “ broker’ s transaction ” is
defined to mean a transaction effected by or through a broker who does no more than execute the order without soliciting customer orders to
buy the shares. A “ market maker ” is defined as a dealer who holds himself out as being willing to buy and sell the Company’ s shares for
his own account on a regular or continuous basis. The Company’ s Corporate Secretary and Assistant Corporate Secretary maintain a list of
the Company’ s market makers. - If the amount of securities a Section 16 Individual would sell during any period of three months would
exceed 5, 000 shares or $ 50, 000, Form 144 must be filed with the SEC concurrently with the placement of sale order with the broker or the
execution of the transaction directly with a market maker. Rule 144 Reporting Procedures Typically, brokers or market makers will assist
Section 16 Individuals with the preparation and filing of Form 144. Nevertheless, the Company will be prepared to assist Section 16
Individuals with the preparation and filing of Rule 144. However, in order to permit sufficient time for the Company to do so, Section 16
Individuals must follow the pre- clearance procedure discussed above. Failure to pre- clear transactions may result in the Company’ s
inability to facilitate the preparation and timely filing of Form 144. Although the Company assists Section 16 Individuals with their Rule
144 filing obligation, it is the Section 16 Individual’ s sole responsibility to comply and to make timely filings. ROLE OF CORPORATE
SECRETARY The role and authority of the Corporate Secretary and Assistant Corporate Secretary pursuant to this Policy shall be strictly
administrative and ministerial and, to the extent any responsibility of the Corporate Security and Assistant Corporate Secretary pursuant to
this Policy is discretionary, the Corporate Secretary and Assistant Corporate Secretary shall discharge such responsibility in accordance
with the directions of the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directions. EXHIBIT ASECTION 16 INDIVIDUALS Executive
OfficersTimothy G. HenryScott D. Ehrig Craig W. BestLouis J. Giustini Mark R. HollarLorie M. Heckman Charles B. Carroll, Jr. David
M. Long Steven D. ButzMatthew D. Weaver Karen K. Carmack Directors Martin R. BrownAllan E. Jennings, Jr. Kevin W.
CraigStanley J. Kerlin Gregory A. DuffeyDonald H. Mowery G. Warren ElliottKimberly M. Rzomp Daniel J. Fisher Gregory I. Snook
EXHIBIT BOTHER WINDOW GROUP MEMBERS Zoe R. Clayton, Assistant Corporate Secretary Amanda M. Ducey, Corporate
Secretary Megan Edwards, Risk Management Specialist Eric M. Follin, Asst- Liability and Investment Officer Amy B. Herrold, Controller
Warren M. Hurt, Chief Investment Officer Anthony Klatko, Investment Portfolio Manager Becky A. Mull, Investment Portfolio Analyst
EXHIBIT C FRANKLIN FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATIONSECTION 16 INSIDER TRADING PRE- CLEARANCE
CHECKLIST Insider Name: Date of Notification: Transaction Details: Buy / Sell /
Transfer Number of Shares: Anticipated Transaction Date: Please review each “ Restriction /
Consideration ” before signing below to indicate compliance. If you have any questions, please refer to the Insider Trading Policy or contact
the Corporate Secretary / Assistant Corporate Secretary for clarification. Restriction / ConsiderationSummary - Trading RestrictionsThe
named insider is not in possession of material non- public information concerning the Company. The proposed trade will not occur during a
regular or special black- out period. - TimingThe proposed transaction will be completed within S business days of pre- clearance. -
Prohibited TransactionsThe proposed transaction does not relate to holding FFSC stock in a margin account as collateral. - Section 16 (b)
LiabilityThe named insider did not engage in any non- exempt “ opposite way > transactions within the past 6 months and does not intend
any non- exempt “ opposite way > transactions within the next 6 months. The named insider will immediately provide information to the




Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary about the completed transaction to allow for timely filing of any necessary Section 16
report. - Rule 144 ComplianceThe proposed transaction will not exceed the Rule 144 volume limitations and will be conducted through an
unsolicited broker transaction or directly to a market- maker. The named insider will file a Form 144 with the SEC in a timely manner IF
the transaction is large enough to warrant it. EXHIBIT DPOWER OF ATTORNEY Know by all these presents, that the undersigned
director (or officer) of Franklin Financial Services Corporation (the “ Company ”) hereby constitutes and appoints each of AMANDA M.
DUCEY - Corporate Secretary, and ZOE R. CLAYTON- Assistant Corporate Secretary, signing singly, the undersigned’ s true and lawful
attorney- in- fact to: (1) prepare, execute in the undersigned’ s name and on the undersigned’ s behalf, and submit to the U. S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “ SEC ”) a Form ID, including amendments thereto, and any other documents necessary or appropriate to
obtain codes and passwords enabling the undersigned to make electronic filings with the SEC of reports required by Section 16 (a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or any rule or regulation of the SEC; (2) execute for and on behalf of the undersigned, in the undersigned’ s
capacity as an officer and / or Director of the Company, Forms 3, 4, and 5 in accordance with Section 16 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 and the rules thereunder, and other forms or reports the undersigned may be required to file in connection with the undersigned’ s
ownership, acquisition, or disposition of securities of the Company; (3) do and perform any and all acts for and on behalf of the undersigned
which may be necessary or desirable to complete and execute any such Form 3, 4, or 5, or other form or report, and timely file such form or
report with the SEC and any stock exchange or similar authority; and (4) take any other action of any type whatsoever in connection with
the foregoing which, in the opinion of such attorney- in- fact, may be of benefit to, in the best interest of, or legally required by, the
undersigned, it being understood that the documents executed by such attorney- in- fact on behalf of the undersigned pursuant to this Power
of Attorney shall be in such form and shall contain such terms and conditions as such attorney- in- fact may approve in such attorney- in-
fact’ s discretion. The undersigned hereby grants to each such attorney- in- fact full power and authority to do and perform any and every
act and thing whatsoever requisite, necessary, or proper to be done in the exercise of any of the rights and powers herein granted, as fully to
all intents and purposes as the undersigned might or could do it personally present, with full power of substitution or revocation, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that such attorney- in- fact, or such attorney- in- fact’ s substitute or substitutes, shall lawfully do or cause to be
done by virtue of this Power of Attorney and the rights and powers herein granted. The undersigned acknowledges that the foregoing
attorneys- in- fact, in serving in such capacity at the request of the undersigned, are not assuming, nor is the Company assuming, any of the
undersigned’ s responsibilities to comply with Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The undersigned further acknowledges that
it is the undersigned’ s express intent that the Power of Attorney shall not create a fiduciary relationship between the attorney- in- fact and
the undersigned. This Power of Attorney shall remain in full force and effect until the undersigned is no longer required to file Forms 3, 4,
and 5 with respect to the undersigned’ s holdings of and transactions in securities issued by the Company, unless earlier revoking by the
undersigned in a signed writing delivered to the foregoing attorneys- in- fact. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this
Power of Attorney to be executed as of this day of ,20_ . Signature
Printed Name ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF AGENT I, Corporate Secretary or Assistant
Corporate Secretary, have read the attached Power of Attorney signed by « FirstName » « LastName » (the ¢ principal ”) and dated

,20__, and am the person identified as the agent for the principal. I hereby acknowledge that in the absence of a specific
provision to the contrary in the Power of Attorney or in 20 Pa. C. S. when I act as agent: - I shall exercise the powers for the benefit of the
principal; - I shall keep the assets of the principal separate from my assets; - I shall exercise reasonable caution and prudence; and - I shall
keep a full and accurate record for all actions, receipts, and disbursements on behalf of the principal.  Date:
EXHIBIT F Insider Trading Policy Acknowledgement The undersigned hereby acknowledges
receipt of the Franklin Financial Services Corporation Insider Trading Policy and agrees to be bound by this policy
DateSignature Printed Name EXHIBIT 21
FRANKLIN FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATIONSUBSIDIARIES FRANKLIN FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION
CHAMBERSBURG, PA'  FARMERS AND MERCHANTS FRANKLIN FUTURETRUST COMPANY OF FUNDCHAMBERSBURG, PA
CHAMBERSBURG, PADIRECT- 100 % DIRECT- 100 % FRANKLIN FINANCIAL PROPERTIES CORPORATION CHAMBERSBURG, PA

INDIRECT- 100 % EXHIBIT 23. 1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Franklin Financial Services
CorporationChambersburg, Pennsylvania We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333- 117604, No. 333- 90348,
No. 333- 90348 Ne—333-231668 and No. 333- 193655 on Form S- 8 and 333- 169186 and Ne. 333- 275635 on Form S- 3 of Franklin Financial

Services Corporation of our report dated March +3-14 , 2024-2025 relating to the financial statements appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K. /s/Crowe LLP €levetand-Washington , D. C. ©HMareh—- March H-14 , 2024-2025 Exhibit 31. [Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a) Certifications
[, Timothy G. Henry, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10- K of Franklin Financial Services Corporation; 2. Based on my
knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on
my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying
officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and
15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a)
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such
internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; c) Evaluated
the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and d) Disclosed in this report any
change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting and 5. The registrant’ s other certifying
officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’ s board of directors: a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s
internal control over financial reporting Date: March H-14 , 2624-2025 /s / Timothy G. HenryTimothy G. HenryChief HenryPresident-and-Chief
Executive Officer Exhibit 31. 2Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a) Certifications I, Mark R. Hollar, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this annual report on
Form 10- K of Franklin Financial Services Corporation; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and



for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; ¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant” s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s
internal control over financial reporting and 5. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors: a) All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting Date: March H-14 , 2624
2025 /s /Mark R. HollarMark R. HollarTreasurer and Chief Financial Officer Exhibit 32. 1Certification Pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, As
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002 In connection with the Annual Report of Franklin Financial Services
Corporation (the *“ Corporation ”) on Form 10- K, for the period ending December 31, 2023-2024 , as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “ Report ), I, Timothy G. Henry, Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002 that: (1) The report fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company. /s / Timothy G. HenryTimothy G. HenryChief Executive OfficerMarch ++
14 , 2024-2025 Exhibit 32. 2Certification Pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Sections 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of
2002 In connection with the Annual Report of Franklin Financial Services Corporation (the “ Corporation ”’) on Form 10- K for the period ending
December 31, 2823-2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “ Report ), I, Mark R. Hollar, Chief
Financial Officer of the Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of
2002 that: (1) The report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) The
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company. /s /
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